
      

NO T ICE O F  MEET ING    
CIT Y O F  G ARLAND, T EXAS    

PLAN CO MMISSIO N 
City  Hall,  Counc il Chambers  

William E. Dollar  Munic ipal Build ing  
200 N. F if th Street 

G ar land, T ex as   
J une 10, 2024 at 7:00 p.m.   

 
A meet ing of the Plan Commis s ion of the C ity  of  G ar land, T ex as  w ill be held at the aforementioned loc at ion, date, and t ime to dis c us s  and c ons ider  the                         
follow ing agenda items .  

A pre-meet ing w ill begin at 5:15 p.m. at  the s ame loc at ion as  the regular  meet ing.  T he agenda for  the pre-meet ing is  the s ame as  for  the regular                     
meet ing, and may  inc lude addit ional items  as  s et for th below.         

  INVO CAT IO N AND PLEDG E O F  ALLEG IANCE:  I t  is  the c us tom and tr adit ion of the members  of the Plan Commis s ion to hav e an inv oc at ion and rec ita l                            
of  the Pledge of Allegianc e pr ior  to the beginning of the meet ing.  Members  of the audienc e are inv ited to par t ic ipate.  Howev er ,  members  of the                      
audienc e are not r equir ed to par t ic ipate.  T he dec is ion to par t ic ipate is  s tr ic t ly  a matter  of  pers onal c hoic e and has  no bear ing on matter s  to be                             
c ons idered by  the Plan Commis s ion and w ill not af fec t the dec is ions  to be made dur ing the meet ing.             

T he meet ing w ill be broadc as t on C ity  of  G ar land G ov ernment Ac c es s  T elev is ion (CG T V) .  CG T V is  av ailable v ia G ar landT X.gov , c hannel 16                                
(Spec trum) , Channel 44 (F ront ier ) ,  and c hannel 99 (AT &T  U-v ers e) .   Meet ings  are broadc as t online v ia liv e- s tr eaming, on-demand, and air  on CG T V                           
with s ev eral r ebroadc as ts  dur ing the week  of the meet ing.           

Public  Comments
Your  c omments  mus t r e late to an item on th is  agenda -  non-germane c omments  are not in order .   T ime limits  w ill be impos ed by  the Chairman as                       
appropr iate to the nature of the agenda item.  G enerally ,  public  s peak ers  are giv en three minutes .                 

IN-PERSO N CO MMENT S: Regis tr at ion w ill be r equir ed for  any  c it iz en w is hing to s peak . Speak ers  s hall r egis ter  us ing the elec tr onic  r egis tr at ion k ios k s                                   
in the lobby  of C ity  Hall.    

G ar land C ity  Hall and Counc il Chambers  are wheelc hair  ac c es s ible.   Spec ial park ing is  av ailable on the eas t s ide of C ity  Hall and on Aus t in & State                        
Street wes t of  C ity  Hall.   Pers ons  w ith dis abilit ies  who plan to at tend th is  meet ing and who may  need aux iliar y  aids  or  s er v ic es  mus t c ontac t the C ity                               
Sec retar y 's  O ff ic e at ( 972)  205-2404 at leas t two work ing day s  pr ior  to the meet ing s o that appropr iate ar rangements  c an be made.  BRAILLE IS NO T                          
AVAILABLE.

I f  the Plan Commis s ion adjourns  into ex ec ut iv e s es s ion dur ing th is  meet ing, the ex ec ut iv e s es s ion w ill be c onduc ted between and among the members                           
of the Plan Commis s ion and relev ant C ity  s taf f .   Public  ac c es s  to that meet ing is  prohibited by  State law.                         
 

C ON SEN T AGEN D A       
 

Al l  i tems under th is section are recommended for approval  by a single motion of the P lan C ommission,       
w i thout d iscussion.  The P lan C ommission has had the opportuni ty to review  each of these i tems during a       
pre-meeting.  The C hai rman w i l l  announce the agenda and provide an opportuni ty for members of the      
audience and the P lan C ommission to request that an i tem be removed and considered separate ly.      
 
      

1. MINUTES   

 

a. Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the May 13, 2024 meeting.
 

2. PLATS   

 

a. P 24-15 Linda Ray Addition-- Replat
 

b. P 24-16 Garland Shiloh Addition -- Replat
 



      

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 
 

Speaker Regulations:

Anyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must fi l l out a speaker card and give 
it to the Plan Commission Secretary before speaking (cards are located at the entrance to the
Council Chambers).  The Chairman will recognize speakers; he may impose a time limit and
may provide for rebuttal.  All comments and testimony are to be presented from the podium.

  

 

3. ZONING   

 

a. Consideration of the application of IBC Constructions, LLC, requesting approval of 1) a Specific Use
Provision for a Fuel Pumps, Retail Use and 2) a Plan for a Fuel Pumps, Retail Use, Convenience Store,
Laundry, Self-Serve (Laundromat) and Retail   Store Uses on a property zoned Community Retail (CR)
District. This property is located at 1270 Pleasant Valley Road. (District 1) (File Z 22-28)

 

b. Consideration of the application of CCM Engineering, requesting approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from
Planned Development (PD) District 14-11 for Single-Family-10 (SF-10) Uses and Planned Development
(PD) District 85-24   for Community Retail (CR) Uses to a Planned Development (PD) District for Single-
Family Attached (SFA) Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for townhouse development. This property is located at
2000 and 2050 East Miller Road. (District 3) (File Z 22-67)

 

c. Consideration of the application of 2916 National, LP. , requesting approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from
Industrial (IN) District to a Planned Development (PD) District for Industrial Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for
Equipment Leasing/Rental, Outdoor Use. This property is located at 2916 and 3002 National Drive. (District
5) (File Z 24-15)

 

d. Consideration of the application of OSI 1602 Kings Rd, LLC.,  requesting approval of  1) a Specific Use
Provision (SUP) for a Truck/Bus Storage Use 2) a Concept Plan for a Truck/Bus Storage Use and 3) a
Development Variance for a complete waiver of a landscaping provision preventing fencing from being in the
landscape buffer. This property is located at 1602 Kings Road. (District 6) (File Z 24-22)

 

e. Consideration of the application of OSI 1602 Kings Rd, LLC., requesting approval of  1) a Specific Use
Provision (SUP) for a Truck/Bus Repair Use & Truck/Bus Storage Use on a property zoned Industrial (IN)
District and 2) a Concept Plan for a Truck/Bus Repair Use & Truck/Bus Storage Use and 3) a Development
Variance for a complete waiver of a landscaping provision preventing fencing from being in the landscape
buffer. This property is located at 1602 Kings Road. (District 6) (File Z 24-23)

 

f. Consideration of the application of Kimley-Horn, requesting approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from
Community Retail (CR) District to a Planned Development (PD) District for Community Retail Uses and 2) a
Concept Plan for a Hotel/Motel Full Service . This property is located at 3305 Zion Road. (District 3) (File Z
24-24)

 

4. ADJOURN   

 

NOTICE: The Plan Commission may recess from the open session and convene in a closed session if the discussion of any of the listed agenda items concerns matters regarding
priviledged and unpriviiledged client information deemed confidential by Rule 1.05 of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct.  Sec. 551.071, Tex. Gov't Code.

NOTE: A quorum of the City Council may be in attendance and may or may not participate in the discussions of the Committee or board.



GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 1. a.            
Meeting Date: 06/10/2024  
Item Tit le:  Plan Commission Minutes for May 13, 2024
Summary:
Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the May 13, 2024 meeting.

Attachments
May 13, 2024 Plan Commission Minutes



MINUTES
 

 
The Plan Commission of the City of Garland convened in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, May 13, 2024, in
the Council Chambers at the William E. Dollar Municipal Building, 200 N. Fifth Street, Garland, Texas, with the
following members present:

Present: Scott Roberts, Chairman  
Julius Jenkins, 1st Vice Chair  
Wayne Dalton, 2nd Vice Chair  
Stephanie Paris, Commissioner  
Rich Aubin, Commissioner  
Patrick Abell, Commissioner  
Michael Rose, Commissioner  

Absent: Georgie Cornelius, Commissioner

Staff Present: Will Guerin, Planning Director
Angela Self, Planning Administrator
Nabiha Ahmed, Lead Development Planner
Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner
David Jones, Planner I
Trey Lansford, Deputy City Attorney
Elisa Morales, Secretary

 
C O NSENT  AG EN DA        

 
All items  under  th is  s ec t ion ar e  r ec ommended for  appr ov a l by  a  s ing le  mot ion o f  the Plan C ommis s ion,  w ithout  d is c us s ion.   T he Plan C ommis s ion has                                           
had the oppor tun ity  to  r ev iew  eac h o f  thes e items  dur ing a  pr e- meet ing.   T he C hair man w ill announc e the agenda and pr ov ide an oppor tun ity  for                                  
member s  o f  the aud ienc e and the Plan Commis s ion to  r eques t  that  an item be r emov ed and c ons ider ed s epar ate ly .                           

Mot ion   was made by Commissioner Paris to appr ov e    the Consent Agenda. Seconded by Commissioner Abell. Mot ion c ar r ied     : 6  Ayes, 1  Abstention by Commissioner Jenkins. 
 
        

1. MINUTES  
 

a. Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the April 22, 2024 meeting. APPROVED   

 

2. PLATS  
 

a. P 24-11 Urbana Centerville Addition -- Final Plat APPROVED   

 

b. P 24-12 Urban Village at Rosehill -- Final Plat APPROVED   

 

c. P 24-14 Faulkner Point No.7 First Replat -- Final Plat APPROVED   

 



        

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 
 

Speaker Regulations:

Anyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must f i l l  out a speaker   
card and give it to the Plan Commission Secretary before speaking (cards are
located at the entrance to the Council Chambers).  The Chairman will recognize
speakers; he may impose a t ime limit and may provide for rebuttal.  All comments
and testimony are to be presented from the podium.

 

 

3. ZONING  
 

a. Consideration of the application of U-Haul Company of East Dallas , requesting approval of
1) a Change in Zoning from Industrial (IN) District to a Planned Development (PD) District; 2) a
Specific Use Provision for a Truck/Bus Sales & Leasing/Rental Use and 3) a Detail Plan for a
Truck/Bus Sales & Leasing/Rental Use. This property is located at 2502, 2504 and 2550
McCree Road. (District 5) (File Z 23-50)

The applicant, Matt Merrill, 2502 McCree Road, Garland, Texas 75041, provided an overview of
the request and remained available for questions. 

Commissioner Dalton asked the applicant if propane was still being sold at the location.

The applicant confirmed that propane is still being sold on property. 

Commissioner Rose asked the applicant how open he was to a 10 or 15 year SUP versus a 30
year which is what they are requesting.

The applicant explained that the reason behind the 30 year SUP request is that what they are
requesting would be a substantial investment and they have no intention of selling the property.
The applicant explained that for financing purposes they would have to do a 20 year financing
plan but that the Board would have to decide if they decided to go with a 20 year SUP request to
match the minimum financing terms but that they would possibly be open to that. 

Commissioner Aubin asked the applicant about the Retail Use permitted request they made.

The applicant explained that the Retail Use permitted request was made to be an allowed use as
part of the PD, and while they will still be selling boxes, boxing tape and hitches as an
accessory use, the main use at the property would be truck and trailer rentals. 

Commissioner Aubin asked the applicant if they intend to increase the retail use in the future. 

The applicant explained that at the moment they have no other plans. 

Commissioner Abell asked the applicant to confirm that the current retail they have at the
adjacent location would simply be moving to the new location.

The applicant confirmed that to be the case. 

Commissioner Aubin asked the applicant if they had plans to increase the footprint of the
existing building.

The applicant confirmed that they would be keeping the pre-manufactured building but would
essentially be remodeling it completely. 

Commissioner Jenkins applauded the applicant for their willingness to work with City staff on
their recommendations. 

The applicant commended the efforts by City staff to come to an agreement on the proposed
development.

Chair Roberts also commended staff for the recommendations they made on uses and the

APPROVED   



landscaping. He did ask for clarification on the types of propane they would be selling and if
they were residential or would they also be able to refill the propane tanks on RV's. 

The applicant clarified that they have a 3,000 gallon tank on site that would allow them to refill
most anything. 

Chair Roberts asked staff about the sign difference and if that was based on the PD and not the
GDC.

Staff confirmed that the sign conditions would be a trade off through the PD and not GDC
variances. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Aubin to approve the application as presented with the
provision that instead of citing exclusions, citing inclusions per the use being presented by the
applicant, and granting the SUP for a twenty-year period. Seconded by Commissioner Jenkins.
Motion carr ied : 7 Ayes, 0 Nays. 

 

4. ADJOURN

There being no further business to come before the Plan Commission, the meeting adjourned at
7:19 p.m. 

 

 
CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS  

 
/s/ Scott Roberts, Chairman  /s/ Elisa Morales, Secretary



GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 2. a.            
Meeting Date: 06/10/2024  
Item Tit le:  P 24-15 Linda Ray Addition - Replat
Summary:
P 24-15 Linda Ray Addition-- Replat

Attachments
P 24-15 Linda Ray Addition - Replat Report & Attachments



Planning Report 
File No: P 24-15 /District 2 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: June 10, 2024 
 
REPLAT 
Linda Ray Addition Replat 
 
LOCATION 
1540 Edgefield Drive 
 
ZONING 
Planned Development (PD) District 23-41 
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
Two (2) total lots 

 
ACREAGE 
12.852 acres 
 
BACKGROUND 
The purpose of this Replat to create two (2) lots of record for a senior living multi-family 
development. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of the Replat. All technical requirements have been addressed and the plat is in 
order as submitted.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. 24 x 36 Plat  
 
PREPARED BY:                                       REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton                                  Angela Self, FAICP 
Development Planner                               Interim Director of Planning                              
Planning and Development                                    
972-205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov 
  
 
 
 



RO
CK CREEK DR

ARMSTRONG DR

ED
G

EFIELD
 D

R

EW
IN

G
 D

R

JOYCE DR

CEDAR D
R

MORRIS DR

W
ES

TS
ID

E 
ST

R
U

SS
EL

L 
D

R

FREEMAN DR

CEDAR CIR

LINDEN LN

EV
ER

G
R

EE
N

 S
T

S G
LENBRO

O
K DR

P D  9 9 - 3 8P D  9 9 - 3 8

P D  8 4 - 9 7P D  8 4 - 9 7

C RC R

S  0 1 - 4 7S  0 1 - 4 7

M F - 1M F - 1 P D  8 2 - 9 4P D  8 2 - 9 4

P D  7 9 - 0 2P D  7 9 - 0 2

C RC R

S F - 1 0S F - 1 0

S F - 7S F - 7

M F - 1M F - 1

P D  2 3 - 4 1P D  2 3 - 4 1

¯
0 175 350 Feet

1 inch = 262 feet PLAT MAP P 24-15 INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



Text
 EDGEFIELD  DRIVE

Text
 ARMSTRONG DRIVE

Text
 RUSSELL  DRIVE

Text
 CEDAR  DRIVE

Text
 EDGEFIELD  DRIVE

Text
 POINT OF BEGINNING

Text
 KANSAS CITY SOUTHERN RAILROAD

Text
 EDGEFIELD  DRIVE

Text
 0'

Text
 60'

Text
 120'

Text
 180'

Text
 R I N G L E Y   &   A S S O C I A T E S ,   I N C .

Text
 SURVEYING  MAPPING  PLANNING

Text
 LINDA RAY ADDITION REPLAT LOTS 1 & 2, BLOCK A 12.852 Acres a Replat of BLOCK A, LINDA RAY ADDITION situated in the Abner Keen Survey, Abstract No. 735 City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas City Case No.  230727-1



Text
 EDGEFIELD  DRIVE

Text
 CEDAR  DRIVE

Text
 0'

Text
 30'

Text
 60'

Text
 90'

Text
 R I N G L E Y   &   A S S O C I A T E S ,   I N C .

Text
 SURVEYING  MAPPING  PLANNING

Text
 LINDA RAY ADDITION REPLAT LOTS 1 & 2, BLOCK A 12.852 Acres a Replat of BLOCK A, LINDA RAY ADDITION situated in the Abner Keen Survey, Abstract No. 735 City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas City Case No.  230727-1



Text
 ’ ’ ’ ’ – “ ” “ ” –

Text
 R I N G L E Y   &   A S S O C I A T E S ,   I N C .

Text
 SURVEYING  MAPPING  PLANNING

Text
 LINDA RAY ADDITION REPLAT LOTS 1 & 2, BLOCK A 12.852 Acres a Replat of BLOCK A, LINDA RAY ADDITION situated in the Abner Keen Survey, Abstract No. 735 City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas City Case No.  230727-1



GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 2. b.            
Meeting Date: 06/10/2024  
Item Tit le:  P 24-16 Garland Shiloh Addition - Replat
Summary:
P 24-16 Garland Shiloh Addition -- Replat

Attachments
P 24-16 Garland Shiloh Addition - Replat Report & Attachments



Planning Report 
File No: P 24-16 /District 7 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: June 10, 2024 
 
REPLAT 
Garland Shiloh Addition Second Replat 
 
LOCATION 
4680 North Shiloh Road 
 
ZONING 
Planned Development (PD) District 23-44 
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
Two (2) total lots 

 
ACREAGE 
1.071 acres 
 
BACKGROUND 
The purpose of this Replat to create two (2) lots of record for a restaurant drive-through. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of the Replat. All technical requirements have been addressed and the plat is in 
order as submitted.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. 24 x 36 Plat  
 
PREPARED BY:                                       REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton                                  Angela Self, FAICP 
Development Planner                               Interim Director of Planning                              
Planning and Development                                    
972-205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov 
  
 
 
 



N
 S

H
IL

O
H

 R
D

AR
RO

W
CR

ES
T

LN

ARAPAHO RD

ARROWCREST CT

S F - 7S F - 7

P D  8 3 - 1 4 3P D  8 3 - 1 4 3

P D  9 9 - 4 9P D  9 9 - 4 9

P D  0 2 - 2 8P D  0 2 - 2 8P D  9 9 - 1 4P D  9 9 - 1 4

P D  2 0 - 3 5P D  2 0 - 3 5

P D  0 8 - 4 5P D  0 8 - 4 5
A GA G

P D  1 4 - 0 9P D  1 4 - 0 9

S  1 5 - 3 4S  1 5 - 3 4

S  2 0 - 4 3S  2 0 - 4 3

P D  1 7 - 3 2P D  1 7 - 3 2

P D  1 3 - 2 8P D  1 3 - 2 8

A GA G

P D  1 7 - 3 2P D  1 7 - 3 2

P DP D
1 7 - 4 01 7 - 4 0

P DP D
1 9 - 0 61 9 - 0 6

P D  2 0 - 3 5P D  2 0 - 3 5

P D / S  2 3 - 4 4P D / S  2 3 - 4 4

P D  2 2 - 6 4P D  2 2 - 6 4

4413

2321

2306

2305

2314

23252329

4305

2317

2322 2318

2302

2326

4309

22602309

2301

2313

2310

2350

2266

2402

2302

4680

2620
2630

2602

2301

4685

2476

4688

4684

¯
0 100 200 Feet

1 inch = 153 feet PLAT MAP P 24-16 INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST





GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 3. a.            
Meeting Date: 06/10/2024  
Item Tit le:  Z 22-28 IBC Constructions, LLC
Summary:
Consideration of the application of IBC Constructions, LLC, requesting approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision for
a Fuel Pumps, Retail Use and 2) a Plan for a Fuel Pumps, Retail Use, Convenience Store, Laundry, Self-Serve
(Laundromat) and Retail   Store Uses on a property zoned Community Retail (CR) District. This property is located at
1270 Pleasant Valley Road. (District 1) (File Z 22-28)

Attachments
Z 22-28 IBC Constructions, LLC Report & Attachments
Z 22-28 IBC Constructions, LLC Responses



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 22-28/District 1 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: June 10, 2024  
 
REQUESTS 
Approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision for a Fuel Pumps, Retail Use and 2) a Plan for a  Fuel 
Pumps, Retail Use, Convenience Store, Laundry, Self-Serve (Laundromat) and Retail Store 
Uses on a property zoned Community Retail (CR) District. 
 
LOCATION 
1270 Pleasant Valley Road 
 
APPLICANT 
IBC Constructions, LLC. 
 
OWNER 
Pleasant Valley Properties, LLC. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property is currently undeveloped. The applicant proposes to construct Fuel 
Pumps, Retail Store (Building B) and a Convenience Store and Laundromat (Building A). 
 
The GDC requires a Specific Use Provision for a Fuel Pumps, Retail Use in the Community 
Retail (CR) District. 
 
SITE DATA 
The subject property consists of approximately 3.34 acres. The site has approximately 416 
linear feet of frontage along Pleasant Valley Road and 342 lineal feet of frontage along 
North Country Club Road. The site can be accessed from North Country Club Road and 
Pleasant Valley Road. 
 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is zoned Community Retail (CR) District. The Community Retail (CR) 
district is intended to accommodate a variety of retail, service, and business establishments 
that may or may not be designed in a shopping center configuration. The district may be 
used as a transition district between lower intensity retail or office uses and more intense 
uses. A CR district is generally appropriate along major transportation corridors but is 
generally not appropriate in proximity to low-density residential districts without significant 
buffering and screening features. An example of an allowed use in a CR district is a retail 
shopping area that may be large in scale with very limited or no outside storage. Traffic 
generated by uses in a CR district must be focused onto the major thoroughfare network. 
Development in a CR district may not be designed in a manner that increases traffic through 
residential areas. 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS  
  
1. Site Plan 

The site plan (Exhibit C) reflects two (2) proposed buildings and a fuel canopy with 
twelve (12) fueling positions. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Building A will be 10,000 square feet only for retail use and Building B will be 9,982 
square feet and will consist of a convenience store and laundromat. 
 
The Fuel Pumps, Retail Use requires a Specific Use Provision in the Community Retail 
(CR) District. The Laundromat, Retail Store and Convenience Store are permitted uses in 
the Community Retail (CR) District.  
 

 
2. Parking 

This development requires a total of seventy (70) parking spaces. The site plan (Exhibit 
C) reflects seventy-five (75) spaces.  
  

3. Screening and Landscaping 
The GDC requires perimeter screening when a non-residential development is adjacent 
to a residential development. The properties to the southeast are single-family homes. 
The applicant proposes a six (6)-foot masonry wall with large canopy trees along  the 
residential properties. Although not required, the applicant proposes a six (6)-foot 
ornamental fence along with large canopy trees and shrubs along the northeastern 
property line.  
 
The site meets the applicable screening and landscaping standards per the GDC. 

 
4. Building Design: 

The proposed building elevations meets the building design standards per the GDC. 
 

5. Specific Use Provision 
The applicant requests a Specific Use Provision time period of fifteen (15) years for the 
Fuel Pumps, Retail Use. 

 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Envision Garland Plan designates the subject property as Compact Neighborhoods.   
Compact neighborhoods provide areas for moderate increases in residential density, 
including single-family attached and single-family detached housing. It expands housing 
options through infill and redevelopment, while continuing walkable development patterns. 
 
The proposed use is a supportive use to the residential properties.  
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN 
The proposed use is considered to be “Retail Strip” per the Economic Development Strategic 
Plan; this category represents a property tax revenue per acre at $8,439. In addition, the 
proposal brings new employment and sales tax to Garland. 
 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The properties to the north, across Pleasant Valley Road, are zoned Single-Family-7 (SF-7) 
District.  The property directly to the northeast is zoned Community Retail (CR) District; it is 
developed with retail uses. The properties to the southeast are zoned Single-Family-7 (SF-
7) District; it is developed with single-family homes. The properties to the southwest, across 
North Country Club Road, are zoned Community Retail (CR) District; it is developed with a 
gas station, convenience store and church. 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision for a Fuel Pumps, Retail Use and 2) a Plan for a Fuel 
Pumps, Retail Use, Convenience Store, Laundry, Self-Serve (Laundromat) and Retail Store 
Uses on a property zoned Community Retail (CR) District. 
 
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Location Map 
Exhibits 
SUP Conditions 
Photos 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: July 2, 2024 
 
 
PREPARED BY:      REVIEWED BY: 
Nabiha Ahmed   Angela Self, FAICP 
Lead Development Planner  Interim Director of Planning 
Planning & Development 
(972) 205-2453  
nahmed@garlandtx.gov 

mailto:nahmed@garlandtx.gov


1422

1718

1137SUNSET D
R

SUNSET

CIR

N
 C

O
U

N
TR

Y 
C

LU
B 

R
D

PLE
ASANT VA

LL
EY R

D

PHOENIX
DR

W
HITEO

AK

DR

LA
VENDALE

 LN

D
R

IF
TW

O
O

D
 C

IR

TR
EE

C
E 

TR
L

TWILIGHT DR

NORTHVIEW
 CIR

BOSQUE DR

MEANDERING
WY

LARCHWOOD CIR

PUEBLO DR
MISTY WY

DELORES DR

E BUCKINGHAM RD

DEEPWOOD DR

DELL OAK DR

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

1317

1722

1713

1745

1326

1418

1205

1234

1409

1713

1322

1713

1405

1141

1201

1401

1310

1721

1729
1221

1113

1238

1101

1730

1717

1314

1601

1122

1402

1429

1714

1410

1230

1413

1721

1241

1242

1321

1405

1406

1413

1709 1710

1725

1209

1421

1705

1237

1705

1726

1125 1738

1709

1733

1734

1325

1213

1318

17061751

1401

1729

1737

1709

1717

1138

1225

1425

1226

1105

1409

1109
1309

1233
1222

1433

1229

1725

1414

1313

1290

1731

1675

1270

1280

ZONING MAP Z 22-28
¯

0 150 300 Feet
1 inch = 238 feet

1270 Pleasant Valley Road

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 

 
SPECIFIC USE PROVISION CONDITIONS 

 
 

ZONING FILE Z 22-28 
 

1270 Pleasant Valley Road 
 

I. Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Specific 
Use Provision is to allow the Fuel Pumps, Retail Use. 
 

II.  Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision 
shall not affect any regulation found in the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior 
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically 
provided herein. 
 

III. Abandonment:   In the event the land use for which this 
Specific Use Provision was granted (“Land Use”) is 
abandoned, the SUP and all rights to the Land Use are 
automatically terminated, and the premises must be used 
in conformance with the PD, GDC, federal, and state 
law.  
 
For the purposes of this Specific Use Provision, 
Abandonment is any of the following acts: 
 

 
A. A failure to apply for a site or building permit on 

the premises, where applicable, within 180 days of 
the effective date of this SUP; 
 

B. A failure to obtain a certificate of occupancy for 
the Land use within 730 days of the effective date 
of this SUP; 
 

C. A failure to commence operating the Land Use on the 
premises within 90 days of receiving a final 
certificate of occupancy for the Land Use; 
 

D. Discontinuance of the Land Use for a period of 180 
days; 
 

E. Applying for, and receiving, a new Certificate of 
Occupancy for a use other than the Land Use; or 

 
F. Operating a use on the premises, whether as a 

primary or secondary use, that is not allowed within 
the PD District, by the GDC, or by state or federal 
law. 

 
The termination of utilities on the premises for a 
period of 180 calendar days is prima facie evidence of 
abandonment and the owner shall have the burden to 
prove that the Land Use has not been abandoned. 
 
 



SUP Requirements 
Zoning File 22-28 
Page 2 

EXHIBIT B 

IV. General Regulations:  All regulations of the 
Industrial (IN) District as set forth in Chapter 2 of 
the Garland Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are 
included by reference and shall apply, except as 
otherwise specified by this ordinance. 

 
V. Specific Use Provision: 
 

A. SUP Time Period: The Specific Use Provision time 
period for the Fuel Pumps, Retail Use shall be for 
fifteen (15) years.   
 

B. Site Plan: The site layout, building placement, 
parking shall be in general conformance with the 
approved Site Plan labeled Exhibit C. 

 
C. Landscape Plan: Landscaping and Screening shall be 

in conformance with Exhibit D. 
 
E. Elevations: Building Elevations shall be in general 

conformance with the elevations labeled Exhibit E. 
 

F. Signage:  All signage shall comply with the 
standards in the Garland Development Code. 
 

 
 
 

 



15.00' CITY
UTILITY
EASEMENT

15.00' CITY
UTILITY

EASEMENT

24' WIDE FIRELANE 24' WIDE FIRELANE

24' WIDE FIRELANE

24' WIDE FIRELANE

24
' W

ID
E 

FI
R

EL
AN

E

24
' W

ID
E 

FI
R

EL
AN

E

24
' W

ID
E 

FI
R

EL
AN

E

24' WIDE FIRELANE

24
' W

ID
E 

FI
R

EL
AN

E

24' WIDE DRIVE WAY

24' W
ID

E D
R

IVE W
AY

24' WIDE DRIVE WAY

27'-8" WIDE DRIVE WAY

24'-3" W
ID

E D
R

IVE W
AY

PLEASANT VALLEY ROAD
(100' WIDE ROW)

LP

FHGPLS

SSCO

LP

LOT 2, BLOCK 1

PLEASANT VALLEY ROAD

ADDITION

INST. NO. 201100320597

O.P.R.D.C.T.

PP

LP

LOT 23

LP

WV

LOT 8 LOT 22

LP

TPED
TPED

LOT 7

BLOCK R

LOT 6

NORTHLAKE ESTATES NO. 9

VOL. 77112, PG. 2234

D.R.D.C.T.

LOT 5

LOT 1

C
O

U
N

TR
Y 

C
LU

B 
R

O
AD

(1
00

' W
ID

E 
R

O
W

)

BUILDING-B

BUILDING-A
 RETAILS=10,000 sqft

LP

SS
FND. 1/2" I.R

FND. 1/2" I.R

1/2" FIR

FND. 1/2" I.R

W
AL

K 
W

AY
 6

'-6
" W

ID
E

SIDE WALK WAY 4'-0" WIDE

SIDE WALK WAY 5'-0" WIDE

BA
C

K 
SI

D
E 

W
AL

K 
W

AY
 5

'-6
" W

ID
E

FRONT SIDE WALK WAY 6'-0" WIDE

STM INLET
3.0 AC (1971)

Q: 9.0 cfs (1971)

1.5' Max sawcut
distance from edge of
existing asphalt
pavement, typ.

STM INLET
IE=512.72'

6' Proposed Sidewalk

ZONED: SF-7

10' BSBL

ST
M

 IN
LE

T
RI

M
=5

18
.0

0
IE

 5
13

.7
1'

10
' B

SB
L

6.1'
Existing
Sidewalk

LANDSCAPE
ESM'T

SIDEWALK AND
UTILITY ESM'T 16'

ST
M

 IN
LE

T
R

IM
=5

18
.6

'
IE

 5
14

.6
'

Riser
Rm

Riser
Rm

TRAFFIC LIGHT

5' WIDE WALKWAY

5' WIDE WALKWAY

PP

Riser
Rm

CONOPY
80'-0" x 136'-8"

H
/C

H
/C

H/C H/C
VAN

H/C

VAN

H
/C

PP

PPPP

11' ROW
DEDICATION

Car storage distance
30 ft from the ROW.

Car storage distance 28 ft
from the ROW.

LOADING
ZONE
25'x12'

LOADING
ZONE
25'x12'

MPD-1MPD-2

MPD-4 MPD-3

MPD-6 MPD-5

MPD-8 MPD-7

MPD-10 MPD-9

MPD-12 MPD-11

CONVENIENCE
STORE=4,991 sqft &

LAUNDROMAT=4,991
sqft

=9,982 Sqft

Retail= 10,000
sqft

1.5' Max sawcut
distance from edge of
existing asphalt
pavement, typ.

VAN

31'-0" W
ID

E D
R

IVE W
AY

24'-0" WIDE
DRIVE WAY

City of Garland Benchmarks
Bearing based on Texas state plane coordinates, North central zone, 4202,
NAD83-us survey feet, derived from gps observations and tied to the city of
Garland geodetic control.

Legend
~ Building Area

~ Site Triangle
~ Proposed wrought
   iron fence
~ Proposed Curb and Gutter

~ Proposed Water Meter

~ Proposed Sanitary Cleanout

~ Site Boundary

~ Proposed Curb Inlet

~ Proposed Catch Basin

~ Proposed Water

~ Proposed Sewer

SURVEY NOTE:
These drawings have been prepared without benefit of current title report.
There may be conditions or easements that effect this subject property.
All existing filed data has been taken from GeoNav LLC.

SITE AND BUILDING IMPERVIOUS COVER:
1. TOTAL SITE AREA: 145,319 SF (3.34 AC)
2. TOTAL IMPERVIOUS COVER: 82881.05 SF (1.90 AC)
3. EXISTING IMPERVIOUS COVER: 0 SF (0.0 AC)
4. PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS COVER: 82881.05 SF (1.90 AC)
5. PERCENTAGE OF SITE COVERED BY IMPERVIOUS COVER: 63%
6. MAXIMUM ALLOWED IMPERVIOUS COVER:
7. BUILDING COVERAGES: 19,982SF (NEW); 0 SF (OLD)
8. MISCELLANEOUS COVERAGES: 82881.05 SF

DUMPSTER PAD, RETAINING WALL
9. PROPOSED LAND USE: COMMERCIAL
10. ZONING: PD 22-28 CR
11. HEIGHT OF BUILDING: SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS

GPS 085-2" BRASS DISK
N:6996087.91
E:2553351.66
Z:505.71'

GPS 086-2" BRASS DISK
N:6997519.56
E:2554857.47
Z:492.70''

5'

8''W

General Site Data
LOT

ZONING
LOT AREA (SF)

LAND USE

BUILDING AREA (SF)

Bldg A

Bldg B

BUILDING HEIGHT
Stories/Feet

Bldg A
Bldg B

LOT COVERAGE
FLOOR AREA RATIO
Parking

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

PARKING REQ'D

PARKING PROVIDED

HC PARKING REO'D

HC PARKING PROVIDED

PD 22-28 CR
145,319 SF

Gas Station, Convenience Store, Fuel Pump and Retail.

Convenience Store=4,991sqft Laundromat=4,991 sqft

Retail= 10,000 sqft

1 Story - 30'-0"
1 Story - 35'-0"

13.75%
0.1375:1

Convenience Store: 1 per 250 SF floor
space;Laundromat: 1 per 250 SF; Retail 1 per 333
SF floor space
70

75 Total parking spaces

4 - Total HC; 2 of 3 must be Van Accessible

6-Regular HC, 3-Van,  accessible+66 Cars
=Total:75

SITE DATA SUMMARY

Rear (S) 20 FT

SETBACKS
Type

Front (N)

Side (W)

Side (E)

Required

30 FT

10 FT

10 FT

Provided

190'-3" Ft

169'-3" FT

116'-0" FT

59'-0" FT

(Building-A)

Rear (S) 0 FT

SETBACKS
Type

Front (N)

Side (W)

Side (E)

Required

30 FT

0 FT

10 FT FOR FIRE

Provided

249'-0" Ft

31'-6" FT

223'-6" FT

35'-3" FT

(Building-B)

~ Proposed CMU WALL

~ Proposed Water Fountain

~ Proposed Benches

~ Proposed Light Pole

SHEET CONTENTS:

DATE: April-16-2024

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R

:

IS
SU

E 
R

EC
O

R
D

:
D

A
TE

:
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
:

JR
 S

h
op

p
in

g
 C

en
te

r
12

70
 P

le
as

an
t 

V
al

le
y

G
ar

la
nd

, 
tx

A
PR

IL
 2

8-
20

22
SU

B
M

IT

N
O

V
 - 

30
-2

02
2

R
E-

SU
B

M
IT

JA
N

 - 
10

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

FE
B

 - 
02

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

D
O

-2

D
O

-3

D
O

-4

D
O

-1

FE
B

 - 
03

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

AD
R

ES
S:

 5
55

 R
ep

ub
lic

 D
r S

ui
te

 3
12

A,
 P

la
no

,
TX

 7
50

74
, U

SA
..

Ph
on

e:
 4

69
-6

62
-5

24
8

Em
ai

l: 
in

fo
@

ib
c-

co
ns

tru
ct

io
ns

.c
om

SITE PLAN

SITE PLAN1
SCALE: 1":30'

1 SP-1CASE NO.
210622-2

EXH
IB

IT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
152'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
136'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
17'-11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
208'

AutoCAD SHX Text
49'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
41'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
194'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INLEF RIM=517.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
37' FEET ACCESS  EASEMENT INST 201100320597

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 43°34'44" E  ~  330.00'330.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 44°47'00" W  ~  494.18'494.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' CONCRETE ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SIDEWALK PEDESTRIAN &  UTILITY EASEMENT (INST. 20070175222)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 44°47'00" E  ~ 63.80'63.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15' SIDEWALK PUE (INST. 20070175222)

AutoCAD SHX Text
R= 674.02' L= 344.69'  D= 29°18'03" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUS STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER 14'X12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' wide Declaration lane

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 44°47'00" E  ~ 196.96'196.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 44°47'00" E  ~ 196.25'196.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED  15' SIDEWALK PUE  (INST. 20070175222)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION POND EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER QUALITY TREATMENT DEVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED  WROUGHT IRON FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CMU WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CMU WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
27'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
38'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
04

AutoCAD SHX Text
07

AutoCAD SHX Text
09

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =

AutoCAD SHX Text
30ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
60



SHRUBS

PLANT SCHEDULE
CODE

PIS CHI

TREES QTY

15

QUE SHU         35

QUE VIR 17

ULM CRA          2

CODE

ILE BUR

ILE NAN

JUN BR2

QTY

44

142

60

MUH CAP

NAN LBO 13

BOTANICAL NAME

Pistacia chinensis

Quercus shumardii

Quercus virginiana

Ulmus crassifolia

BOTANICAL NAME

Ilex cornuta 'Burfordii Nana'

Ilex vomitoria 'Nana'

Juniperus virginiana 'Brodie'

Muhlenbergia capillaris

Nandina domestica

COMMON NAME

Chinese Pistache

Shumard Oak

Southern Live Oak

Cedar Elm

COMMON NAME

Dwarf Burford Holly

Dwarf Yaupon Holly

Brodie Eastern Redcedar

Pink Muhly Grass

Heavenly Bamboo

SIZE

4" Cal.

4" Cal.

4" Cal.

4" Cal.

SIZE

5 gal.

5 gal.

15 gal.

5 gal.

7 gal. 36" Min

HEIGHT

10` Min.

12` Height Min

12` Height Min

12` Height Min

HEIGHT

24" min.

18"-24"

8` Min Ht

SPACING

30` O.C. Minimum

30` O.C. Minimum

As Shown

As Shown

SPACING

36" O.C.

36" O.C.

60" O.C.

36" O.C.

36" O.C.

REMARKS

Single Straight Trunk

Single Straight Trunk

Single Straight Trunk

Single Straight Trunk

REMARKS

53

PLEASANT VALLEY ROAD
(100' WIDE ROW)

LP

FHGPLS

SSCO

LP

LOT 2, BLOCK 1

PLEASANT VALLEY ROAD

ADDITION

INST. NO. 201100320597

O.P.R.D.C.T.

PP

LP

LOT 23

WV

LOT 8

LP

TPED
TPED

LOT 7

LOT 6

NORTHLAKE ESTATES NO. 9

VOL. 77112, PG. 2234

LOT 5

LOT 1

C
O

U
N

TR
Y 

C
LU

B 
R

O
AD

(1
00

' W
ID

E 
R

O
W

)

BUILDING-B

BUILDING-A
 RETAILS=10,000 sqft

LP

SS
FND. 1/2" I.R

FND. 1/2" I.R

1/2" FIR

FND. 1/2" I.R

W
AL

K 
W

AY
 6

'-6
" W

ID
E

SIDE WALK WAY 4'-0" WIDE

SIDE WALK WAY 5'-0" WIDE

BA
C

K 
SI

D
E 

W
AL

K 
W

AY
 5

'-6
" W

ID
E

FRONT SIDE WALK WAY 6'-0" WIDE

STM INLET

3.0 AC (1971)

Q: 9.0 cfs (1971)

1.5' Max sawcut
distance from edge of
existing asphalt
pavement, typ.

STM INLET
IE=512.72'

6' Proposed Sidewalk

10' BSBL

ST
M

 IN
LE

T
RI

M
=5

18
.0

0
IE

 5
13

.7
1'

10
' B

SB
L

6.1'
Existing
Sidewalk

LANDSCAPE
ESM'T

SIDEWALK AND
UTILITY ESM'T 16'

ST
M

 IN
LE

T
R

IM
=5

18
.6

'
IE

 5
14

.6
'

Riser
Rm

Riser
Rm

TRAFFIC LIGHT

5' WIDE WALKWAY

5' WIDE WALKWAY

PP

Riser
Rm

CONOPY
80'-0" x 136'-8"

H
/C

H
/C

H/C H/C
VAN

H/C

VAN

H
/C

PP

PPPP

11' ROW
DEDICATION

Car storage distance
30 ft from the ROW.

Car storage distance 28 ft
from the ROW.

LOADING
ZONE
25'x12'

LOADING
ZONE
25'x12'

MPD-1MPD-2

MPD-4 MPD-3

MPD-6 MPD-5

MPD-8 MPD-7

MPD-10 MPD-9

MPD-12 MPD-11

CONVENIENCE
STORE=4,991 sqft &

LAUNDROMAT=4,991
sqft

=9,982 Sqft

Retail= 10,000
sqft

1.5' Max sawcut
distance from edge of
existing asphalt
pavement, typ.

VAN

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"
CMU SCREEN WALL - ELEVATION2

3 CMU SCREEN WALL - PLAN
SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"

8"CMU
BLOCK

4" CMU
VENEER

A

A

GRADE GRADE
FOOTING

GRADE GRADE

2" CAP

SEE 5/A1.1
FOR DETAIL

28"

16
"

6' TYP.

6'
-8

"

O
N

 S
IT

E
4"

6'
-2

"

SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"
PIER DETAIL5 4 SECTION A-A

SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"

12" Ø

#3 STIRRUP
@ 12" O.C.

4 - #3
REBAR

4 - #3
REBAR

#3 STIRRUP
@ 12" O.C.

8"
 C

M
U

 B
LO

C
K

4"
 C

M
U

 V
EN

EE
R

2" CAP

O
N

 S
IT

E
8"

12" Ø

6"

6'6'
-8

"

6'

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"
WROUGHT IRON FENCE ELEVATION2

SHEET CONTENTS:

DATE: April-16-2024

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R

:

IS
SU

E 
R

EC
O

R
D

:
D

A
TE

:
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
:

JR
 S

h
op

p
in

g
 C

en
te

r
12

70
 P

le
as

an
t 

V
al

le
y

G
ar

la
nd

, 
tx

A
PR

IL
 2

8-
20

22
SU

B
M

IT

N
O

V
 - 

30
-2

02
2

R
E-

SU
B

M
IT

JA
N

 - 
10

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

FE
B

 - 
02

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

D
O

-2

D
O

-3

D
O

-4

D
O

-1

FE
B

 - 
03

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

AD
R

ES
S:

 5
55

 R
ep

ub
lic

 D
r S

ui
te

 3
12

A,
 P

la
no

,
TX

 7
50

74
, U

SA
..

Ph
on

e:
 4

69
-6

62
-5

24
8

Em
ai

l: 
in

fo
@

ib
c-

co
ns

tru
ct

io
ns

.c
om

LANDSCAPE
PLAN

LANDSCAPE PLAN1
SCALE: 1":30'

1

C-9.0CASE NO.
210622-2

EXH
IB

IT D

AutoCAD SHX Text
 MASONRY WALL FENCING (6' MIN. HT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WROUGHT FENCING (6' MIN. HT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCING (6' MIN. HT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCING (6' MIN. HT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHEAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHEAST  AND  SOUTHWEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCREEN BETWEEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
5735.00 SF PERMEABLE DECORATIVE PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
9057.67 SF DETENTION POUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
27663.28 SF LANDSCAPE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
145319.34 X 10% =14531.9 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
10% OF SITE SHALL BE LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF GΑRLΑND LΑNDSCΑPE REQUREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NA

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 TREE PER 10 PARKING SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED                         PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCREENING ZONING DISTRICTS (AS PER PLAN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'/30 X 7 =3 TREE, 21 SHRUBS   3 TREES 21 SHRUBS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5% OF PARKING LOT SHALL BE LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 ISLAND W/ TREE AT TERMINUS OF EACH ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED (50% MIN. EVERGREEN)     PROVIDED (50% MIN. EVERGREEN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR EVERY 30 LF PROVIDE 1 TREE AND 7 SHRUBS

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPE STREET BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUB REQURED IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET TREES AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SETBACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKNG LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL= 42455.95  (29.21 %)    

AutoCAD SHX Text
1383.16 SF                         2575.95 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM INLEF RIM=517.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
37' FEET ACCESS  EASEMENT INST 201100320597

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 43°34'44" E  ~  330.00'330.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 44°47'00" W  ~  494.18'494.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' CONCRETE ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SIDEWALK PEDESTRIAN &  UTILITY EASEMENT (INST. 20070175222)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 44°47'00" E  ~ 63.80'63.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 15' SIDEWALK PUE (INST. 20070175222)

AutoCAD SHX Text
R= 674.02' L= 344.69'  D= 29°18'03" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUS STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER 14'X12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' wide Declaration lane

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 44°47'00" E  ~ 196.96'196.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 44°47'00" E  ~ 196.25'196.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED  15' SIDEWALK PUE  (INST. 20070175222)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CMU WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =

AutoCAD SHX Text
30ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
60



NORTH WEST ELEVATION - BUILDING A1 1

T.O. PARAPET
130'-0"

T.O. ROOF
120'-6"

T.O. WATER SHED
113'-6"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

4.4

4.2

4.3

4.1 4.5

7.17.1
7.1

4.7

4.5 8.1 4.6

4.6

7.2

4.1 8.1

4.7

7.2

4.1

16.1

T.O. PARAPET
130'-0"

T.O. ROOF
120'-6"

T.O. WATER SHED
113'-6"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

4.4

4.3

16.1

8.1

375.69 Sqft.

34.03 Sqft.

268.94 Sqft.

4.1

4.2

4.3

6.79 %

0.61 %

4.86 %

NORTH WEST ELEVATION 5529.96 Sqft.

4.5

4.6

4.7

243.45 Sqft.

1011.64 Sqft.

227.06 Sqft.

4.40 %

18.29 %

4.10 %

4.4 682.64 Sqft. 12.34 %

7.1

7.2

8.1

50.27 Sqft.

115.78 Sqft.

0.90 %

2.09 %

1537.45 Sqft. 27.80 %

4.8 4.8

4.8 985.77 Sqft. 17.82 %

7.2 7.2

NORTH EAST ELEVATION - BUILDING A2
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

1

T.O. PARAPET
130'-0"

T.O. ROOF
120'-6"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O.ROOF
119'-4"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. PARAPET
121'-6"

4.8

7.1

4.7

4.4

4.3

7.1

4.1

70.81 Sqft.

6.50 Sqft.

84.37 Sqft.

4.1

4.2

4.3

6.79 %

0.61 %

4.86 %

NORTH EAST ELEVATION               1247.32 Sqft.

4.7 77.41 Sqft. 4.10 %

4.4 521.65 Sqft. 12.34 %

7.1 7.56 Sqft. 0.90 %

4.8 469.94 Sqft. 17.82 %

PROPOSED SIGNAGE PROPOSED SIGNAGE

PROPOSED SIGNAGE

8.6

8.6 27.33 Sqft. 2.19 %

GENERAL NOTES:
1. METAL STUD SUPPLIER SHALL DESIGN AND DETAIL ALL METAL

STUDS, BRACING, CONNECTIONS, AND ATTACHMENTS TO MAIN
STRUCTURE AND SUBMIT STRUCTURAL CALCULATIONS AND
SHOP DRAWINGS FOR APPROVAL BY STRUCTURAL ENGINEER.

2. ALL COLUMNS, BEAMS, STRUCT., CONNECTIONS, AND CANOPY
DETAILS SHALL BE BUILT BASED ON STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS.

3. PROVIDE FIREPROOFING AT ALL REQUIRED INTERIOR STEEL
STRUCTURES.

4. INTERIOR FINISHES, PARTITION WALLS, RESTROOMS, MILLWORK,
ETC. ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THIS PLAN SET. ABOVE MENTIONED
ITEMS ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE FUTURE TENANTS.

5. STORE FRONT WINDOW SUPPLIER SHALL PROVIDE NECESSARY
DETAILS AND SHOP DRAWINGS FOR APPROVAL BY DESIGNER.

EXTERIOR CAVITY WALL NOTES:
1. ALL EXTERIOR STUDS TO BE HOT DEEP GALVANIZED 16 GAGE

METAL STUDS AT 16" O.C. (ASTM A525).
2. ALL EXTERIOR STUD SCREWS AND FASTENERS TO BE STAINLESS

STEEL WITH NEOPRENE WASHERS.
3. ALL METAL FLASHING ABOVE WINDOWS AND WHERE INDICATED

TO BE STAINLESS STEEL.
4. ALL EXTERIOR SHEATHING USED IN CAVITY WALLS TO BE GYPSUM
     SHEATHING W/ FIBERGLASS FACING (ex: DENS-GLASS SHEATHING).
5.  VERTICAL BRICK MOVEMENT JOINTS TO BE 20' O.C. MAX, UNLESS
     NOTED OTHERWISE, AND SHALL NOT CROSS LINTELS OR BRICK
     SHELF ANGLES.
6.  VAPOR BARRIER USED OVER SHEATHING TO BE WRAPPED ABOVE
     FLASHING AT THE BASE AND ABOVE WINDOW LOCATIONS.
7. APPLY MASONRY SEALER OVER EXTERIOR STONE VENEERS.

MATERIAL LEGEND:
APR. ROUGH STONE4.1

4.2

4.3

3" CAST STONE WATERTABLE,
COLOR: ORIGINAL.

4.4

5.1 PAINTED GALV. STEEL ROOF ACCESS
LADDER. PER STEEL CONTRACTOR.

PARAPET ALUMINUM METAL COPING
COLOR: GREY PAINT

7.2

7.3

7.1

8.1 SW1: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

PREFINISHED MTL SCUPPER & DOWNSPOUT,
COLOR: MATCH 7.2.

8.2 SW2: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

8.3 SW3: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

8.6

16.1

INSULATED HOLLOW MTL DOOR
COLOR: TO MATCH 8.1.

DECORATIVE EXTERIOR LIGHT
FIXTURE, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

DECORATIVE STONE VENEER

4.5 ARCHITECTURAL STONE VENEER

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
WITH GROOVING AS PER ARCH.
APPROVED COLOUR

4.6

ALUMINUM FLASHING
COLOR: PAINT TO MATCH 4.1

4.7

LIGHT GAUGE AWNING FRAME PRIME
& PAINT TYPE-2

NOTE: ALL NUMBERS (#1234)
REFER TO A SHERWIN-WILLIAMS
PRODUCT NUMBER.

1
4.8 7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO

AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

8.4 SW4: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

8.5 SW5: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM
STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR
APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

APR. ROUGH STONE

3" CAST STONE WATERTABLE,
COLOR: ORIGINAL.

ARCHITECTURAL STONE VENEER

PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

PARAPET ALUMINUM METAL COPING
APPROVED COLOR:
LIGHT GAUGE AWNING FRAME PRIME
& PAINT TYPE-2

DECORATIVE STONE VENNER

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO WITH
GROOVING AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR
PREFIN. STANDING SEAM METAL
ROOF TYP.
7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

APR. ROUGH STONE

3" CAST STONE WATERTABLE,
COLOR: ORIGINAL.

DECORATIVE STONE VENNER

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

PARAPET ALUMINUM METAL COPING
APPROVED COLOR:

PREFIN. STANDING SEAM METAL
ROOF TYP.
7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

INSULATED HOLLOW MTL DOOR
COLOR: TO MATCH 8.1.

PROPOSED SIGNAGE

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

QUOINS

TRANSOME

DISPLAY WINDOW

7.2

VARIED ROOF

QUOINS QUOINS

TRANSOME
TRANSOME

TRANSOME

DISPLAY WINDOW

VARIED ROOF

VARIED ROOF

QUOINS

DIVIDED LIGHT WINDOWSDIVIDED LIGHT WINDOWS
DIVIDED LIGHT WINDOWS

DIVIDED LIGHT WINDOWSCANOPY CANOPY CANOPY CANOPY

ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS
1

2

4

5

3

6

VARIED ROOF

DIVIDED LIGHT WINDOWS

TRANSOME

QUOINS

CANOPY

DISPLAY WINDOW

Type

A

Min.Required
14.42ft which is 30%
of street facing length

48 FT street facing length

4FT depth

Provided

185 Ft (88.94%)

8'-3" depth

Horizontal Building Articulation
Greater Than 80' Width  (Building-A)

B

C

Type

A

Min.Required
9.59 ft which is 20%
of street facing length

9FT depth

Provided

220'-9" and
100 %

208'-6"

9'-6" depth

Vertical Building Articulation
Greater Than 50' Width  (Building-A)

B

C

d 20'-6"

185 Ft

// //

// //

SHEET CONTENTS:

DATE: April-16-2024

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R

:

IS
SU

E 
R

EC
O

R
D

:
D

A
TE

:
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
:

JR
 S

h
op

p
in

g
 C

en
te

r
12

70
 P

le
as

an
t 

V
al

le
y

G
ar

la
nd

, 
tx

A
PR

IL
 2

8-
20

22
SU

B
M

IT

N
O

V
 - 

30
-2

02
2

R
E-

SU
B

M
IT

JA
N

 - 
10

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

FE
B

 - 
02

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

D
O

-2

D
O

-3

D
O

-4

D
O

-1

FE
B

 - 
03

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

AD
R

ES
S:

 5
55

 R
ep

ub
lic

 D
r S

ui
te

 3
12

A,
 P

la
no

,
TX

 7
50

74
, U

SA
..

Ph
on

e:
 4

69
-6

62
-5

24
8

Em
ai

l: 
in

fo
@

ib
c-

co
ns

tru
ct

io
ns

.c
om

ELEVATIONS
BUILDING-A

A-4.1CASE NO.
210622-2

EXH
IB

IT E



SOUTH WEST ELEVATION - BUILDING A3
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

1

SOUTH EAST ELEVATION - BUILDING A4
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

1

T.O. PARAPET
121'-6"
T.O. ROOF
119'-4"

T.O. DOOR
107'-0"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. PARAPET
121'-6"

T.O. ROOF
119'-4"

T.O. DOOR
107'-0"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

8.6 8.6 8.68.6
4.1

4.8

7.3 7.3 7.3 7.3 7.3

5.17.1 7.1

16.116.1

T.O. PARAPET
130'-0"

T.O. ROOF
120'-6"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. ROOF
119'-4"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. PARAPET
121'-6"

4.8

7.1

4.7

4.4

4.3

7.1

4.1

SOUTH EAST ELEVATION 4472.03 Sqft.
70.81 Sqft.

6.50 Sqft.

84.37 Sqft.

4.1

4.2

4.3

6.79 %

0.61 %

4.86 %

SOUTH WEST ELEVATION               1247.32 Sqft.

4.7 77.41 Sqft. 4.10 %

4.4 521.65 Sqft. 12.34 %

7.1 7.56 Sqft. 0.90 %

4.8 469.94 Sqft. 17.82 %

526.35 Sqft.

47.81 Sqft.

4.1

4.2

11.76 %

1.06 %

7.1

7.3

8.6

52.12 Sqft.

110.67 Sqft.

1.16 %

2.47 %

91.08 Sqft. 2.03 %

4.8 3587.20 Sqft. 80.21 %

5.1 65.82 Sqft. 1.47 %

8.6

8.6 27.33 Sqft. 2.19 %

GENERAL NOTES:
1. METAL STUD SUPPLIER SHALL DESIGN AND DETAIL ALL METAL

STUDS, BRACING, CONNECTIONS, AND ATTACHMENTS TO MAIN
STRUCTURE AND SUBMIT STRUCTURAL CALCULATIONS AND
SHOP DRAWINGS FOR APPROVAL BY STRUCTURAL ENGINEER.

2. ALL COLUMNS, BEAMS, STRUCT., CONNECTIONS, AND CANOPY
DETAILS SHALL BE BUILT BASED ON STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS.

3. PROVIDE FIREPROOFING AT ALL REQUIRED INTERIOR STEEL
STRUCTURES.

4. INTERIOR FINISHES, PARTITION WALLS, RESTROOMS, MILLWORK,
ETC. ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THIS PLAN SET. ABOVE MENTIONED
ITEMS ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE FUTURE TENANTS.

5. STORE FRONT WINDOW SUPPLIER SHALL PROVIDE NECESSARY
DETAILS AND SHOP DRAWINGS FOR APPROVAL BY DESIGNER.

EXTERIOR CAVITY WALL NOTES:
1. ALL EXTERIOR STUDS TO BE HOT DEEP GALVANIZED 16 GAGE

METAL STUDS AT 16" O.C. (ASTM A525).
2. ALL EXTERIOR STUD SCREWS AND FASTENERS TO BE STAINLESS
     STEEL WITH NEOPRENE WASHERS.
3. ALL METAL FLASHING ABOVE WINDOWS AND WHERE INDICATED
     TO BE STAINLESS STEEL.
4. ALL EXTERIOR SHEATHING USED IN CAVITY WALLS TO BE GYPSUM

SHEATHING W/ FIBERGLASS FACING (ex: DENS-GLASS SHEATHING).
5. VERTICAL BRICK MOVEMENT JOINTS TO BE 20' O.C. MAX, UNLESS

NOTED OTHERWISE, AND SHALL NOT CROSS LINTELS OR BRICK
SHELF ANGLES.

6. VAPOR BARRIER USED OVER SHEATHING TO BE WRAPPED ABOVE
FLASHING AT THE BASE AND ABOVE WINDOW LOCATIONS.

7. APPLY MASONRY SEALER OVER EXTERIOR STONE VENEERS.

MATERIAL LEGEND:
APR. ROUGH STONE4.1

4.2

4.3

3" CAST STONE WATERTABLE,
COLOR: ORIGINAL.

4.4

5.1 PAINTED GALV. STEEL ROOF ACCESS
LADDER. PER STEEL CONTRACTOR.

PARAPET ALUMINUM METAL COPING
COLOR: GREY PAINT

7.2

7.3

7.1

8.1 SW1: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

PREFINISHED MTL SCUPPER & DOWNSPOUT,
COLOR: MATCH 7.2.

8.2 SW2: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

8.3 SW3: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

8.6

16.1

INSULATED HOLLOW MTL DOOR
COLOR: TO MATCH 8.1.

DECORATIVE EXTERIOR LIGHT
FIXTURE, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

DECORATIVE STONE VENEER

4.5 ARCHITECTURAL STONE VENEER

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
WITH GROOVING AS PER ARCH.
APPROVED COLOUR

4.6

ALUMINUM FLASHING
COLOR: PAINT TO MATCH 4.1

4.7

LIGHT GAUGE AWNING FRAME PRIME
& PAINT TYPE-2

NOTE: ALL NUMBERS (#1234)
REFER TO A SHERWIN-WILLIAMS
PRODUCT NUMBER.

1
4.8 7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO

AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

8.4 SW4: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

8.5 SW5: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM
STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR
APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

APR. ROUGH STONE

3" CAST STONE WATERTABLE,
COLOR: ORIGINAL.

PARAPET ALUMINUM METAL COPING
APPROVED COLOR:

PREFIN. STANDING SEAM METAL
ROOF TYP.
7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

APR. ROUGH STONE

3" CAST STONE WATERTABLE,
COLOR: ORIGINAL.

DECORATIVE STONE VENNER

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

INSULATED HOLLOW MTL DOOR
COLOR: TO MATCH 8.1.

PARAPET ALUMINUM METAL COPING
APPROVED COLOR:

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

PREFINISHED MTL SCUPPER & DOWNSPOUT,
COLOR: MATCH 7.2.
PAINTED GALV. STEEL ROOF ACCESS
LADDER. PER STEEL CONTRACTOR.
INSULATED HOLLOW MTL DOOR
COLOR: TO MATCH 8.1.

SHEET CONTENTS:

DATE: April-16-2024

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R

:

IS
SU

E 
R

EC
O

R
D

:
D

A
TE

:
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
:

JR
 S

h
op

p
in

g
 C

en
te

r
12

70
 P

le
as

an
t 

V
al

le
y

G
ar

la
nd

, 
tx

A
PR

IL
 2

8-
20

22
SU

B
M

IT

N
O

V
 - 

30
-2

02
2

R
E-

SU
B

M
IT

JA
N

 - 
10

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

FE
B

 - 
02

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

D
O

-2

D
O

-3

D
O

-4

D
O

-1

FE
B

 - 
03

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

AD
R

ES
S:

 5
55

 R
ep

ub
lic

 D
r S

ui
te

 3
12

A,
 P

la
no

,
TX

 7
50

74
, U

SA
..

Ph
on

e:
 4

69
-6

62
-5

24
8

Em
ai

l: 
in

fo
@

ib
c-

co
ns

tru
ct

io
ns

.c
om

A-4.2CASE NO.
210622-2

ELEVATIONS
BUILDING-A

EXH
IB

IT E



T.O. ROOF
120'-6"

T.O. WINDOW
113'-0"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. ROOF
120'-6"

T.O. WATER SHED
113'-6"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. PARAPET
129'-0"

4.7

4.4

16.1

4.6 4.1 4.6 8.1 4.2 4.14.58.1 8.1

4.3

16.1

4.7
7.1 7.1

SOUTH WEST ELEVATION - BUILDING B1
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

SOUTH WEST ELEVATION 4466.29 Sqft.

4.3

4.8
4.8

7.2
7.2

7.2
4.4

277.75 Sqft.

25.24 Sqft.

87.38 Sqft.

4.1

4.2

4.3

6.21 %

0.56 %

1.95 %

4.5

4.6

4.7

396.86 Sqft.

305.79 Sqft.

215.75 Sqft.

8.88 %

6.84 %

4.83 %

4.4 853.57 Sqft. 22.40 %

7.1

7.2

8.1

38.62 Sqft.

72.00 Sqft.

0.86 %

1.61 %

964.00 Sqft. 21.58 %

4.8 1073.92 Sqft. 24.04 %

4.8

T.O. PARAPET
135'-0"

T.O. ROOF
120'-6"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. ROOF
119'-4"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. PARAPET
122'-0"

4.8

7.1

4.7

4.4

4.6

7.1

4.1

NORTH WEST ELEVATION - BUILDING B2
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH WEST ELEVATION 1835.14 Sqft.
85.25 Sqft.

7.81 Sqft.

4.1

4.2

4.64 %

0.42 %

4.6

4.7

87.00 Sqft.

98.16 Sqft.

4.74 %

5.34 %

4.4 954.35 Sqft. 52.00 %

7.1 8.87 Sqft. 0.48 %

4.8 581.25 Sqft. 31.67 %

MATERIAL LEGEND: GENERAL NOTES:
1. METAL STUD SUPPLIER SHALL DESIGN AND DETAIL ALL METAL

STUDS, BRACING, CONNECTIONS, AND ATTACHMENTS TO MAIN
STRUCTURE AND SUBMIT STRUCTURAL CALCULATIONS AND
SHOP DRAWINGS FOR APPROVAL BY STRUCTURAL ENGINEER.

2. ALL COLUMNS, BEAMS, STRUCT., CONNECTIONS, AND CANOPY
DETAILS SHALL BE BUILT BASED ON STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS.

3. PROVIDE FIREPROOFING AT ALL REQUIRED INTERIOR STEEL
STRUCTURES.

4. INTERIOR FINISHES, PARTITION WALLS, RESTROOMS, MILLWORK,
ETC. ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THIS PLAN SET. ABOVE MENTIONED
ITEMS ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE FUTURE TENANTS.

5. STORE FRONT WINDOW SUPPLIER SHALL PROVIDE NECESSARY
DETAILS AND SHOP DRAWINGS FOR APPROVAL BY DESIGNER.

EXTERIOR CAVITY WALL NOTES:
1. ALL EXTERIOR STUDS TO BE HOT DEEP GALVANIZED 16 GAGE

METAL STUDS AT 16" O.C. (ASTM A525).
2. ALL EXTERIOR STUD SCREWS AND FASTENERS TO BE STAINLESS

STEEL WITH NEOPRENE WASHERS.
3. ALL METAL FLASHING ABOVE WINDOWS AND WHERE INDICATED

TO BE STAINLESS STEEL.
4. ALL EXTERIOR SHEATHING USED IN CAVITY WALLS TO BE GYPSUM
     SHEATHING W/ FIBERGLASS FACING (ex: DENS-GLASS SHEATHING).
5.  VERTICAL BRICK MOVEMENT JOINTS TO BE 20' O.C. MAX, UNLESS
     NOTED OTHERWISE, AND SHALL NOT CROSS LINTELS OR BRICK
     SHELF ANGLES.
6.  VAPOR BARRIER USED OVER SHEATHING TO BE WRAPPED ABOVE
     FLASHING AT THE BASE AND ABOVE WINDOW LOCATIONS.
7. APPLY MASONRY SEALER OVER EXTERIOR STONE VENEERS.

APR. ROUGH STONE4.1

4.2

4.3

3" CAST STONE WATERTABLE,
COLOR: ORIGINAL.

4.4

5.1 PAINTED GALV. STEEL ROOF ACCESS
LADDER. PER STEEL CONTRACTOR.

PARAPET ALUMINUM METAL COPING
COLOR: GREY PAINT

7.2

7.3

7.1

8.1 SW1: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

PREFINISHED MTL SCUPPER & DOWNSPOUT,
COLOR: MATCH 7.2.

8.2 SW2: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

8.3 SW3: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

8.6

16.1

INSULATED HOLLOW MTL DOOR
COLOR: TO MATCH 8.1.

DECORATIVE EXTERIOR LIGHT
FIXTURE, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

DECORATIVE STONE VENEER

4.5 ARCHITECTURAL STONE VENEER

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
WITH GROOVING AS PER ARCH.
APPROVED COLOUR

4.6

ALUMINUM FLASHING
COLOR: PAINT TO MATCH 4.1

4.7

LIGHT GAUGE AWNING FRAME PRIME
& PAINT TYPE-2

NOTE: ALL NUMBERS (#1234)
REFER TO A SHERWIN-WILLIAMS
PRODUCT NUMBER.

1
4.8 7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO

AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

8.4 SW4: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

8.5 SW5: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM
STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR
APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

PROPOSED SIGNAGE

PROPOSED SIGNAGE

PROPOSED SIGNAGE

PROPOSED SIGNAGE

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

APR. ROUGH STONE

3" CAST STONE WATERTABLE,
COLOR: ORIGINAL.

ARCHITECTURAL STONE VENEER

PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

PARAPET ALUMINUM METAL COPING
APPROVED COLOR:
LIGHT GAUGE AWNING FRAME PRIME
& PAINT TYPE-2

DECORATIVE STONE VENNER

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO WITH
GROOVING AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR
PREFIN. STANDING SEAM METAL
ROOF TYP.
7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

APR. ROUGH STONE

3" CAST STONE WATERTABLE,
COLOR: ORIGINAL.
7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR
7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO WITH
GROOVING AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR
PREFIN. STANDING SEAM METAL
ROOF TYP.
7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR
PARAPET ALUMINUM METAL COPING
APPROVED COLOR:

QUOINS QUOINS

TRANSOME

TRANSOME

TRANSOME TRANSOME

RECESSED ENTRY

VARIED ROOF

VARIED ROOF

CANOPY

CANOPY

CANOPY

DIVIDED LIGHT WINDOWS
DIVIDED LIGHT WINDOWS

DIVIDED LIGHT WINDOWS

CANOPY

ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS
1

2

4

5

3

6

VARIED ROOF

DIVIDED LIGHT WINDOWS

TRANSOME

QUOINS

RECESSED ENTRY

CANOPY

Type

A

Min.Required
19.4ft which is 30%
of street facing length

19.4 FT street facing length

width 27 and 4FT depth

Provided

30' Ft (46.2 5%)

30' ft

4 FT depth

Horizontal Building Articulation
Greater Than 80' Width  (Building-B)

B

C

Type

A

Min.Required
12.9 ft which is 20%
of street facing length

9FT depth

Provided

154'-6" and
100 %

154 FT

Vertical Building Articulation
Greater Than 50' Width  (Building-B)

B

C

d

12 FT depth
on Average

20'-6"// //

// //

T.O. ROOF
135'-0"

SHEET CONTENTS:

DATE: April-16-2024

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R

:

IS
SU

E 
R

EC
O

R
D

:
D

A
TE

:
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
:

JR
 S

h
op

p
in

g
 C

en
te

r
12

70
 P

le
as

an
t 

V
al

le
y

G
ar

la
nd

, 
tx

A
PR

IL
 2

8-
20

22
SU

B
M

IT

N
O

V
 - 

30
-2

02
2

R
E-

SU
B

M
IT

JA
N

 - 
10

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

FE
B

 - 
02

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

D
O

-2

D
O

-3

D
O

-4

D
O

-1

FE
B

 - 
03

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

AD
R

ES
S:

 5
55

 R
ep

ub
lic

 D
r S

ui
te

 3
12

A,
 P

la
no

,
TX

 7
50

74
, U

SA
..

Ph
on

e:
 4

69
-6

62
-5

24
8

Em
ai

l: 
in

fo
@

ib
c-

co
ns

tru
ct

io
ns

.c
om

A-4.3CASE NO.
210622-2

ELEVATIONS
BUILDING-B

EXH
IB

IT E



T.O. PARAPET
122'-0"

T.O. JOIST
119'-5"

T.O. DOOR
117'-0"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. PARAPET
122'-0"

T.O. ROOF
119'-4"

T.O. DOOR
117'-0"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. PARAPET
129'-0"

T.O. ROOF
120'-6"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. ROOF
119'-4"

T.O. CAST STONE
103'-0"

T.O. FINISH FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. PARAPET
122'-0"

4.8

7.1

4.7

4.4

4.3

7.1

4.1

SOUTH EAST ELEVATION - BUILDING B3

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH EAST ELEVATION - BUILDING B4
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

8.68.68.6

16.1 16.1

4.8 4.8

4.1 4.1

7.1
7.17.1

7.37.37.3 7.3

5.1

NORTH EAST ELEVATION 3388.51 Sqft.
384.13 Sqft.

34.97 Sqft.

4.1

4.2

11.33 %

1.03 %

7.1

7.3

8.6

37.79 Sqft.

79.05 Sqft.

1.11 %

2.33 %

109.32 Sqft. 3.22 %

4.8 2713.44 Sqft. 80.07 %

SOUTH EAST ELEVATION 1640.12 Sqft.
85.25 Sqft.

7.81 Sqft.

4.1

4.2

5.19 %

0.47 %

4.3

4.7

86.37 Sqft.

85.16 Sqft.

5.26 %

5.19 %

4.4 772.33 Sqft. 47.09 %

7.1 8.87 Sqft. 0.54 %

4.8 581.25 Sqft. 35.43 % 5.1 65.82 Sqft. 1.94 %

GENERAL NOTES:
1. METAL STUD SUPPLIER SHALL DESIGN AND DETAIL ALL METAL

STUDS, BRACING, CONNECTIONS, AND ATTACHMENTS TO MAIN
STRUCTURE AND SUBMIT STRUCTURAL CALCULATIONS AND
SHOP DRAWINGS FOR APPROVAL BY STRUCTURAL ENGINEER.

2. ALL COLUMNS, BEAMS, STRUCT., CONNECTIONS, AND CANOPY
DETAILS SHALL BE BUILT BASED ON STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS.

3. PROVIDE FIREPROOFING AT ALL REQUIRED INTERIOR STEEL
STRUCTURES.

4. INTERIOR FINISHES, PARTITION WALLS, RESTROOMS, MILLWORK,
ETC. ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THIS PLAN SET. ABOVE MENTIONED
ITEMS ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE FUTURE TENANTS.

5. STORE FRONT WINDOW SUPPLIER SHALL PROVIDE NECESSARY
DETAILS AND SHOP DRAWINGS FOR APPROVAL BY DESIGNER.

EXTERIOR CAVITY WALL NOTES:
1. ALL EXTERIOR STUDS TO BE HOT DEEP GALVANIZED 16 GAGE

METAL STUDS AT 16" O.C. (ASTM A525).
2. ALL EXTERIOR STUD SCREWS AND FASTENERS TO BE STAINLESS

STEEL WITH NEOPRENE WASHERS.
3. ALL METAL FLASHING ABOVE WINDOWS AND WHERE INDICATED

TO BE STAINLESS STEEL.
4. ALL EXTERIOR SHEATHING USED IN CAVITY WALLS TO BE GYPSUM
     SHEATHING W/ FIBERGLASS FACING (ex: DENS-GLASS SHEATHING).
5. VERTICAL BRICK MOVEMENT JOINTS TO BE 20' O.C. MAX, UNLESS
     NOTED OTHERWISE, AND SHALL NOT CROSS LINTELS OR BRICK
     SHELF ANGLES.
6. VAPOR BARRIER USED OVER SHEATHING TO BE WRAPPED ABOVE
     FLASHING AT THE BASE AND ABOVE WINDOW LOCATIONS.
7. APPLY MASONRY SEALER OVER EXTERIOR STONE VENEERS.

MATERIAL LEGEND:
APR. ROUGH STONE4.1

4.2

4.3

3" CAST STONE WATERTABLE,
COLOR: ORIGINAL.

4.4

5.1 PAINTED GALV. STEEL ROOF ACCESS
LADDER. PER STEEL CONTRACTOR.

PARAPET ALUMINUM METAL COPING
COLOR: GREY PAINT

7.2

7.3

7.1

8.1 SW1: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

PREFINISHED MTL SCUPPER & DOWNSPOUT,
COLOR: MATCH 7.2.

8.2 SW2: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

8.3 SW3: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

8.6

16.1

INSULATED HOLLOW MTL DOOR
COLOR: TO MATCH 8.1.

DECORATIVE EXTERIOR LIGHT
FIXTURE, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

DECORATIVE STONE VENEER

4.5 ARCHITECTURAL STONE VENEER

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
WITH GROOVING AS PER ARCH.
APPROVED COLOUR

4.6

ALUMINUM FLASHING
COLOR: PAINT TO MATCH 4.1

4.7

LIGHT GAUGE AWNING FRAME PRIME
& PAINT TYPE-2

NOTE: ALL NUMBERS (#1234)
REFER TO A SHERWIN-WILLIAMS
PRODUCT NUMBER.

1
4.8 7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO

AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

8.4 SW4: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

8.5 SW5: PREFINISHED ALUMINUM
STOREFRONT
SYSTEM: U.S. ALUMINUM 451 OR
APPROVED
EQUAL, COLOR: MATCH 7.2

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

APR. ROUGH STONE

3" CAST STONE WATERTABLE,
COLOR: ORIGINAL.

PARAPET ALUMINUM METAL COPING
APPROVED COLOR:

DECORATIVE STONE VENNER

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

PREFIN. STANDING SEAM METAL
ROOF TYP.
7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

APR. ROUGH STONE

3" CAST STONE WATERTABLE,
COLOR: ORIGINAL.

PARAPET ALUMINUM METAL COPING
APPROVED COLOR:

7/8" THREE COAT STUCCO
AS PER ARCH. APPROVED COLOUR

PREFINISHED MTL SCUPPER & DOWNSPOUT,
COLOR: MATCH 7.2.
PAINTED GALV. STEEL ROOF ACCESS
LADDER. PER STEEL CONTRACTOR.
INSULATED HOLLOW MTL DOOR
COLOR: TO MATCH 8.1.

SHEET CONTENTS:

DATE: April-16-2024

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R

:

IS
SU

E 
R

EC
O

R
D

:
D

A
TE

:
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
:

JR
 S

h
op

p
in

g
 C

en
te

r
12

70
 P

le
as

an
t 

V
al

le
y

G
ar

la
nd

, 
tx

A
PR

IL
 2

8-
20

22
SU

B
M

IT

N
O

V
 - 

30
-2

02
2

R
E-

SU
B

M
IT

JA
N

 - 
10

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

FE
B

 - 
02

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

D
O

-2

D
O

-3

D
O

-4

D
O

-1

FE
B

 - 
03

-2
02

3
R

E-
SU

B
M

IT

AD
R

ES
S:

 5
55

 R
ep

ub
lic

 D
r S

ui
te

 3
12

A,
 P

la
no

,
TX

 7
50

74
, U

SA
..

Ph
on

e:
 4

69
-6

62
-5

24
8

Em
ai

l: 
in

fo
@

ib
c-

co
ns

tru
ct

io
ns

.c
om

A-4.4CASE NO.
210622-2

ELEVATIONS
BUILDING-B

EXH
IB

IT E



   
 

 

 Z 22-28 
 

  

        View of the subject property  Southeast of the subject property 

 
 

 

   Southwest of the subject property                                                
 
 
 
 

Northwest of the subject property 
 
 













GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 3. b.            
Meeting Date: 06/10/2024  
Item Tit le:  Z 22-67 CCM Engineering (District 3)
Summary:
Consideration of the application of CCM Engineering, requesting approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Planned
Development (PD) District 14-11 for Single-Family-10 (SF-10) Uses and Planned Development (PD) District 85-24  
for Community Retail (CR) Uses to a Planned Development (PD) District for Single-Family Attached (SFA) Uses and
2) a Detail Plan for townhouse development. This property is located at 2000 and 2050 East Miller Road. (District 3)
(File Z 22-67)

Attachments
Z 22-67 CCM Engineering Report & Attachments
Z 22-67 CCM Engineering Responses



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 22-67/District 3 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: June 10, 2024  
 
REQUESTS 
Approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Planned Development (PD) District 14-11 for 
Single-Family-10 (SF-10) Uses and Planned Development (PD) District 85-24 for 
Community Retail (CR) Uses to a Planned Development (PD) District for Single-Family 
Attached (SFA) Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for townhouse development.  
 
APPLICANT 
CCM Engineering 
 
OWNER 
Sha Miller LLC Separate Series LLC 
 
LOCATION 
2000 and 2050 East Miller Road 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property is currently undeveloped. The applicant proposes ninety (90) 
townhouse lots and three (3) HOA lots.  
 
SITE DATA 
The subject property consists of approximately 11.19 acres. The site has approximately 906 
linear feet of frontage along East Miller Road and 178 lineal feet of frontage along East 
Centerville Road. The site can be accessed from East Centerville Road.  
 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 14-11 for Single-Family-
10 (SF-10) Uses and Planned Development (PD) District 85-24 for Community Retail (CR) 
Uses.  
 
Planned Development (PD) District 14-11 was approved for a single-family subdivision on 
one tract and a riding academy/stables, day camp and barns on the other tract. The single-
family subdivision was never developed. 
 
Planned Development (PD) District 85-24 was intended to be non-residential uses such as 
bank, health clinic, movie theater, retail, and restaurant.    
 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS  
  
1. Site Plan 

The site plan (Exhibit C) reflects ninety (90) townhouse lots and three (3) HOA lots with 
amenities, including a tennis court, pickleball court, gazebo, playground equipment, and 
barbeque/picnic area. 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 
2. Development Standards Flexibilities: 

GDC Standards Required Proposed 
Lot Size 2000 SF 1500 SF 
Lot Depth 90 feet 65 feet 
Lot Coverage 75% (maximum) 77% 
Dwelling Unit Size 1300 SF 1,100 SF 
 
The applicant is requesting some flexibilities on the above-mentioned development 
standards to allow the number of homes and maintain the affordability for 
homeownership. Per the applicant’s narrative, “the development will give young 
prospective homeowners the opportunity to find a more affordable home, or experienced 
home owners a chance to downsize.” 

 
3. Parking 

This development meets the parking requirement. Each dwelling will have a two-car 
garage and 42 guest spaces are provided. 
 

4. Screening and Landscaping 
The GDC requires perimeter screening along residential thoroughfare. The landscape 
plan (Exhibit D) reflects a six (6)-foot masonry wall along East Miller Road and East 
Centerville Road. 
 
Additionally, the applicant proposes a six (6) foot cedar wood fence along the 
southwestern perimeter abutting the single-family homes. 
 
The site meets the applicable screening and landscaping standards per the GDC along 
with a fifty (50)-foot buffer between the proposed development and existing residential 
development.  
 
Additionally, a five (5)-foot pedestrian pathway is proposed throughout the property. 

 
5. Building Design: 

The proposed building elevations meets the building design standards per the GDC. 
 

 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Envision Garland Plan designates the subject property as Neighborhood Center and 
Traditional Neighborhood.   
 
Traditional neighborhoods are currently found throughout Garland and provide areas for low 
to moderate density single-family detached residential housing. Traditional neighborhoods 
also accommodate convenience retail (goods and services), office space, and public 
services. 
 
Neighborhood centers provide a mix of retail, services and community gathering places. 
This center should be appropriately scaled to adjacent residential areas. 
 
The proposed use will offer additional housing to the neighborhood. 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN 
The proposed use is considered to be “SF Housing” per the Economic Development Strategic 
Plan; this category represents a property tax revenue per acre at $6,446.   
 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The properties to the north, across East Miller Road, are zoned Community Retail (CR) 
District and Planned Development (PD) District 21-45; these properties are currently 
unimproved, however a single-family for rent development is currently in the permitting 
process. The property to the east is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 14-11; it is 
developed with a riding academy and stable. The properties to the south are zoned Single-
Family-7 (SF-7) District and are developed with single-family detached homes. The property 
to the west, across East Centerville Road, is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 91-4; 
it is developed with a gas station and convenience store. 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Planned Development (PD) District 14-11 for 
Single-Family-10 (SF-10) Uses and Planned Development (PD) District 85-24 for 
Community Retail (CR) Uses to a Planned Development (PD) District for Single-Family 
Attached (SFA) Uses and 2) 2) a Detail Plan for townhouse development. 
 
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Location Map 
Exhibits 
SUP Conditions 
Photos 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: July 2, 2024 
 
 
PREPARED BY:      REVIEWED BY: 
Nabiha Ahmed   Angela Self, FAICP 
Lead Development Planner  Interim Director of Planning 
Planning & Development 
(972) 205-2453  
nahmed@garlandtx.gov 

mailto:nahmed@garlandtx.gov


2650

2331

2214

2350

2370

ST JA
MES PL

LA
KEVIEW

DR

G
AT

EW
AY

 D
R

SOUTH
CREEK DR

KNIGHTSBRIDGE

LN

WHITEHALL

LN

RUSTIC
CREEK D

R

ROYAL CREST DR

LEGEND DR

NOVEL DR

LA
KEVIEW D

R

WEST SHORE DR

E CENTERVILLE
 RD

E MILLER RD

MEADOWVIEW DR

P DP D
9 3 - 1 49 3 - 1 4

S F - 1 0S F - 1 0

P DP D
9 1 - 3 39 1 - 3 3

P D  1 4 - 1 1P D  1 4 - 1 1

SS
2 2 - 1 02 2 - 1 0

S F - 1 0S F - 1 0

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

C RC R

P DP D
8 5 - 2 48 5 - 2 4

A GA G

A GA G

A GA G

S  0 9 - 1 8S  0 9 - 1 8

P D  0 1 - 1 7P D  0 1 - 1 7 P D  1 9 - 4 0P D  1 9 - 4 0

P D  0 6 - 4 6P D  0 6 - 4 6

P D  0 6 - 4 6P D  0 6 - 4 6

2018

1809

1825

1949

1834

2013

1935

1838

2002

1817

19451929

1813

2005

1821

1828

1925

1813

1910

1820

1833

2114

2006

1913

1909

1909

1842

1917

1918 2001

1829

1825

1901

1906
1829

2106

1817

1837

1914

1913

1809

1917

2102

1902

1821

1841

1901

2009

2001 2010

1824

1905

1905

1805

2112

2110

1944

2000

2201

2000

2050

ZONING MAP Z 22-67
¯

0 200 400 Feet
1 inch = 307 feet

2000 & 2050 East Miller Road

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 
 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 22-67 
 

2000 and 2050 East Miller Road 
 

 
I. Statement of Purpose: The purpose of this Planned 

Development is to approve single-family attached 
(townhouse) development. 

 
 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development shall not 

affect any regulation found in the Garland Development 
Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior to adoption 
of this ordinance, except as specifically provided 
herein. 

 
 
III. General Regulations: All regulations of the Single-

Family Attached (SFA) District as set forth in Chapter 
2 of the Garland Development Code are included by 
reference and shall apply, except as otherwise specified 
by this ordinance. 
 
 

IV. Development Plans: 
 

Detail Plan: Development shall be in general conformance 
with the Detail Plan labeled Exhibit C through Exhibit 
E. In the event there is conflict between the approved 
Detail Plan and the Specific Regulations below, the 
Specific Regulations shall apply.  

 
 
V. Specific Conditions: 
  

A. Permitted Use: The only permitted land use on the 
subject property is Single-Family Attached. 
 

B. Site Plan: The site layout, building placement, 
parking, walking paths, and other development proposed 
shall be in general conformance with the approved Site 
Plan labeled Exhibit C. 
 

C. Dwelling Units: A total of ninety (90) single-family 
attached lots and three (3) HOA lots shall be 
permitted.  

 
D. Minimum Dwelling Size: The minimum dwelling size shall 

be 1,100 square feet. 



PD Conditions 
File Z 22-67 
Page - 2 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

 
E. Lot Size: The minimum lot size shall be 1,500 square 

feet. 
 
F. Lot Depth: The minimum lot depth shall be sixty-five 

(65) feet. 
 
G. Lot Coverage: The maximum lot coverage shall be 

seventy-seven (77%) percent. 
 

H. Amenities: Amenities shall be provided as shown on the 
Exhibits C and D.  

 
I. Landscape Plan: Screening and landscaping shall be in 

general conformance with the landscape plan labeled 
Exhibit D.  

 
J. Landscaping must be regularly maintained in a healthy, 

growing condition and in compliance with this PD 
Ordinance, the Garland Development Code, the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Garland, and the landscaping 
plan attached hereto at all times. The property owner 
is responsible for regular weeding, mowing of grass, 
irrigation, fertilizing, pruning, or other 
maintenance of all plantings as needed. All exposed 
ground surfaces  

on or within the premises shall be properly 
improved, covered with screening or other 
approved solid material, or protected with a 
vegetative growth that prevents soil erosion and 
ameliorates objectionable dust conditions. 
 

1. Any plant or vegetation that dies must be 
replaced with another approved plant variety that 
complies with the approved landscape plan within 
sixty (60) days after receipt of written 
notification from the City. In the event the 
property owner fails to remedy a violation of any 
landscaping maintenance regulation within sixty  
(60) days after receipt of written notification 
from the City, the City may, in addition to any 
other remedy available by law, withhold future 
city permits, licenses and/or certificates 
requested by the property owner for the premises 
to which such violation applies.  
 



PD Conditions 
File Z 22-67 
Page - 3 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

2. Screening and paving must be regularly maintained 
in compliance with this PD Ordinance, the Garland  
Development Code, and the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Garland at all times. The property 
owner is responsible for regular maintenance of 
all screening and paving as needed.  In the event 
the property owner fails to remedy a violation 
of any screening or paving maintenance regulation 
within sixty (60) days after receipt of written 
notification from the City, the City may, in 
addition to any other remedy available by law, 
withhold future city permits, licenses and/or 
certificates requested by the property owner for 
the premises to which such violation applies. 
 

K. Elevations: Building Elevations shall be in general 
conformance with the elevations labeled Exhibit E. 

 
 
 
 
 

 



EAST MILLER ROAD

EX. 30.0' UTILITY ESMT

KARLS
ENG M

IC
HAEL &

SALD
IVAR KELL

EY 58
38

 PALO

BLK
 A LT

 14

CHARLD
EN D

ALT
ON JR

& TERRI

BLK
 A LT

 15

SCHRIC
K R

ONNIE & PAULE
TTA

BLK
 ALO

T 16

NOBLE
 R

IC
KY & PATRIC

IA

BLK
 ALO

T 17

WALT
HALL

 KAREN & R
ONALD

BARTOSH JA
MES M

 & D
ENISE

BLK
 A LO

T 5

EAST CENTERVILL
E ROAD

100' R
.O.W

.

100' R.O.W.

CHEISA RANCH ADDITION

EX. 10.0' UTILITY ESMT

EX. 20.0' ACCESS ESMT

EX. 24.0' ACCESS ESMT

EX. 10.0' PEDESTRIAN
AND UTILITY ESMT

SOONER RANCH PROPERTIES LP
CHIESA RANCH REPLAT
BLK 1 LT 14R1 ACS 19.69

SOONER RANCH PROPERTIES LP
CHIESA RANCH REPLAT
BLK 1 LT 12R ACS 1.82

PHAM THUY

BLK
 A LT

 13

DELE
ON M

ISTY KAY &

VELA
ZQUEZ R

AFAEL A
 D

ELE
ON

BLK
 A LT

 12
 N

/A

NGUYEN N
GHIA T

BLK
 A LO

T 11

WEST SHORE ESTATES 3 REP

NELS
ON C

ANDIE C

BLK
 A LO

T 10

COOK JA
MES S & C

LA
RITA F

BLK
 A LO

T 9

GRIFFIN
 LI

NDA L

BLK
 A LO

T 8

ABRAHAM K A & THANKAMMA

BLK
 A LO

T 7

HOUSTON R
ANDALL

 S &

BLK
 A LO

T 6

CARRILL
O O

CTAVIO
 & YOANA M

BLK
 A LO

T 4

EX. TURN LANE

EX. TURN LANE

EX. 10 UTILITY ESMT

EAST MILLER ROAD

EX. 30.0' UTILITY ESMT

KARLS
ENG M

IC
HAEL &

SALD
IVAR KELL

EY 58
38

 PALO

BLK
 A LT

 14

CHARLD
EN D

ALT
ON JR

& TERRI

BLK
 A LT

 15

SCHRIC
K R

ONNIE & PAULE
TTA

BLK
 ALO

T 16

NOBLE
 R

IC
KY & PATRIC

IA

BLK
 ALO

T 17

WALT
HALL

 KAREN & R
ONALD

BARTOSH JA
MES M

 & D
ENISE

BLK
 A LO

T 5

EAST CENTERVILL
E ROAD

100' R
.O.W

.

100' R.O.W.

CHEISA RANCH ADDITION

EX. 10.0' UTILITY ESMT

EX. 20.0' ACCESS ESMT

EX. 24.0' ACCESS ESMT

EX. 10.0' PEDESTRIAN
AND UTILITY ESMT

SOONER RANCH PROPERTIES LP
CHIESA RANCH REPLAT
BLK 1 LT 14R1 ACS 19.69

SOONER RANCH PROPERTIES LP
CHIESA RANCH REPLAT
BLK 1 LT 12R ACS 1.82

PHAM THUY

BLK
 A LT

 13

DELE
ON M

ISTY KAY &

VELA
ZQUEZ R

AFAEL A
 D

ELE
ON

BLK
 A LT

 12
 N

/A

NGUYEN N
GHIA T

BLK
 A LO

T 11

WEST SHORE ESTATES 3 REP

NELS
ON C

ANDIE C

BLK
 A LO

T 10

COOK JA
MES S & C

LA
RITA F

BLK
 A LO

T 9

GRIFFIN
 LI

NDA L

BLK
 A LO

T 8

ABRAHAM K A & THANKAMMA

BLK
 A LO

T 7

HOUSTON R
ANDALL

 S &

BLK
 A LO

T 6

CARRILL
O O

CTAVIO
 & YOANA M

BLK
 A LO

T 4

EX. TURN LANE

EX. TURN LANE

EX. 10 UTILITY ESMT

13.83'

8.19'

49
.2

6'

72.41'

25
.0

0'

25
.0

0'

30
.9

2'

72.31'

30
.6

8'

BLO
CK G

, L
OT 1

33
25

.63
 S.F.

35.00'

94
.96

'

35.00'

30.00'

95.08'

30.00'

BLOCK F, LOT 1

2500.99 S.F.

36.24'

30
.00

'

76.58'

BLOCK E, LOT 1

2991.27 S.F.

BLOCK E, LOT 3

2994.48 S.F.

21
.94

'

30
.00

'

25
.00

'

25
.00

'

99.85'

29
.97

'

BLOCK D, LOT 1

2997.11 S.F.

BLOCK D, LOT 5

2995.21 S.F.

30
.03

'

30
.00

'

99.86'

25
.00

'

30
.00

'

99.83'

BLOCK C, LOT 1

2994.98 S.F.

BLOCK C, LOT 3

2472.10 S.F.

BLOCK C, LOT 4

2249.59 S.F.

30
.00

'

30
.00

'

99.83'

25
.00

'

99.78'

2.87'

11.
97 '

11.32'

25
.00

'

94.79'

26.30'

87.57'

BLOCK B, LOT 4
3410.67 S.F.

82.52'

30
.7

9'

18
.2

3'

105.57'
6.27'

112.22'

20.72'

5.26'

114.08'

22.66'

7.
49

'

30
.0

1'

BLOCK A, LOT 2
2,895 SF

114.95'

30
.0

1'

115.48'

25
.2

4'

115.51'

24
.7

7' 25
.0

0'

115.56'

40
.0

0'

BLOCK O, LOT 1

2456.62 S.F.
BLOCK O, LOT 2

1755.33 S.F.
BLOCK O, LOT 3

1755.87 S.F.
BLOCK O, LOT 4

1756.35 S.F.
BLOCK O, LOT 5

2107.28 S.F.

35
.00

'

35
.00

'

70.20'

25
.00

'

25
.00

'

70.23'

25
.00

'

25
.00

'

70.24'

25
.00

'

70.26'

30
.00

'

56.79'

27
.0

1'

25
.7

6'

126.34'

110.19'

30
.1

3'

104.70'

108.84'

101.23'

25
.0

0'

BLOCK M, LOT 54510.08 S.F.

101.20'

30
.0

1'

103.95'

25
.0

2'

25
.0

0'

106.38'

25
.0

3'

108.99'

25
.0

5'

25
.0

0'

112.04'

30
.2

5'

30
.00

'

25
.00

'

30
.0

0'
30

.03
'

25
.00

'

25
.0

9'

BLOCK P, LOT 3
3266.96 S.F.

126.34'

25
.0

6'

20
.7

8'
27

.0
1'

126.34'

25
.0

8'

118.13'

BLOCK D, LOT 3

2496.03 S.F.

25
.00

'

99.84'

25
.00

'

25
.00

'
25

.00
'

99.84'

BLOCK J, LOT 32224.49 S.F.

BLOCK L, LOT 1
2995.30 S.F.30

.1
6 '

98.26'

30
.0

0'

25
.0

0'

98.26'

25
.0

0'

96.97'

95.68'

25
.0

0'

25
.0

0'

9.
66

'
15

.4
8'100.01'

BLOCK P, LOT 4
3054.01 S.F.

49.18'

28.19'

30
.00

'

98.21'

EX. 10.0' PEDESTRIAN
AND UTILITY ESMT

EX. 10.0' PEDESTRIAN
AND UTILITY ESMT

BLO
CK G

, L
OT 4

39
49

.54
 S.F.

25
.4

5' 75.79'

30
.8

6 '

R25'

30
.7

9'

29
.00

'

87.57'

30
.7

6 '

82.41'

R50'

36.83'

26
.47

'

30
.0

2'

30
.0

7'

BLOCK I, LOT 21948.56 S.F.

79.54'

25
.0

0'

25
.3

0 '

104.29'30
.4

5'

85.77'

25
.1

2'

4.
03

'

30.00'

94.64'

30.00'

30.00'

94
.74

'

30.00'

35.00'

94
.84

'

35.00'

94
.96

'

BLO
CK H

 LO
T 3

28
40

.83
 S.F.

35.00'

95
.44

'

35.00'

30.00'

95
.33

'

30.07'

30.00'

95
.24

'

29.93'

30.00'

95
.14

'

30.00'

95
.04

'

29.11'

95
.04

'

16.23'

33.91'

1.19'

95
.44

' 30.00'

95
.82

'

30.00'

30.00'

95
.73

'

30.00'

30.00'

95
.64

'

30.00'

35.00'

95
.54

'

35.00'

95
.44

'

5 4
.0

5 '

16.26'

34
.0

9'

10
6.9

0'

30.00'

91
.59

'

65.00'

65.54'

25
.0

0'

65.30'

30
.0

0'

65.00'

30
.0

0'

9.54'

77.25'
77.25'

25
.0

6'

25
.0

0'

75.42'

25
.0

7'

25
.0

0'

73.55'
4.74'

25.34'

74.89'

BLOCK T, LOT 2,
1749.89 S.F.

BLOCK T, LOT 1,
2100.15 S.F.

5.18'

30
.0

0 '

30
.0

6'

70.00'

70.02'

BLO
CK H

 LO
T 1

34
43

.97
 S.F.

38.76'

30.00'

94.54'

34.05'

EX. PP

EX. PP

EX. PP

EX. PP EX. INLET

EX. INLET
EX. INLET

13' SIDEWALK &
PEDESTRIAN ESMT

EX. DRIVEWAY (TO BE
REMOVED)

PL
AY

G
R

O
U

N
D

MAILBOX CLUSTER

BLOCK Q, LOT 4
4987.37 S.F.

50
.0

0'

99.51'

50
.0

0'

100.01'

EX. PP TO
BE RELOCATED
BY DEVELOPER

EX
. P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

EX
. P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

91
.59

'

70.13'

SCREENING FENCE

SCREENING FENCE

50
.0

'

EX. 10.0' PEDESTRIAN
AND UTILITY ESMT

EX. 10.0' PEDESTRIAN
AND UTILITY ESMT

30
.0

0'

BLOCK Q, LOT 3
2504.21 S.F.

BLOCK P, LOT 5
3421.02 S.F.

30
.4

2'
40

.73
'

129.85'

30
.0

0'

70.13'

30.00'

GAZEBO

25
.0

0'
30

.0
0'

25
.0

0'

25
.3

6'

BBQ/PICNIC

AREA

25
.0

0'

R325'

R375'

32
.5

3 '

BLOCK U, LOT 2,1635.26 S.F. 25
.0

0'25
.0

0'

100.01'

40
.0

0'

13.81'

4.08'

12.76'

95.18'

29.93'

90.78'

25
.00

'

SCREENING FENCE
SCREENING FENCE

BLO
CK G

, L
OT 3

28
12

.90
 S.F.

BLO
CK G

, L
OT 2

28
53

.76
 S.F.

BLO
CK H

 LO
T 5

33
21

.56
 S.F.

BLO
CK H

 LO
T 4

28
43

.82
 S.F.

BLO
CK H

 LO
T 2

28
37

.85
 S.F.

BLO
CK Z LO

T 1

82
63

.36
 S.F.

BLO
CK Z LO

T 3

32
10

.78
 S.F.

BLOCK I, LOT 162422.65 S.F.

BLOCK J, LOT 13531.90 S.F.

BLOCK J, LOT 21808.99 S.F.

BLOCK I, LOT 33258.33 S.F.

BLOCK U, LOT 1,2921.89 S.F.
BLOCK A, LOT 4

4,622 SF

R
50

'

R20'

R31'

R25'

R60'
R60'

R22'R2
2'

R
22

'

R22'

R
25

'

R25'

R22'

BLOCK T, LOT 3,
2190.20 S.F.

PROPOSED 50
' R

.O
.W

. D
EDIC

ATIO
N

S2
° 3

9'
 4

7.
11

"E
  1

14
.9

3'

C4

S1
3°

 5
3'

 3
4.

38
"W

  8
.3

5'

S41
° 1

4' 
54

.41
"W

  3
61

.58
'

S89° 59' 10.57"W  36.12'

N41° 19' 34.03"W
  270.98'

N44° 10' 32.87"W  315.49'

N45
° 4

9' 
27

.13
"E

  2
9.5

3'

S89° 14' 46.29"E  34.95'

S0
° 2

2'
 5

1.
48

"W
  5

5.
80

'

S9
° 2

4'
 0

2.
32

"W
  1

01
.1

3'

C3

Curve Table

Curve #

C1

C3

C4

Length

65.24

182.86

138.56

Radius

125.17

350.00

497.46

Delta

29.86

29.93

15.96

Chord Direction

S23° 14' 01"W

S24° 22' 05"W

S14° 16' 55"E

Chord Length

64.51

180.79

138.11

ALT
AF D

RIV
E

M
AT

TH
EW

S 
ST

R
EE

T

EMMA LANE

ZA
ST

Y 
AV

EN
U

E

C1

S4
° 5

7'
 1

4.
23

"W
  1

01
.4

2'

15' CITY DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

BLO
CK X LO

T 1

33
38

.38
 S.F.

BLO
CK X LO

T 2

28
61

.92
 S.F.

BLO
CK X LO

T 3

28
52

.21
 S.F.

BLO
CK X LO

T 4

28
52

.70
 S.F.

BLO
CK Y LO

T 2

28
73

.29
 S.F.

BLO
CK Y LO

T 3

28
70

.51
 S.F.

BLO
CK Y LO

T 4

28
67

.72
 S.F.

BLO
CK Y LO

T 5

33
42

.16
 S.F.

BLOCK U, LOT 4,1954.47 S.F.

BLOCK S, LOT 42211.97 S.F.

BLOCK U, LOT 3,1635.48 S.F.

BLO
CK X LO

T 5

33
17

.29
 S.F.

BLOCK R, LOT 3

2352.17 S.F.

R39'

R39'

R42'

R49'

R6
7'

15' CITY UTILITY
EASEMENT

BLOCK L, LOT 3
2407.08 S.F.

BLOCK L, LOT 2
2439.02 S.F.

BLOCK Q, LOT 1
3201.50 S.F.

BLOCK Q, LOT 2
2572.89 S.F.

BLOCK L, LOT 5
3608.22 S.F.

R60'

R
48

'

R6
6'

R22
'

BLOCK C, LOT 2

2495.04 S.F.

BLOCK D, LOT 4

2495.96 S.F.

BLOCK D, LOT 2

2496.24 S.F.

BLOCK E, LOT 2

2496.44 S.F.

BLOCK F, LOT 2

1904.71 S.F.

45
.0

0'44
.9

8'

91
.59

'

35.00'

25
.00

'

25
.0

0'

25.
30

'

22
.1

8'

51
.72

'

25
.0

0'
43

.3
7'

99.87'

99.84'

25
.00

'

25
.00

'

30
.0

1'

78.42'

78.71'

30
.0

0'

70.00'

32
. 4

7'

46.19'

96.12'

26
.7

2'

104.40'

BLOCK L, LOT 4
2478.68 S.F.

TENNIS

COURT

PICKLEBALL

COURT

6' CEDAR WOOD SCREENING FENCE

6' CEDAR WOOD SCREENING FENCE

HOA LO
T 1

12
2,1

05
 SF

15' CITY UTILITY

EASEMENT

15
' D

RAIN
AGE

EASEMENT

20'

10
' U

.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

315' TO E. CENTERVILLE RD. 253' TO CHIESA RANCH DRIVEWAY

5'

5' SETBACK

10' SETBACK

5' SETBACK

10' U.E.

48' 45'

100' R
O

W

PROPOSED 17
.5'

 R
OW

PROP. 50'ROW

PROP. 50'
ROW

27'

27'

27'

50'

100' ROW

50.0'

173'

PROP. 50'
ROW

PROP. 60'
ROW

PROPOSED 17
.5'

 ROW

10
' U

.E.

10
' U

.E.

VA
R

IA
BL

E 
W

ID
TH

 R
O

W
AT

 IN
TE

R
SE

C
TI

O
N

50.0'

27
'

15' CITY UTILITY

EASEM
ENT

EX 5' SIDEW
ALK

6' LANDSCAPE

BUFFER

27
'

25' UTILITYEASEMENT

15
' D

RAIN
AGE

EASEMENT

20'

20'

20'

20'

20
'

PROP. 50'ROW

30
'

27
'

PROP. 5
0'

ROW

10' SETBACK

10' U.E

26'

40
'

44
'

31
'

47
'

32
'

5' SETBACK

6' LAN
D

SC
APE

BU
FFER

27'

EX. R
OW

20
'

20
'

20
'

20
'

20'

20'

20'

20'

20'

20'

20'

20'

5' 
SETBACK

5' 
SETBACK

5' 
SETBACK

5' 
SETBACK

5' 
SETBACK

5' SETBACK

5' SETBACK

5' SETBACK

5' SETBACK

5' SETBACK 5' SETBACK

5' SETBACK

5' SETBACK

5' SETBACK

5' SETBACK

5' SETBACK

5' SETBACK

5' SETBACK

32'

10' U
.E.

6'
 S

ID
EW

AL
K

6' SID
EW

ALK

6' SID
EW

ALK

4' SIDEWALK

4' SIDEWALK

4' 
SI

DE
W

AL
K

4' SIDEWALK

4' SIDEWALK

4' SIDEWALK

4' SIDEWALK

4' SIDEWALK

4' SIDEWALK

4' SIDEWALK

5' SIDE SETBACK

5' SIDE SETBACK
5' SIDE SETBACK

5' SIDE SETBACK

5' SIDE SETBACK

5' SIDE SETBACK

5'

5' SIDE SETBACK

5' SIDE SETBACK
5' SIDE SETBACK

10
' P

ARKIN
G

5' SETBACK

6'
 L

AN
D

SC
AP

E
BU

FF
ER

5' PROPOSED TRAIL

4' SIDEWALK

5' PROPOSED TRAIL

5' 
PROPOSED TR

AIL

BLO
CK Y LO

T 1

33
55

.42
 S.F.

BLOCK S, LOT 12550.23 S.F.

BLOCK S, LOT 21908.46 S.F.

BLOCK S, LOT 31862.04 S.F.

BLOCK B, LOT 1
3715.23 S.F.

BLOCK B, LOT 2
2307.32 S.F.

BLOCK B, LOT 3
2735.59 S.F.

BLOCK A, LOT 1
3,435 SF

BLOCK A, LOT 3
2,876 SF

BLOCK P, LOT 1
3191.83 S.F.

BLOCK P, LOT 2
3365.66 S.F.

BLOCK R, LOT 2

2042.67 S.F.

BLOCK R, LOT 1

3743.44 S.F.

BLOCK M, LOT 42760.21 S.F.

BLOCK M, LOT 32689.48 S.F.

BLOCK M, LOT 22626.84 S.F.

BLOCK M, LOT 13747.78 S.F.

52
.16

'

77.09'

13.95'253.79'
96.13'

5.41'

21.84'
14

.14
'

19
.0

5'

82
.4

7'
11

5.
00

'

21
.4

9 '
16

.1
9'

143.60'

6.20'

56.05'

7.70'

80
.4

7'

9.30'

85
.9

3'

44
.2

6'

12
5.

50'

4.
00

' 139.53'

30
.0

0'

79
.9

9'

1.15'

145.20'

34
.0

3'31
.8

7'

15
.6

9'

113.93'

19.75'

84
.77

'

70.19'

111.74'

1.35'

79
.9

9'

15
.5

8'
15

.5
8'

HOA LOT 3
1,481 SF

HOA LOT 2
29,055 SF

94
.80

'

BLOCK F, LOT 3

2604.42 S.F.

HOA LOT 1
84,228 SF

164.81'

13
.91

'
16

.0
3'

24
5.

96
'

51
.4

9'

43
9.0

0'

95.20'

8.68'

10
0.3

6'

303.16'

18.80'

445.92'

162.18'

16.26'

179.10'

11
.5

5'

101.17'

10.56'

11.56'

41
.3

3 '

12
4.

98
'

64.64' 19
.5

7'

13.98'

82.56'

297.93'

10.80'

508.05'

9.
50

'

55.63'

373.52'

43
0.4

8'

104.25'

39
4.

81
'

35.00'

35.00'

BLO
CK Y LO

T 2

29
23

.14
 S.F. 35.75'

5.92'

30
.00

'

9.93'

77.88'

9.
0 5

'

5.58'

12
.0

9'

99.86'

BLOCK C, LOT 5

3944.58 S.F.

45
.9

6'
25

.0
0'

25
.0

0'
30

.0
1'

21.58'
13.37'

135.17'

99
.67

'

21
.49

'

26
.8

3'

25
.0

0 '

70.13'

72.14'

NOTES:
FILE:

SCALE:

DESIGN:
DRAWN:
DATE:

REVISIONS

04/22/24

CCM
CCM

25
70

 F
M

 4
07

, S
ui

te
 2

09
Hi

gh
la

nd
 V

ill
ag

e,
 T

ex
as

 7
50

77
Ph

: 9
72

. 6
91

.6
63

3
Fa

x:
 9

72
.6

91
.6

62
8

TB
PE

 F
IR

M
 #

60
5

C
C

M
 E

n
g

in
ee

ri
n

g
M

ill
er

 E
st

at
es

C
it

y 
of

 G
ar

la
n

d
, 

Tx

Sheet of 7

FOR PRELIMINARY
REVIEW ONLY

IT IS NOT TO BE USED FOR
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES.

BUILDING TYPE ATTACHED TOWNHOMES
TOTAL AREA OF SITE: 11.19 ACRE (487,436 SF)
FLOOR AREA RATIO: 0.50
IMPERVIOUS SURFACE COVERAGE: 374,847 SF (77%)
TOTAL BUILDING COVERAGE: VARIES
SITE IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE: 77%
OFF-STREET PARKING SPACES: 25
NET RESIDENTIAL DENSITIES: 10.09 LOTS/ACRE
MIN LOT SIZE: 1,500 SF
MAX LOT SIZE: 4,100 SF
MIN DWELLING UNIT SIZE: 1,100 SF
MIN LOT DEPTH: 65'
MAX LOT DEPTH: 135'
MIN LOT WIDTH: 22' 
MAX LOT WIDTH: 90'
MAX BUILDING LENGTH 180'
OPEN SPACE PROVIDED: 98,832 SF
BUILDING HEIGHT: 40' (MAX); 30' (TYP.)
MINIMUM YARD SETBACKS
FRONT: 10'
SIDE: 0' (INTERNAL); 5' (END)
REAR: 5'
HOA COMMON SPACE PROVIDED 114,738 SF
PERCENTAGE OF COMMON SPACE 23.53%
TREE REQUIREMENT: 1 TREE (MIN 50% >3" CALIPER) PER EVERY 250 SF

FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION TO BUILT 1 FT ABOVE TOP OF CURB
PROPOSED ROADWAY TO BE CONSTRUCTED PER CITY REQUIREMENTS
NO EXISTING DRAINAGE WAYS OR NATURAL FEATURES

EXISTING ZONING: PD 85-24
PROPOSED ZONING: PD-20-44 (SFA)

Garland, Texas - 90 TH Lots, 3 HOA LOTS
PRE-SUBMITTAL CASE #: 220517-2

PROVIDED

90
4  = 22.5, 23

75%

GDC REQUIREMENT

90'

20' (30' END)
90'

2,000 SF

10'
10' & 5'
10'

40'

1 inch = 50 feet
02550 50

S
IT

E 
P

LA
N

 E
X

H
IB

IT

1

L E G E N D

PR
O

PE
R

TY
LI

N
E

PR
O

PER
TY

LIN
E

DRAINAGE
SWALE

PROPOSED
FENCES

TYPICAL HOA DRAINAGE
LOT

5' HOA LOT

X X X X

1,400 SF

180'

REQ.

10%
48,744 SF

TOWNHOME UNIT

R5'R5'
10'

20'

R5' R5'

20'

TYPICAL DRIVEWAY EXHIBIT
(SINGLE UNIT)

NOTES:

1. SIDEWALKS TO BE BUILT AT DEVELOPERS
EXPENSE ON ALL NON-BUILDABLE LOTS.

2. EXISTING POWER POLES TO BE RELOCATED
AS NECESSARY AT DEVELOPERS EXPENSE.

3. AN ALLEY WAIVER IS BEING REQUESTED.

4. EXISTING DRIVEWAY ON E. MILLER RD. TO
BE CLOSED AND REMOVED.

5. PARKING PAVING WITHIN THE RIGHT OF
WAY SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOA AND
A LICENSE AGREEMENT WILL BE REQUIRED
FROM ENGINEERING AT THE TIME OF
CONSTRUCTION

6. OFFSITE DRAINAGE EASEMENT(S) TO BE
OBTAINED BY DEVELOPER

7. DEVELOPER SHALL OBTAIN DRAINAGE
EASEMENT FROM CITY OF DALLAS PRIOR TO
PERMITTING AND PLATTING

8. GARAGES ARE NOT TO BE CONSTRUCTED
WITHIN 20' OF ROW PER CITY OF GARLAND
CODE

9. EACH TOWNHOME UNIT WILL FEATURE A
TWO CAR GARAGE

10. PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT SHALL MEET
CITY OF GARLAND LIGHTING STANDARDS PER
ARTICLE 7, CHAPTER 4 OF THE GDC.

EXH
IB

IT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DOCUMENT IS RELEASED FOR THE PURPOSE  OF INTERIM REVIEW UNDER THE  AUTHORITY OF  JEFF D. CRANNELL, PE#50800 ON 04/22/24 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY RETAINING WALL LOCATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY SCREENING WALL LOCATIONS 6' MASONRY SCREENING FENCE



PR
OP

OS
ED

 5
0'

 R
.O

.W
. D

ED
IC

AT
IO

N

5

PR
OPO

SE
D 50

' R
.O

.W
. D

ED
ICA

TIO
N

CO
MMON A

REA

BLOCK A

BLOCK B

BLOCK C

BLOCK D

BLOCK E

BLOCK F

BLOCK G

BLOCK H

BLOCK I

BLOCK J

BLOCK L

BLOCK M

BLOCK O

BLOCK P

BLOCK Q

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

3

2

1

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

2

1

3

2

1

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

5

3

2

1
3

2

1

1

2

3

BLOCK R

BLOCK U

BLOCK Z

BLOCK Y

BLOCK X

5

4

1

2

3

4

5

2

1

BLOCK S

2

1

BLOCK T
3

3

4

3

4
1

2

3

4

M
AT

TH
EW

S 
ST

RE
ET

ZA
ST

Y 
AV

EN
UE

EMMA LANE

AL
TA

F D
RIVE

PROPERTY LINE

BERMUDA GRASS SOLID
SOD AND FINE GRADE

MAIL KIOSK

EAST MILLER ROAD
100' R.O.W.

EXISTING ALLEY

CHEISA RANCH ADDITION

EX. 10 UTILITY ESMT

EX. 30.0' UTILITY ESMT

EX. 10.0' PEDESTRIAN
AND UTILITY ESMT

SOONER RANCH PROPERTIES LP
CHIESA RANCH REPLAT
BLK 1 LT 14R1 ACS 19.69

SOONER RANCH PROPERTIES LP
CHIESA RANCH REPLAT
BLK 1 LT 12R ACS 1.82

PHAM THUY

BLK
 A LT

 13

DELE
ON M

ISTY KAY &

VELA
ZQUEZ R

AFAEL A
 D

ELE
ON

BLK
 A LT

 12
 N

/A

NGUYEN N
GHIA T

BLK
 A LO

T 11

WEST SHORE ESTATES 3 REP

NELS
ON C

ANDIE C

BLK
 A LO

T 10

KARLS
ENG M

IC
HAEL &

SALD
IVAR KELL

EY 58
38

 PALO

BLK
 A LT

 14

8' LANDSCAPE BUFFER
8' LANDSCAPE BUFFER8' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

PR
OP

OS
ED

 5
0'

 R
.O

.W
. D

ED
IC

AT
IO

N

5

PR
OPO

SE
D 50

' R
.O

.W
. D

ED
ICA

TIO
N

CO
MMON A

REA

BLOCK A

BLOCK B

BLOCK C

BLOCK D

BLOCK E

BLOCK F

BLOCK G

BLOCK H

BLOCK I

BLOCK J

BLOCK L

BLOCK M

BLOCK O

BLOCK P

BLOCK Q

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

3

2

1

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

2

1

3

2

1

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

5

3

2

1
3

2

1

1

2

3

BLOCK R

BLOCK U

BLOCK Z

BLOCK Y

BLOCK X

5

4

1

2

3

4

5

2

1

BLOCK S

2

1

BLOCK T
3

3

4

3

4
1

2

3

4

M
AT

TH
EW

S 
ST

RE
ET

ZA
ST

Y 
AV

EN
UE

EMMA LANE

AL
TA

F D
RIVE

6' SIDEWALK

PR
OP

OS
ED

 5
0'

 R
.O

.W
. D

ED
IC

AT
IO

N

5

PR
OPO

SE
D 50

' R
.O

.W
. D

ED
ICA

TIO
N

CO
MMON A

REA

BLOCK A

BLOCK B

BLOCK C

BLOCK D

BLOCK E

BLOCK F

BLOCK G

BLOCK H

BLOCK I

BLOCK J

BLOCK L

BLOCK M

BLOCK O

BLOCK P

BLOCK Q

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

3

2

1

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

2

1

3

2

1

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

5

3

2

1
3

2

1

1

2

3

BLOCK R

BLOCK U

BLOCK Z

BLOCK Y

BLOCK X

5

4

1

2

3

4

5

2

1

BLOCK S

2

1

BLOCK T
3

3

4

3

4
1

2

3

4

M
AT

TH
EW

S 
ST

RE
ET

ZA
ST

Y 
AV

EN
UE

EMMA LANE

AL
TA

F D
RIVE

8' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

6' MASONRY WALL (TYP)

6' MASONRY WALL (TYP)
6' MASONRY WALL (TYP)

5' TRAIL

5' TRAIL

5' SIDEWALK
PER CITY STDS

5' SIDEWALK
PER CITY STDS

5' SIDEWALK
PER CITY STDS

5' TRAIL

5' TRAIL

5' TRAIL

5' TRAIL

Legend

6' Masonry Wall

6' Wood Fence

Garland, Dallas County, Texas

Planner:

Case No. 220517-2
22 MAY 24

0 40' 80'

1" = 40'

Miller Estates

SAGE GROUP, INC.
Master Planning
Urban Design
Architecture

Landscape Architecture
1130 N. Carroll Ave., Ste. 200

Southlake, Texas 76092
817-424-2626

Engineer:
CCM Engineering
2570 Justin Road, Suite 209
Highland Village, TX 75077
Tel: 972-691-6633
Contact: Cody Crannell

Applicant:
Lone Star Green Homes
4740 14th Avenue, Suite 320
Plano, Texas 75074
Tel: 214-631-9286

NORTH

Location Map - N.T.S.

SITE

RO
WLE

TT
 RO

AD

GARLAND

LAKE
RAY HUBBARD

HWY 635

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENT

OPEN SPACE TREES - 1 TREE PER 2,500 S.F. OF TOWN HOME
= 88 UNITS x 1,400 S.F. = 123,200 S.F./2,500 = 49 TREES

REQUIRED 49 TREES PROVIDED 49 TREES

INTERIOR STREET TREES - 1 TREE PER UNIT = 88 STREET TREES
REQUIRED 88 TREES PROVIDED 88 TREES

NOTES:
· All required trees to be selected from the approved tree list and be a minimum of 3

inches in diameter and 7 feet in height at time of planting.
· Iron fence location requires a continuous row of evergreen shrubs along portions

that are not opaque masonry walls.
· No parking space is greater than 65 feet from a required tree.

Owner:
Shahed Altaf
4740 14th Avenue, Suite 320
Plano, Texas 75074
Tel: 214-918-2533

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

SITE AREA - 11.19 AC
LANDSCAPED AREA - 4.98 AC 43.81%

TREES REQUIRED PROVIDED
TOTAL TREES 159 159

SHRUBS REQUIRED PROVIDED
5 GAL. 172 172

NOTE:  LANDSCAPING IS PROVIDED
PER GDC CHAPTER 4, SECTION 4.37

BROADWAY BLVD

N.
 B

EL
TL

IN
E 

RD

DA
LR

O
CK

 R
O

AD

E. MILLER ROADW. MILLER ROAD

RO
W

LE
TT

 R
D

PR
ES

.G
EO

RG
E

BU
SH

 T
O

LL
W

AY

23 MAY 24

CE
NT

ER
VI

LL
E 

RD

S. COUNTRY CLUB RD

S.
CO

UN
TR

Y 
CL

UB
 R

D

160' Landscape Plan

ROWLETT
HIGH

SCHOOL

I-3
0

FE
RG

US
ON 

RO
AD

W CE
NT

ER
VIL

LE
 RD

S.
 1

ST
 S

TR
EE

T

LA
 PR

AD
A D

RI
VE

LA
 PR

AD
A D

RI
VE

BASS
PRO

SHOPS
LAKEVIEW

CENTENNIAL
HS

GARLAND
CONVENTION &

RECEPTION
CENTER

NOTE:

Public Right of Way, easements and common areas must be stabilized with perennial
vegetation cover, fully established with 100% coverage, or other approved stabilization
method.

No landscaping such as trees, hedges, above and underground structures shall be
located within existing or proposed utility easements and right of way without approved
City's Real Property Improvement Authorization form or City's License Agreement.

NOTE:  REFER TO FENCE DIAGRAM
FOR FENCE AND WALL DETAIL

EXH
IB

IT D

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"



PR
OP

OS
ED

 5
0'

 R
.O

.W
. D

ED
IC

AT
IO

N

5

PR
OPO

SE
D 50

' R
.O

.W
. D

ED
ICA

TIO
N

CO
MMON A

REA

BLOCK A

BLOCK B

BLOCK C

BLOCK D

BLOCK E

BLOCK F

BLOCK G

BLOCK H

BLOCK I

BLOCK J

BLOCK L

BLOCK M

BLOCK O

BLOCK P

BLOCK Q

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

3

2

1

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

2

1

3

2

1

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

5

3

2

1
3

2

1

1

2

3

BLOCK R

BLOCK U

BLOCK Z

BLOCK Y

BLOCK X

5

4

1

2

3

4

5

2

1

BLOCK S

2

1

BLOCK T
3

3

4

3

4
1

2

3

4

M
AT

TH
EW

S 
ST

RE
ET

ZA
ST

Y 
AV

EN
UE

EMMA LANE

AL
TA

F D
RIVE

PROPERTY LINE

EAST MILLER ROAD
100' R.O.W.

EXISTING ALLEY

CHEISA RANCH ADDITION

EX. 10 UTILITY ESMT

EX. 30.0' UTILITY ESMT

EX. 10.0' PEDESTRIAN
AND UTILITY ESMT

SOONER RANCH PROPERTIES LP
CHIESA RANCH REPLAT
BLK 1 LT 14R1 ACS 19.69

SOONER RANCH PROPERTIES LP
CHIESA RANCH REPLAT
BLK 1 LT 12R ACS 1.82

PHAM THUY

BLK
 A LT

 13

DELE
ON M

ISTY KAY &

VELA
ZQUEZ R

AFAEL A
 D

ELE
ON

BLK
 A LT

 12
 N

/A

NGUYEN N
GHIA T

BLK
 A LO

T 11

WEST SHORE ESTATES 3 REP

NELS
ON C

ANDIE C

BLK
 A LO

T 10

KARLS
ENG M

IC
HAEL &

SALD
IVAR KELL

EY 58
38

 PALO

BLK
 A LT

 14

CHARLD
EN D

ALT
ON JR

8' LANDSCAPE BUFFER
8' LANDSCAPE BUFFER8' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

PR
OP

OS
ED

 5
0'

 R
.O

.W
. D

ED
IC

AT
IO

N

5

PR
OPO

SE
D 50

' R
.O

.W
. D

ED
ICA

TIO
N

CO
MMON A

REA

BLOCK A

BLOCK B

BLOCK C

BLOCK D

BLOCK E

BLOCK F

BLOCK G

BLOCK H

BLOCK I

BLOCK J

BLOCK L

BLOCK M

BLOCK O

BLOCK P

BLOCK Q

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

3

2

1

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

2

1

3

2

1

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

5

3

2

1
3

2

1

1

2

3

BLOCK R

BLOCK U

BLOCK Z

BLOCK Y

BLOCK X

5

4

1

2

3

4

5

2

1

BLOCK S

2

1

BLOCK T
3

3

4

3

4
1

2

3

4

M
AT

TH
EW

S 
ST

RE
ET

ZA
ST

Y 
AV

EN
UE

EMMA LANE

AL
TA

F D
RIVE

6' SIDEWALK

PR
OP

OS
ED

 5
0'

 R
.O

.W
. D

ED
IC

AT
IO

N

5

PR
OPO

SE
D 50

' R
.O

.W
. D

ED
ICA

TIO
N

CO
MMON A

REA

BLOCK A

BLOCK B

BLOCK C

BLOCK D

BLOCK E

BLOCK F

BLOCK G

BLOCK H

BLOCK I

BLOCK J

BLOCK L

BLOCK M

BLOCK O

BLOCK P

BLOCK Q

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

3

2

1

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

2

1

3

2

1

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

5

3

2

1
3

2

1

1

2

3

BLOCK R

BLOCK U

BLOCK Z

BLOCK Y

BLOCK X

5

4

1

2

3

4

5

2

1

BLOCK S

2

1

BLOCK T
3

3

4

3

4
1

2

3

4

M
AT

TH
EW

S 
ST

RE
ET

ZA
ST

Y 
AV

EN
UE

EMMA LANE

AL
TA

F D
RIVE

8' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

6' MASONRY WALL (TYP)

6' MASONRY WALL (TYP)
6' MASONRY WALL (TYP)

5' TRAIL

5' TRAIL

5' SIDEWALK
PER CITY STDS

5' SIDEWALK
PER CITY STDS

5' SIDEWALK
PER CITY STDS

5' TRAIL

5' TRAIL

5' TRAIL

5' TRAIL

Legend

6' Masonry Wall

6' Wood Fence

Garland, Dallas County, Texas

Planner:

23 MAY 24
0 60' 120'

1" =60'

SAGE GROUP, INC.
Master Planning
Urban Design
Architecture

Landscape Architecture
1130 N. Carroll Ave., Ste. 200

Southlake, Texas 76092
817-424-2626

NORTH

23 MAY 24

240'

Fence & Wall
Diagram

1/2"=1'-0"Elevation

Masonry Thinwall1

THINWALL - COLOR TO BE
OWNER SELECTED

10' o.c. max
OR Equal spacing

6'
-0

"

Engineer:
CCM Engineering
2570 Justin Road, Suite 209
Highland Village, TX 75077
Tel: 972-691-6633
Contact: Cody Crannell

Applicant:
Lone Star Green Homes
4740 14th Avenue, Suite T320
Plano, Texas 75074
Tel: 214-631-9286

1/2"=1'-0"Elevation

Signature Masonry Column at Entry2

CAST STONE BASE

SIGNATURE MASONRY
COLUMN - STONE TO BE
OWNER SELECTED

CAST STONE CAP

Miller
Estates

7'
-0

"

2'-6"

CAST CONCRETE SIGN

1'
-0

"

SIGN FONT - VINER HAND ITC

1'-6"

Miller Estates

Owner:
Shahed Altaf
4740 14th Avenue, Suite 320
Plano, Texas 75074
Tel: 214-918-2533

Case No. 220517-2

EXH
IB

IT D

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"



1

EMMA LANE

1

EMMA LANE

1

EMMA LANE

Garland, Dallas County, Texas

Planner:

23 MAY 24
0 10' 20'

1" =10'

SAGE GROUP, INC.
Master Planning
Urban Design
Architecture

Landscape Architecture
1130 N. Carroll Ave., Ste. 200

Southlake, Texas 76092
817-424-2626

NORTH

23 MAY 24

40'

3

SITE FIXTURES

QTY. SPECIFICATIONSSYMBOL

3

TRASH RECEPTACLES:
MANUF. - VICTOR STANLEY
MODEL: RB-36 36 GAL. SURFACE MOUNT
COLOR: BLACK

BACKED BENCHES: STEELSITE RB
COLLECTION
MANUF. - VICTOR STANLEY
MODEL: RB-28 6' SURFACE MOUNT
COLOR: BLACK

1

PICNIC TABLE: STEELSITE RB COLLECTION
MANUF. - VICTOR STANLEY
MODEL: FRST-6 6' TABLE
COLOR: BLACK

1

GRILL: MANUF. - CSF COMMERCIAL SITE
FURNISHINGS
MODEL: STD IN GROUND GRILL
COLOR: BLACK

VICTOR STANLEY ®
P.O. Drawer 330
DUNKIRK, MD 20754
P: 1-800-2368-2573

CSF COMMERCIAL SITE FURNISHINGS
3521 WETUMPKA HIGHWAY
MONTGOMERY, AL 36110-2717
P: 1-800-278-4480

1

BIKE RACK: VICTOR STANLEY
MODEL: BRCS-103 - CYCLE SENTRY
COLLECTION -5 BIKE - SURFACE MOUNT
COLOR: BLACK

1

2

3

4

5

NOTE:
7 CLUSTER BOX UNITS PER MAIL CENTER
(6- 16 A SIZE, TYPE III) = 6 X 16 = 96 A SIZE
(1-13 A SIZE, TYPE V) = 1 X 13 =13 A SIZE
TOTAL MAILBOXES = 109 A SIZE PLUS87 PARCEL LOCKERS

Common Areas

NOTE:

1. ALL SITE FURNISHINGS CAN BE OBTAINED THROUGH (OR EQ):

VICTOR STANLEY ®
P.O. Drawer 330
DUNKIRK, MD 20754
P: 1-800-2368-2573

2. COLOR FOR ALL:  BLACK

3. BACKED BENCHES ARE TO BE (OR EQ.):

STEELSITES RB  COLLECTION
MODEL NO. RB-28
SURFACE MOUNT 6' BENCHES

4. TRASH RECEPTACLES ARE TO BE (OR EQ.):

STEELSITES RB COLLECTION
MODEL NO.  RB-36 36 GAL. SURFACE MOUNT

5. PICNIC TABLE:

STEELSITE RB COLLECTION
MODEL NO. FRST-6 - 6'

6. GRILL:

CSF COMMERCIAL SITE FURNISHINGS
3521 WETUMPKA HIGHWAY
MONTGOMERY, AL 36110-2717
P: 1-800-278-4480

MODEL NO. STANDARD IN GROUND GRILL - IN GROUND
SPEC SHEET: LC120-STD-IG

BIKE RACK: VICTOR STANLEY
MODEL: BRCS-103 - CYCLE SENTRY
COLLECTION -5 BIKE - SURFACE MOUNT
COLOR: BLACK

Engineer:
CCM Engineering
2570 Justin Road, Suite 209
Highland Village, TX 75077
Tel: 972-691-6633
Contact: Cody Crannell

Applicant:
Lone Star Green Homes
4740 14th Avenue, Suite T320
Plano, Texas 75074
Tel: 214-631-9286

1

SHELTER: MANUF. - POLIGON
MODEL: SQR-12
COLOR: TO BE OWNER SELECTED6

POLIGON
HOLLAND, MI
616-399-1963

ACCESS FIXTURES
40 JACKSON STREET
WORCESTER, MA 01608
800-468-9925

10

BOLLARDS: ACCESS FIXTURES
MODEL: BOLO SOLAR LED BOLLARD LIGHT
- ROUND FLAT TOP
COLOR: BLACK

7

7

Miller Estates

Owner:
Shahed Altaf
4740 14th Avenue, Suite 320
Plano, Texas 75074
Tel: 214-918-2533

Plant List and Schedule
CANOPY TREES

ACCENT / UNDERSTORY TREES

SYMBOL PLANT NAME SIZE / CAL. / HT. / SPREAD CONDITION / REMARKS

contractor to field verify
quantity of sod / hydromulch required

Bermudagrass
Cynodon dactilon

NOTE: ALL TREES TO HAVE STRAIGHT TRUNKS AND BE MATCHING WITHIN VARIETIES

SYMBOL PLANT NAME CONDITION / REMARKS

SHRUBS
SYMBOL PLANT NAME CONDITION / REMARKS

TURF
SYMBOL

SOLID SOD

container grown; full growth; 48" o.c.;

PLANT NAME CONDITION / REMARKS

NOTE: ALL TREES TO HAVE STRAIGHT TRUNKS AND BE MATCHING WITHIN VARIETIES.

single trunk clear to 6'; box grown;
matching growth (MT = MULTITRUNK)

Cedar Elm
Ulmus crassifolia

'Little Gem' Magnolia
Magnlia grandiflor 'Little Gem'

container grown; matching growth
(MT = MULTITRUNK)

5 GAL. / 30" HT. /
36" SPREAD

NOTE: ALL HEIGHTS AND SPREADS ARE MINIMUMS.  ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL MEET OR EXCEED REMARKS AS INDICATED

Rose Glow Japanese Barberry
Berberis thunbergii 'Rose Glow'

QUANTITY

9

93

80

210,566 S.F.

3" CAL. / 14'-16' HT. /
10'-12' SPREAD

SIZE / CAL. / HT. / SPREADQUANTITY

SIZE / CAL. / HT. / SPREADQUANTITY

30 Gal. / 8' HT. / 4' SPREAD

15 GAL. / 5'-6' HT. /
10" SPREAD

SIZE / CAL. / HT. / SPREADQUANTITY

45

single trunk clear to 6'; box grown;
matching growth (MT = MULTITRUNK)

Red Oak
Quercus shumardii

3" CAL. / 14'-16' HT. /
10'-12' SPREAD

40

single trunk clear to 6'; box grown;
matching growth (MT = MULTITRUNK)

Live Oak
Quercus virginiana

3" CAL. / 14'-16' HT. /
10'-12' SPREAD

68

Crape Myrtle
lagerstroemia indica

single trunk clear to 6'; box grown;
matching growth (MT = MULTITRUNK)

Chinquapin Oak
Quercus muehlenbergii

3" CAL. / 14'-16' HT. /
10'-12' SPREAD

13

container grown; full growth; 36" o.c.;

2

1

Case No. 220517-2

PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT SHOWN IS FROM
WILLYGOAT TOYS & PLAYGROUNDS
www.willygoat.com

EXH
IB

IT D

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"



3

4

ZA
ST

Y 
AV

EN
UE

3

4

ZA
ST

Y 
AV

EN
UE

6' SIDEWALK

3

4

ZA
ST

Y 
AV

EN
UE

Garland, Dallas County, Texas

Planner:

23 MAY 24
0 10' 20'

1" =10'

SAGE GROUP, INC.
Master Planning
Urban Design
Architecture

Landscape Architecture
1130 N. Carroll Ave., Ste. 200

Southlake, Texas 76092
817-424-2626

NORTH

23 MAY 24

40'

3

SITE FIXTURES

QTY. SPECIFICATIONSSYMBOL

3

TRASH RECEPTACLES:
MANUF. - VICTOR STANLEY
MODEL: RB-36 36 GAL. SURFACE MOUNT
COLOR: BLACK

BACKED BENCHES: STEELSITE RB
COLLECTION
MANUF. - VICTOR STANLEY
MODEL: RB-28 6' SURFACE MOUNT
COLOR: BLACK

1

PICNIC TABLE: STEELSITE RB COLLECTION
MANUF. - VICTOR STANLEY
MODEL: FRST-6 6' TABLE
COLOR: BLACK

1

GRILL: MANUF. - CSF COMMERCIAL SITE
FURNISHINGS
MODEL: STD IN GROUND GRILL
COLOR: BLACK

VICTOR STANLEY ®
P.O. Drawer 330
DUNKIRK, MD 20754
P: 1-800-2368-2573

CSF COMMERCIAL SITE FURNISHINGS
3521 WETUMPKA HIGHWAY
MONTGOMERY, AL 36110-2717
P: 1-800-278-4480

1

BIKE RACK: VICTOR STANLEY
MODEL: BRCS-103 - CYCLE SENTRY
COLLECTION -5 BIKE - SURFACE MOUNT
COLOR: BLACK

1

2

3

4

5

NOTE:
7 CLUSTER BOX UNITS PER MAIL CENTER
(6- 16 A SIZE, TYPE III) = 6 X 16 = 96 A SIZE
(1-13 A SIZE, TYPE V) = 1 X 13 =13 A SIZE
TOTAL MAILBOXES = 109 A SIZE PLUS87 PARCEL LOCKERS

HOA Lot

NOTE:

1. ALL SITE FURNISHINGS CAN BE OBTAINED THROUGH (OR EQ):

VICTOR STANLEY ®
P.O. Drawer 330
DUNKIRK, MD 20754
P: 1-800-2368-2573

2. COLOR FOR ALL:  BLACK

3. BACKED BENCHES ARE TO BE (OR EQ.):

STEELSITES RB  COLLECTION
MODEL NO. RB-28
SURFACE MOUNT 6' BENCHES

4. TRASH RECEPTACLES ARE TO BE (OR EQ.):

STEELSITES RB COLLECTION
MODEL NO.  RB-36 36 GAL. SURFACE MOUNT

5. PICNIC TABLE:

STEELSITE RB COLLECTION
MODEL NO. FRST-6 - 6'

6. GRILL:

CSF COMMERCIAL SITE FURNISHINGS
3521 WETUMPKA HIGHWAY
MONTGOMERY, AL 36110-2717
P: 1-800-278-4480

MODEL NO. STANDARD IN GROUND GRILL - IN GROUND
SPEC SHEET: LC120-STD-IG

BIKE RACK: VICTOR STANLEY
MODEL: BRCS-103 - CYCLE SENTRY
COLLECTION -5 BIKE - SURFACE MOUNT
COLOR: BLACK

Engineer:
CCM Engineering
2570 Justin Road, Suite 209
Highland Village, TX 75077
Tel: 972-691-6633
Contact: Cody Crannell

Applicant:
Lone Star Green Homes
4740 14th Avenue, Suite T320
Plano, Texas 75074
Tel: 214-631-9286

1

SHELTER: MANUF. - POLIGON
MODEL: SQR-12
COLOR: TO BE OWNER SELECTED6

POLIGON
HOLLAND, MI
616-399-1963

ACCESS FIXTURES
40 JACKSON STREET
WORCESTER, MA 01608
800-468-9925

10

BOLLARDS: ACCESS FIXTURES
MODEL: BOLO SOLAR LED BOLLARD LIGHT
- ROUND FLAT TOP
COLOR: BLACK

7

Miller Estates

Owner:
Shahed Altaf
4740 14th Avenue, Suite 320
Plano, Texas 75074
Tel: 214-918-2533

GAZEBO AND PICNIC AREA

2

4

1

Case No. 220517-2

3

3

3

7

EXH
IB

IT D



30'-0"30'-0"30'-0"30'-0"30'-0"

RECESSED 
ENTRY

DORMER

CANOPY

DIVIDED 
LITE 

WINDOWS

SECTIONAL 
GARAGE DOOR

SHINGLES ROOF

19' - 4" SECOND FLOOR CEILING

30' - 0" TOP OF RIDGE

9' - 0" FIRST FLOOR CEILING

10' - 4" FINISHED SECOND FLOOR

GABLE 
WITH 

WINDOW

BAY WINDOWS WITH 
2' PROJECTION

12"

12"

12"

12"

12"

12"

12"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

GRAY VERTICAL SIDING

BROWN 
BRICK

RED HORIZONTAL SIDING

DIVIDED 
LITE 

WINDOWS

WHITE HORIZONTAL SIDING

DIVIDED 
LITE 

WINDOWSGABLE 
WITH 

WINDOW

BAY WINDOWS WITH 
2' PROJECTION

DIVIDED LITE WINDOWS

DORMER

DIVIDED LITE WINDOWS

GABLE 
WITH 

WINDOW

BAY WINDOWS WITH 
2' PROJECTION

0' - 0" FINISHED FIRST FLOOR

0' - 0" FINISHED FIRST FLOOR

9' - 0" FIRST FLOOR CEILING

19' - 4" SECOND FLOOR CEILING

30' - 0" TOP OF RIDGE

10' - 4" FINISHED SECOND FLOOR

BROWN 
BRICK

WHITE HORIZONTAL 
SIDING

GRAY VERTICAL 
SIDING

SHINGLES 
ROOF30'-0" 30'-0" 30'-0" 30'-0" 30'-0"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

25'-0"25'-0"25'-0"25'-0"25'-0"

9' - 0" FIRST FLOOR CEILING

10' - 4" FINISHED SECOND FLOOR

19' - 4" SECOND FLOOR CEILING

30' - 0" TOP OF RIDGE

0' - 0" FIRST FLOOR CEILING

12"

12"

12"

12"

12"

12"

12"

12"

12"

12"

12"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"
5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

DIVIDED LITE 
WINDOWS

DORMER

RECESSED 
ENTRY

CANOPY

SECTIONAL 
GARAGE DOOR

SHINGLES ROOF

GRAY VERTICAL SIDING

BROWN 
BRICK

RED HORIZONTAL SIDING

WHITE HORIZONTAL SIDING

GABLE WITH 
WINDOW

BAY WINDOWS WITH 
2' PROJECTION

DORMER GABLE WITH 
WINDOW

BAY WINDOWS WITH 
2' PROJECTION

DIVIDED LITE WINDOWS

DIVIDED LITE 
WINDOWS

DIVIDED LITE 
WINDOWS

GABLE WITH 
WINDOW

BAY WINDOWS WITH 
2' PROJECTION

DORMER

DIVIDED LITE WINDOWS

0' - 0" FINISHED FIRST FLOOR

9' - 0" FIRST FLOOR CEILING

10' - 4" FINISHED SECOND FLOOR

19' - 4" SECOND FLOOR CEILING

30' - 0" TOP OF RIDGE

25'-0" 25'-0" 25'-0" 25'-0" 25'-0"

BROWN 
BRICK

SHINGLES ROOF WHITE HORIZONTAL 
SIDING

GRAY VERTICAL 
SIDING

SHEET

DRAWING TITLE:

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
S

 F
O

R
 :

B
U

IL
D

E
R

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R

OWNERS STATEMENT

THE OWNER HAS REVIWED AND APPROVED 

THIS PLAN FOR CONSTRUCTION. 

(SIGNATURE ON FILE)

DATE OF ISSUE: 

REVISION NUMBER: 

22-May-2024 5:25:34 PM

ELEVATIONS

A-02.1

LO
N

E
 S

T
A

R
 G

R
E
E
N

 H
O

M
E
S

LO
N

E
 S

T
A

R
 P

LA
N

S

G
A

R
LA

N
D

 T
X

10

2
0

0
0

 -
2

0
5

0
 M

IL
LE

R
 R

O
A

D

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

UNIT 8 ELEVATION - FRONT

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

UNIT 8 ELEVATION - BACK

1/8" = 1'-0"
3

UNIT 3 ELEVATION - FRONT

1/8" = 1'-0"
4

UNIT 3 ELEVATION - BACK

EXH
IB

IT E



DIVIDED LITE 
WINDOWS

RECESSED 
ENTRY

CANOPY

SECTIONAL 
GARAGE DOOR

SHINGLES ROOF

GRAY VERTICAL SIDING

BROWN 
BRICK

RED HORIZONTAL SIDING

WHITE HORIZONTAL SIDING

GABLE WITH 
WINDOW

BAY WINDOWS WITH 
2' PROJECTION

DORMER GABLE WITH 
WINDOW

BAY WINDOWS WITH 
2' PROJECTION

DIVIDED LITE WINDOWS

DIVIDED LITE 
WINDOWS

DIVIDED LITE 
WINDOWS

DORMER

0' - 0" FINISHED FIRST FLOOR

9' - 0" FIRST FLOOR CEILING

10' - 4" FINISHED SECOND FLOOR

19' - 4" SECOND FLOOR CEILING

30' - 0" TOP OF RIDGE

25'-0" 25'-0" 25'-0" 25'-0"

12"

12"

5"

12"

12"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

12"

12"

12"

12"

BROWN 
BRICK

WHITE HORIZONTAL 
SIDING

GRAY VERTICAL 
SIDING

SHINGLES 
ROOF 25'-0"25'-0"25'-0"25'-0"

9' - 0" FIRST FLOOR CEILING

10' - 4" FINISHED SECOND FLOOR

19' - 4" SECOND FLOOR CEILING

0' - 0" FINISHED FIRST FLOOR

30' - 0" TOP OF RIDGE

0' - 0" FINISHED FIRST FLOOR

9' - 0" FINISHED FIRST FLOOR

19' - 4" FINISHED FIRST FLOOR

30' - 0" TOP OF RIDGE

10' - 4" FINISHED SECOND FLOOR

25'-0" 25'-0" 25'-0"

DORMER

DIVIDED 
LITE 

WINDOWSGABLE 
WITH 

WINDOW

BAY WINDOWS WITH 
2' PROJECTION

GABLE 
WITH 

WINDOW

BAY WINDOWS WITH 2' 
PROJECTION

DIVIDED LITE WINDOWS

DORMER

DIVIDED 
LITE 

WINDOWS

RECESSED 
ENTRY

CANOPY

SECTIONAL 
GARAGE DOOR

SHINGLES ROOF

GRAY VERTICAL SIDING

BROWN 
BRICK

RED HORIZONTAL SIDING

WHITE HORIZONTAL SIDING

12"

12"

12"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

12"

12"

12"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

5"

12"

9' - 0" FIRST FLOOR CEILING

10' - 4" FINISHED SECOND FLOOR

19' - 4" SECOND FLOOR CEILING

30' - 0" TOP OF RIDGE

25'-0"25'-0"25'-0"

BROWN 
BRICK

WHITE HORIZONTAL 
SIDING

GRAY VERTICAL 
SIDING

SHINGLES 
ROOF

0' - 0" FINISHED FIRST FLOOR

SHEET

DRAWING TITLE:

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
S

 F
O

R
 :

B
U

IL
D

E
R

D
E

S
IG

N
E

R

OWNERS STATEMENT

THE OWNER HAS REVIWED AND APPROVED 

THIS PLAN FOR CONSTRUCTION. 

(SIGNATURE ON FILE)

DATE OF ISSUE: 

REVISION NUMBER: 

22-May-2024 5:25:39 PM

ELEVATIONS

A-02.2

LO
N

E
 S

T
A

R
 G

R
E
E
N

 H
O

M
E
S

LO
N

E
 S

T
A

R
 P

LA
N

S

G
A

R
LA

N
D

 T
X

10

2
0

0
0

 -
2

0
5

0
 M

IL
LE

R
 R

O
A

D

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

UNIT 1 ELEVATION - FRONT

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

UNIT 1 ELEVATION - BACK

1/8" = 1'-0"
3

UNIT 5 ELEVATION - FRONT

1/8" = 1'-0"
4

UNIT 5 ELEVATION - BACK

EXH
IB

IT E



 

   
 

 Z 22-67 
 

  

        View of the subject property  East of the subject property  

 

 
 

 

  West of the subject property                                                

 

 

 

 

South of the subject property 

 

 











GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 3. c.             
Meeting Date: 06/10/2024  
Item Tit le:  Z 24-15 2916 National, LP (District 5)
Summary:
Consideration of the application of 2916 National, LP. , requesting approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Industrial
(IN) District to a Planned Development (PD) District for Industrial Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for Equipment
Leasing/Rental, Outdoor Use. This property is located at 2916 and 3002 National Drive. (District 5) (File Z 24-15)

Attachments
Z 24-15 2916 National, LP Report & Attachments
Z 24-15 2916 National, LP Responses



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 24-15/District 5 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: June 10, 2024  
 
REQUESTS 
Approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Industrial (IN) District to a Planned Development 
(PD) District for Industrial Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for Equipment Leasing/Rental, Outdoor 
Use. 
 
APPLICANT 
2916 National, LP. 
 
OWNER 
2916 National, LP. 
 
LOCATION 
2916 and 3002 National Drive 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property consists of two lots. Lot 1 is developed with a 13,413 square-foot 
building that is used for Equipment Leasing/Rental, Indoor only. Lot 2 currently provides 
outside storage for equipment to support Lot 1.  
 
The applicant requests to update the land use to Equipment Leasing/Rental, Outdoor for Lot 
1 and Lot  2. In addition, outside storage that is more than fifty (50%) percent of the size of 
the primary building for an Equipment Leasing/Rental, Outdoor Use requires approval of a 
Specific Use Provisions through the Public Hearing process. The applicant requests to allow 
the use by right.  
 
SITE DATA 
The overall subject property consists of approximately 2.97 acres. The site has 
approximately 330 linear feet of frontage along National Drive. The site can be accessed 
from National Drive.  
 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is currently zoned Industrial (IN) District. The Industrial (IN) district is 
intended to provide for a wide range of industrial uses that are generally not compatible 
adjacent to residential neighborhoods, and may or may not be compatible with some 
nonresidential uses. Such uses include manufacturing, processing, assembling, research and 
development, and warehousing and distribution. The Industrial district also accommodates 
support services for industrial development such as office, commercial, personal and 
professional services, and limited retail activities. The Industrial district regulations are 
designed to ensure compatibility among the various uses allowed in the district, and to 
protect adjacent non-industrial development from potentially incompatible uses and 
conditions. 
 
The current land use on the property is Equipment Leasing/Rental, Indoor only, which is 
allowed in the Industrial (IN) District. The GDC defines this use as “An indoor facility that 
rents (usually on a short-term basis) tools, small household or gardening-related machines 



Page 2 of 3 
 
(other than heavy machinery), party furnishings, and other equipment with no outside 
storage or display.” 
 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS  
  
1. Site Plan 

The site plan (Exhibit C) reflects a 13,413 square-foot building that is currently used for 
Equipment Leasing/Rental, Indoor only on Lot 1. Lot 2 is used for outside storage. The 
GDC allows the outside storage as an accessory use to the primary building. Lot 1 is the 
primary use in this instance. However, the GDC does not allow the outside storage to be 
located in front of the building. Additionally, the applicant is requesting to change the 
land use to Equipment Leasing/Rental, Outdoor to allow the outside storage component 
to be located in front of the building line.  
 
The GDC defines an Equipment Leasing/Rental, Outdoor Use as “A facility that rents 
(usually on a short-term basis) tools, small household or gardening-related machines 
(other than heavy machinery), party furnishings, and other equipment. The term 
includes the outside display and storage of usable materials normally associated with the 
rental business (but not items such as unrelated scrap, junk, or trash.” 
 
The applicant is also requesting to allow the outside storage as a “primary use” on Lot 2 
to avoid combining the lots. 
 

 
2. Parking 

This subject property meets the parking requirements for Equipment Leasing/Rental, 
Outdoor Use.  
 

3. Screening and Landscaping 
The GDC requires a ten (10)-foot wide landscape buffer along National Drive and eleven 
(11) large canopy trees are required to be within the landscape buffer.  
 
There are three (3) large canopy trees on Lot 1. The applicant is not proposing any new 
large canopy trees. However, the landscape plan (Exhibit D) reflects thirty-four (34) 
high-level screening shrubs along National Drive on Lot 2.  
 
The outside storage component is currently screened with a chain-link fence around the 
perimeter of Lot 2. The applicant is enhancing the screening by proposing an eight (8)-
foot ornamental fence with mesh fabric along National Drive. The remaining perimeter of 
Lot 2 will be chain-link fence with mesh fabric.  
 

 
4. Building Design: 

The applicant is not proposing to expand the building. Therefore, this request does not 
trigger any building design standards.  
 

5. Flexibilities: 
The applicant is requesting to allow the outside storage in front of the main building and 
on its own lot. The landscape plan (Exhibit D) reflects enhanced screening from a 
standard chain-link fence to an eight (8)- foot ornamental fence with mesh fabric along 
National Drive. Although large canopy trees are required within the landscape buffer, the 



Page 3 of 3 
 

applicant proposes high-level screening shrubs on Lot 2 to screen and minimize the 
visibility of the equipment from National Drive.  
 

 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Envision Garland Plan designates the subject property as Industry Center.  Industry 
centers provide a cluster of trade and industry that cumulatively employ large numbers of 
people. Operations within this development type may require substantial infrastructure and 
may result in more significant negative impacts (sound, air, traffic, outdoor lighting, 
storage, etc.). Operations may include such elements as semi-truck traffic, loading docks, 
and visible outdoor storage. Overall, the architecture, character, scale, and intensity should 
be compatible with adjacent development types. 
 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN 
The proposed use is considered to be “Light Industrial” per the Economic Development 
Strategic Plan; this category represents a property tax revenue per acre at $7,445.   
 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The surrounding properties are zoned Industrial (IN) District. These properties are 
developed with warehouses, distribution centers, equipment leasing indoor/outdoor use and 
automobile repair use.  
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Industrial (IN) District to a Planned Development 
(PD) District for Industrial Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for Equipment Leasing/Rental, Outdoor 
Use. 
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Location Map 
Exhibits 
PD Conditions 
Photos 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: July 2, 2024 
 
 
PREPARED BY:      REVIEWED BY: 
Nabiha Ahmed   Angela Self, FAICP 
Lead Development Planner  Interim Director of Planning 
Planning & Development 
(972) 205-2453  
nahmed@garlandtx.gov 

mailto:nahmed@garlandtx.gov


N
AT

IO
N

AL
 D

R

NATIONAL CT

W KINGSLEY RD

N
AT

IO
N

AL
 P

L

N
AT

IO
N

AL
 C

IR

M
AR

KE
T 

ST

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L 
LN

C RC R

C RC R

P DP D
9 6 - 4 09 6 - 4 0

S - 3S - 3P D  8 4 - 1 1 6P D  8 4 - 1 1 6

S  1 7 - 1 3S  1 7 - 1 3

I NI N

I NI N I NI N

I NI N

I NI N

S  2 1 - 5 5S  2 1 - 5 5

S  2 3 - 0 9S  2 3 - 0 9I NI N

2814

2908

2985

2901

2901

2821

2805

2745

2809

2916

2765

2903

2779 2775

2809

2915

2825

2913

2909

2805

2726

2945

2905
2914

2875
28172815

2907

3001

3002

2955

ZONING MAP Z 24-15
¯

0 200 400 Feet
1 inch = 306 feet

2916 and 3002 National Drive

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 
 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 24-15 
 

2916 and 3002 National Drive 
 

 
I. Statement of Purpose: The purpose of this Planned 

Development is to approve an Equipment Leasing/Rental, 
Outdoor Use. 

 
 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development shall not 

affect any regulation found in the Garland Development 
Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior to adoption 
of this ordinance, except as specifically provided 
herein. 

 
 
III. General Regulations: All regulations of the Industrial 

(IN) District as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Garland 
Development Code are included by reference and shall 
apply, except as otherwise specified by this ordinance. 
 
 

IV. Development Plans: 
 

Detail Plan: Development shall be in general conformance 
with the Detail Plan labeled Exhibit C through Exhibit 
E. In the event there is conflict between the approved 
Detail Plan and the Specific Regulations below, the 
Specific Regulations shall apply.  

 
 
V. Specific Conditions: 
  

A. Permitted Use: All land uses permitted in the 
Industrial (IN) District. Additionally, the Equipment 
Leasing/Rental, Outdoor Use shall be permitted by 
right. 
 
The Outside Storage shall be the primary use on Lot 
2. 
 

B. Site Plan: The site layout, building placement, 
parking, walking paths, and other development proposed 
shall be in general conformance with the approved Site 
Plan labeled Exhibit C. 
 

C. Height: Materials stored outside shall not be stacked 
higher than eight (8) feet. 



PD Conditions 
File Z 24-15 
Page - 2 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

 
 

 
 

D. Landscape Plan: Screening and landscaping shall be in 
general conformance with the landscape plan labeled 
Exhibit D. An eight (8)-foot ornamental fence shall 
be proposed along National Drive. The existing chain-
link fence shall remain on the remaining perimeters 
of the property as reflected in Exhibit D. Opaque 
fabric shall be installed on all side fences enclosing 
the outside storage.  

 
E. Landscaping must be regularly maintained in a healthy, 

growing condition and in compliance with this PD 
Ordinance, the Garland Development Code, the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Garland, and the landscaping 
plan attached hereto at all times. The property owner 
is responsible for regular weeding, mowing of grass, 
irrigation, fertilizing, pruning, or other 
maintenance of all plantings as needed. All exposed 
ground surfaces  

on or within the premises shall be properly 
improved, covered with screening or other 
approved solid material, or protected with a 
vegetative growth that prevents soil erosion and 
ameliorates objectionable dust conditions. 
 

1. Any plant or vegetation that dies must be 
replaced with another approved plant variety that 
complies with the approved landscape plan within 
sixty (60) days after receipt of written 
notification from the City. In the event the 
property owner fails to remedy a violation of any 
landscaping maintenance regulation within sixty  
(60) days after receipt of written notification 
from the City, the City may, in addition to any 
other remedy available by law, withhold future 
city permits, licenses and/or certificates 
requested by the property owner for the premises 
to which such violation applies.  
 

2. Screening and paving must be regularly maintained 
in compliance with this PD Ordinance, the Garland  
Development Code, and the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Garland at all times. The property 



PD Conditions 
File Z 24-15 
Page - 3 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

owner is responsible for regular maintenance of 
all screening and paving as needed.  In the event 
the property owner fails to remedy a violation 
of any screening or paving maintenance regulation 
within sixty (60) days after receipt of written 
notification from the City, the City may, in 
addition to any other remedy available by law, 
withhold future city permits, licenses and/or 
certificates requested by the property owner for 
the premises to which such violation applies. 

 
 
 
 
 

 



EX
H

IBIT C



S 89°50'28"E   391.00'

14
9.

76
'

18
1.

00
'

S 
00

°0
9'

32
"W

   
33

0.
76

'

N
 0

0°
09

'3
2"

E 
  3

30
.7

6'

M
=4

58
.0

0'

(4
58

.2
6'

)

(4
58

.4
8'

)

SEBA CHELO GARLAND LLC

DALLAS COUNTY CAD#26296500030020200

INSTR. #202100138506

D.R.D.C.T.

CAMPBELL ENTERPRISES NON MICHIGAN

DALLAS COUNTY CAD#26296500030010100

INSTR. #200900147196

D.R.D.C.T.

LBL 2809 LLC

DALLAS COUNTY CAD#26296500030010000

INSTR. #201600086835

D.R.D.C.T.

FIR 1/2" FPK

F
P
KF
IR
 
5
/
8
"

FIR 1/2" - C.M.

FPK - C.M.

POINT OF

BEGINNING

N
AT

IO
N

AL
 D

R
IV

E

2916 NATIONAL DRIVE

1 STORY

BRICK & STUCCO

±13,413.2 SQ. FT.

HEIGHT:  ±16.2 FT.

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E

// // //

/
/

// // //

o o

o

o

o oo o o

o

o

o

oo o

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

oo oo o

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

/
/

//////

/
/

2916 NATIONAL DR LLC

DALLAS COUNTY CAD #26376200010010000

& 26376200010020000

INSTR. #202200159514

D.R.D.C.T.

NATIONAL PROPERTIES ADDITION

VOL. 2004091, PG. 64

M.R.D.C.T.

(3
38

.3
6'

)

LOT 1, BLOCK 1

LOT 2, BLOCK 1

BLOCK 1

(BASIS OF BEARINGS)

N 89°50'28"W   391.00'

60.0'

RIGHT-OF-WAY

FL

FL FL FL FL
FL

FL

FL

FL
FL FL FL

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

W W W W W W W W W W W

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 1

2"
 W

L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 8

" S
S

EXISTING 12" WL

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 2

4"
 S

TO
R

M

W

FL FL FL FL FL

FL
FL

FL

FL

FL
FL

FL
FL

FL FL FL

FLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFL

10' PEDESTRIAN, ACCESS
& UTILITY EASEMENT
VOL. 2004091, PG. 64

30' BUILDING &
ZONING SETBACK
VOL. 68099, PG. 58

NATIONAL PROPERTIES ADDITION

VOL. 2004091, PG. 64

M.R.D.C.T.

±58557.7 SQ. FT.

±1.3443 ACRES

±1.6247 ACRES 

±70771.9 SQ. FT. 

OVERHEAD
STRUCTURE

(6
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
O

W
FU

TU
R

E 
80

' R
O

W
)

10' PEDESTRIAN, ACCESS
& UTILITY EASEMENT
VOL. 2004091, PG. 64

FL

FL FL FL FL
FL

FL

FL

FL
FL FL FL

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 8

" S
S

FL FL FL FL FL

FL
FL

FL

FL

FL
FL

FL
FL

FL FL FL

FLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFL

10' PEDESTRIAN, ACCESS
& UTILITY EASEMENT
VOL. 2004091, PG. 64

30' BUILDING &
ZONING SETBACK
VOL. 68099, PG. 58

OVERHEAD
STRUCTURE

10' PEDESTRIAN, ACCESS
& UTILITY EASEMENT
VOL. 2004091, PG. 64

10' LANDSCAPE
BUFFER

EX. LIGHT TO
REMAIN

EX. LIGHT TO
REMAIN

EXISTING ELECTRIC
POLE TO REMAIN

EXISTING ELECTRIC
POLE TO REMAIN

EX. FIRE HYDRANT
TO REMAIN

EX. METAL FENCE TO REMAIN
WITH PROP. OPAQUE FABRIC

EX. TWO-WAY
DRIVEWAY

EX. TWO-WAY
DRIVEWAY

CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

EX. GATE

EX. METAL FENCE TO
REMAIN WITH PROP.
OPAQUE FABRIC

EX. METAL FENCE TO
REMAIN WITH PROP.

OPAQUE FABRIC

EX. METAL FENCE TO
REMAIN WITH PROP.
OPAQUE FABRIC

EX. METAL FENCE TO
REMAIN WITH PROP.
OPAQUE FABRIC

o

o

3801
live oak
17"

3802
live oak
24"

3803
live oak
21"

3804
live oak
25"

3805
live oak
32"

3806
live oak
28" 3807

American holly
10"

3808
live oak
17"

3809
live oak
10"

3810
chinaberry
11"

SOD

SOD SOD

SOD

SOD

UC
2

LANDSCAPED AREA
(433 SF)

LANDSCAPED AREA
(433 SF)

LANDSCAPED AREA
(1094 SF)

LANDSCAPED AREA
(703 SF)

LANDSCAPED AREA
(932 SF)

LANDSCAPED AREA (2003 SF)

LANDSCAPED AREA
(965 SF)

LANDSCAPED AREA
(381 SF)

LANDSCAPED AREA
(186 SF)

EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN

IXH
34 MUH

62
SOD

MERIDIAN GRANITE GRAVEL

STEEL EDGE (TYP.)

8' ORNAMENTAL METAL FENCING
WITH MESH SCREENING (TYP.)

SYMBOL CODE QTY
BOTANICAL / COMMON
NAME SIZE REMARKS

TREES

UC 2
ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA / CEDAR
ELM

3" CAL, 14` HT, 6` SPR FULL, STRAIGHT, SINGLE LEADER

SHRUBS

IXH 34
ILEX X `NELLIE R. STEVENS` /
NELLIE R. STEVENS HOLLY

36" HT, 24" SPR, 48" OC
FULL AND MATCHING, 36" HT MIN. AT
PLANTING (6'-8' MATURE HT)

GRASSES

MUH 62
MUHLENBERGIA CAPILLARIS /
PINK MUHLY

24" HT, 36" OC FULL AND MATCHING

GROUND COVERS

SOD 5,057 SF CYNODON DACTYLON /
COMMON BERMUDA GRASS

N/A
SOD TO HAVE TIGHT, SAND FILLED
JOINTS AND BE FREE OF WEEDS.

PLANT SCHEDULE

PL
O

T
T

E
D

 B
Y

SH
E

E
N

, A
L

L
IS

O
N

 5
/7

/2
02

4 
3:

58
 P

M
D

W
G

 N
A

M
E

K
:\F

T
W

_C
IV

IL
\0

60
00

29
00

 - 
A

L
T

E
R

R
A

 G
A

R
L

A
N

D
\D

E
SI

G
N

\L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
\D

W
G

\0
1 

PE
R

M
IT

-C
O

D
E

\S
H

E
E

T
\C

-L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
.D

W
G

L
A

ST
 S

A
V

E
D

5/
7/

20
24

 3
:5

7 
PM

IM
A

G
E

S
X

R
E

F
S

X
R

E
F

 x
-s

ur
ve

y 
- X

R
E

F
 x

-a
er

ia
l -

 X
R

E
F

 x
Pl

an
t -

 X
R

E
F

 x
-b

ld
g 

- X
R

E
F

 x
-s

ite
 - 

X
R

E
F

 x
-s

to
rm

 - 
X

R
E

F
 x

-s
ur

ve
y 

- X
R

E
F

 x
-u

til
ity

 - 
X

R
E

F
 x

-2
4x

36
 L

A
+

P 
- X

R
E

F
 x

T
re

e 
- X

R
E

F
 x

Pl
an

t_
U

pd
at

e

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T,
 T

O
G

ET
H

ER
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
C

O
N

C
EP

TS
 A

N
D

 D
ES

IG
N

S 
PR

ES
EN

TE
D

 H
ER

EI
N

, A
S 

AN
 IN

ST
R

U
M

EN
T 

O
F 

SE
R

VI
C

E,
 IS

 IN
TE

N
D

ED
 O

N
LY

 F
O

R
 T

H
E 

SP
EC

IF
IC

 P
U

R
PO

SE
 A

N
D

 C
LI

EN
T 

FO
R

 W
H

IC
H

 IT
 W

AS
 P

R
EP

AR
ED

. R
EU

SE
 O

F 
AN

D
 IM

PR
O

PE
R

 R
EL

IA
N

C
E 

O
N

 T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

EN
T 

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D
 A

D
AP

TA
TI

O
N

 B
Y 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

. S
H

AL
L 

BE
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
LI

AB
IL

IT
Y 

TO
 K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

PR
O

JE
C

T 
N

o.
06

00
02

90
0

D
AT

E:
 

M
AY

 2
02

4

SC
AL

E:
   

  
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:
EG

B

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

AL
S

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:
JA

F

SHEET NUMBER

©
 2

02
4 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.

N
o.

 
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
D

AT
E

BY

A
LT

ER
R

A
 G

A
R

LA
N

D
30

02
 N

AT
IO

N
AL

 D
R

IV
E,

G
AR

LA
N

D
 T

X
C

AS
E 

N
O

. 2
30

11
8-

2
80

1 
C

H
ER

R
Y 

ST
, U

N
IT

 1
1,

 S
TE

 1
30

0,
 F

O
R

T 
W

O
R

TH
, T

X 
76

10
2

PH
O

N
E:

 8
17

-3
35

-6
51

1 
  F

AX
: 8

17
-3

35
-5

07
0

TE
XA

S 
R

EG
IS

TE
R

ED
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

 F
-9

28

NORTH

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

PL
AN

S

L-01

CIVIL ENGINEER:
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
801 Cherry St. Suite 1300, Unit 11
Fort Worth, Texas  76102
Tel. No. 972-770-1343
Contact:  Jennifer G. Gansert, P.E.

CITY CASE NO:
23-0323-1

N.T.S.VICINITY MAP NORTH

CHARLESTON

BARDFIELD

CRIPPLE
CREEK

CALDWELL

CHARLOTTE

M CREE

TOWNGATE

McCREE

Park

c

LA
M

ES
A

W
AT

SO
N

Tinsley
Park

Kingsley

Park

3.
1

GRADER

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L D
R

M
ER

R
IT

T

EX
EC

U
TI

VE

HEMLOCK

ANDOVER

PAN
D

O
R

A

KINGSLEY N
AT

IO
N

AL

WOOD

LO
N

N
EC

KE
R

SH
ER

W
IN

JU
PI

TE
R

M
AR

KE
T

LEE
STANFORD

HUSKEY

PROCTOR

BROOKS

ROYAL

N
O

TT
IN

G
H

AM

N
EW

C
AS

TL
E

H
O

LM

BO
N

IT
A

C
O

R
TE

Z

BE
LI

TA

FLORES

AXE
BEASLEY

KIRKWOOD

SUSSEX

CRANFORD

RANDOLPH

LEWIS

AN
IT

A

SA
TU

R
N

M
O

R
N

IN
G

SI
D

E
LI

VE
N

SH
IR

E

R
ID

G
EC

R
ES

T

SUSSEX

PA
TR

IC
IA

SH
IL

O
H

R
O

BI
N

C
AM

D
EN

SH
AR

ON

AV
ON

EL
ST

MHUR

GREE N

DEVO
N

WOOD

SU

BA
LL

IN
G

ER

WOOD

17
TH 16

TH

78

635

78(KCS)

(K
CS

)

1. EXISTING ZONING IS "IN" INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT,

PROPOSED ZONING IS "PD" PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

NOTES

SITE
LOCATION

OWNER:
2916 NATIONAL PARTNERS, LLC.
720 Fayette Ave,  Suite 700
Conshohocken, PA 19428
Tel. No. 215-667-6830
Contact:  Liam Sullivan

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT:
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
801 Cherry St. Suite 1300, Unit 11
Fort Worth, Texas  76102
Tel. No. 817-339-2277
Contact:  John A. Fielder, PLA

EX
H

IBIT D



   
 

 

Z 24-15 
 
 

  

Looking north of the subject site from National 
Drive 

Looking at the northern lot of the subject property 

 
 
 

 

Southern lot of the subject property West of the subject property 
 



NA
TIO

NA
L D

R

NATIONAL CT

W KINGSLEY RD

NA
TIO

NA
L P

L

NA
TIO

NA
L C

IR

MA
RK

ET
 ST

IN
DU

ST
RI

AL
 LN

C RC R

C RC R

P DP D
9 6 - 4 09 6 - 4 0

S - 3S - 3P D  8 4 - 1 1 6P D  8 4 - 1 1 6

S  1 7 - 1 3S  1 7 - 1 3

I NI N

I NI N I NI N

I NI N

I NI N

S  2 1 - 5 5S  2 1 - 5 5

S  2 3 - 0 9S  2 3 - 0 9I NI N

2814

2908

2985

2901

2901

2821

2805

2745

2809

2916

2765

2903

2779 2775

2809

2915

2825

2913

2909

2805

2726

2945
29052914

287528172815

2907

3001

3002

2955

ZONING MAP Z 24-15
¯

0 200 400 Feet 1 inch = 306 feet

2916 and 3002 National Drive

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST

INDICATES 
NOTIFICATION AREA



To date we have not received any responses for this case. 



GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 3. d.            
Meeting Date: 06/10/2024  
Item Tit le:  Z 24-22 OSI 1602 Kings Rd., LLC (District 6)
Summary:
Consideration of the application of OSI 1602 Kings Rd, LLC.,  requesting approval of  1) a Specific Use Provision
(SUP) for a Truck/Bus Storage Use 2) a Concept Plan for a Truck/Bus Storage Use and 3) a Development Variance
for a complete waiver of a landscaping provision preventing fencing from being in the landscape buffer. This property
is located at 1602 Kings Road. (District 6) (File Z 24-22)

Attachments
Z 24-22 OSI 1602 Kings Rd., LLC Report & Attachments
Z 24-22 OSI 1602 Kings Rd., LLC Responses



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 24-22/District 6 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: June 10, 2024  
 
REQUESTS 
Approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision (SUP) for a Truck/Bus Storage Use 2) a Concept Plan 
for a Truck/Bus Storage Use and 3) a Development Variance for a complete waiver of a 
landscaping provision preventing fencing from being in the landscape buffer. 
 
APPLICANT 
OSI 1602 Kings Rd, LLC 
 
OWNER 
OSI 1602 Kings Rd, LLC 
 
LOCATION 
1602 Kings Road (Southern Parcel) 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property is a 8.255-acre site that is currently used for truck and trailer storage 
as an accessory use to the distribution center directly to the east. The site is half paved and 
half gravel. 
 
The applicant requests a Specific Use Provision (SUP) for Truck/Bus Storage use to make it 
the primary use for the site, in turn allowing other trucking companies to use it for a fee. 
The gravel will be replaced with pavement and an office will also be provided per GDC 
standards. 
 
SITE DATA 
The overall subject property consists of approximately 8.255 acres. The site has 
approximately 900 linear feet of frontage along Kings. The site also has approximately 286 
linear feet of frontage along Miller Road, where a proposed detention pond will be. The site 
can be accessed from one (1) point along Kings Road. 
 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is currently zoned Industrial (IN) District. The Industrial (IN) district is 
intended to provide for a wide range of industrial uses that are generally not compatible 
adjacent to residential neighborhoods, and may or may not be compatible with some 
nonresidential uses. Such uses include manufacturing, processing, assembling, research and 
development, and warehousing and distribution. The Industrial district also accommodates 
support services for industrial development such as office, commercial, personal and 
professional services, and limited retail activities. The Industrial district regulations are 
designed to ensure compatibility among the various uses allowed in the district, and to 
protect adjacent non-industrial development from potentially incompatible uses and 
conditions. 
 
The current land use on the property is as an accessory use Truck Storage to the 
distribution center to the East. 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
Development Variance 
 
1. The GDC does not allow fencing within the landscape buffer. However, the applicant 

proposes to keep the existing chain link fence in the landscape buffer. 
2. In exchange the applicant proposes increased landscaping that will exceed GDC 

standards, to increase perimeter landscape buffers for improved screening of parking 
areas and within the site to improve aesthetics, as conveyed through the Concept Plan. 

 
Specific Use Provision 
 
1. The applicant proposes to construct a truck storage site and an office building in the 

Southern parcel, meeting the GDC requirement. 

2. Landscaping will exceed the applicable screening and landscaping standards per the GDC 
to increase perimeter landscape buffers for improved screening of parking areas and 
within the site to improve aesthetics, as conveyed through the Concept Plan. 
 

3. The Building Elevations will comply with the Building Design standards per the GDC. 

4. The applicant requests the Specific Use Provision for a period of thirty-five (35) years, 
which aligns with the SUP Time Period Guide. 

5. The hours of operation will be all day each day of the week.  

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
Industry centers provide a cluster of trade and industry that cumulatively employ large 
numbers of people. Operations within this development type may require substantial 
infrastructure and may result in more significant negative impacts (sound, air, traffic, 
outdoor lighting, storage, etc.). Operations may include such elements as semi-truck traffic, 
loading docks, and visible outdoor storage. Overall, the architecture, character, scale, and 
intensity should be compatible with adjacent development types. Industry centers are 
generally located along major arterial streets, and highways and at significant transit areas 
(bus/ rail). Site design addresses function and visual aesthetics that provide appropriate 
buffering at gateway corridors, between adjacent developments, and for residential 
neighborhoods. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN 
The Economic Development Strategic Plan highlights Stand Alone Commercial as bringing in 
$5,380 revenue per acre. The Plan notes the number of auto-related uses in Garland as 
well.  
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The surrounding properties are entirely zoned Industrial (IN) District and contain uses such 
as warehousing, distribution centers, manufacturing, and other various industrial uses that 
are allowed by right within the district. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Denial of 1) a Specific Use Provision (SUP) for a Truck/Bus Storage Use 2) a Concept Plan 
for a Truck/Bus Storage Use and 3) a Development Variance for a complete waiver of a 
landscaping provision preventing fencing from being in the landscape buffer. 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 
Staff finds that this use on this parcel of land will not bring in adequate revenue per acre 
per the Economic Development Strategic Plan. 
 
The proposed development variance leaves a chain link fence with barbed wire in the middle 
of a landscape buffer with little room for proposed landscaping, especially on the street side. 
In addition, the trees will be at risk of growing into the barbed wire and chain link as well as 
being too close to maintain properly and safely. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Location Map 
Exhibit 
SUP Conditions 
Photos 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: July 2, 2024 
 
 
PREPARED BY:      REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton   Angela Self, FAICP 
Development Planner  Interim Director of Planning 
Planning & Development 
(972) 205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov 

mailto:mwolverton@garlandtx.gov


W MILLER RD

PATTON
DR

ROBIN LN

WEST
WAY AVE

MOCKINGBIRD
LN

M
ERRITT DR

HERRMANN DR

S 
SH

IL
O

H
 R

D

H
IG

H
TO

W
ER

 D
R

LO
N

N
EC

KE
R

 D
R

SH
ER

W
IN

 S
T

KI
N

G
S 

R
D

S F - 1 0S F - 1 0

S  0 6 - 4 7S  0 6 - 4 7

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

P DP D
0 8 - 2 80 8 - 2 8

SS
1 6 - 2 91 6 - 2 9P DP D

8 7 - 2 78 7 - 2 7

S  8 3 - 4S  8 3 - 4 C RC R

S  1 3 - 1 0S  1 3 - 1 0

I NI N

I NI N

S  2 0 - 1 8S  2 0 - 1 8

S  1 5 - 1 4S  1 5 - 1 4

SS
2 1 - 0 32 1 - 0 3

I NI N
I NI N

I NI N

I NI N

I NI N

P DP D
2 3 - 2 02 3 - 2 0

I NI N

2950
2906

2021

2802

3101 2775

1501

1617

2199

1602

2201

1619

ZONING MAP Z 24-23
¯

0 310 620 Feet
1 inch = 477 feet

1602 Kings Road (southern  parcel)

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 
 

SPECIFIC USE PROVISION CONDITIONS 
 

ZONING FILE 24-22 
 

1602 Kings Road (Southern Parcel) 
 

I. Statement of Purpose: The purpose of this Specific Use 
Provision is to allow a Truck/Bus Storage Use subject 
to conditions.   

 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision 

shall not affect any regulation found in the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior 
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically 
provided herein. 

 
III. General Regulations: All regulations of the Industrial 

(IN) District as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Garland 
Development Code are included by reference and shall 
apply, except as otherwise specified by this 
ordinance. 
 

III.  Abandonment:   In the event the land use for which 
this Specific Use Provision was granted (“Land Use”) is 
abandoned, the SUP and all rights to the Land Use are 
automatically terminated, and the premises must be used 
in conformance with the PD, GDC, federal, and state 
law.  
 
For the purposes of this Specific Use Provision, 
Abandonment is any of the following acts: 
 

 
A. A failure to apply for a site or building permit on 

the premises, where applicable, within 180 days of 
the effective date of this SUP; 
 

B. A failure to obtain a certificate of occupancy for 
the Land use within 730 days of the effective date 
of this SUP; 
 

C. A failure to commence operating the Land Use on the 
premises within 90 days of receiving a final 
certificate of occupancy for the Land Use; 
 

D. Discontinuance of the Land Use for a period of 180 
days; 
 

E. Applying for, and receiving, a new Certificate of 
Occupancy for a use other than the Land Use; or 

 
F. Operating a use on the premises, whether as a 

primary or secondary use, that is not allowed within 



PD Conditions 
File 24-22 
Page - 2 - 
 

EXHIBIT B 

the PD District, by the GDC, or by state or federal 
law. 

 
The termination of utilities on the premises for a 
period of 180 calendar days is prima facie evidence of 
abandonment and the owner shall have the burden to 
prove that the Land Use has not been abandoned. 

 
IV. General Regulations:  All regulations of the 

Industrial (IN) District as set forth in Chapter 2 of 
the Garland Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are 
included by reference and shall apply, except as 
otherwise specified by this ordinance. 
 

V.   Development Plans: 
 

Site Layout: The site shall be in general conformance 
with the approved Concept Plan labeled Exhibit C. In 
the event of conflict between the conditions and the 
site plan, the written conditions listed below are to 
apply. 
 

 
VI. Specific Regulations: 

 
A. Time Period:  The Specific Use Provision shall be in 

effect for period of thirty-five (35) years. 
 

B. Concept Plan: Development shall be in general 
conformance with the concept plan labeled Exhibit C. 

 
 
 

 



K
IN

G
S

 R
D

KENMORE ST

WEST MILLER RD

South Site Plan Legend
Site Pavement

Existing Road / Adjacent Lot

Proposed Building

Landscape

Proposed Detention Pond

Property Separation Line

Proposed Fence Line

Pedestrian & Utility Easement Line

Proposed Parking

Proposed Sidewalk

Vicinity Plan

Land Use: Industrial (IN)
Site Area for the South Lot: 8.255 Acres

Owner / Client:
OSI Group LLC
800 Brickell Ave.
Suite 904
Miami, FL 33131
Contact: Andrew T. Smith
eMail: asmith@outourstorage.com
Tel: 618.713.3391

Architect:
Parkway C&A
1000 Civic Circle
Lewisville, TX 75067
Contact: Chris A. Rutledge, AIA
eMail: crutledge@pkwycon.com
Tel: 469.704.3459

Engineer:
Halff
1201 N Bowser Rd.
Richardson, TX 75081
Contact: Jose I. Garcia, Jr.
eMail: jgarcia@halff.com
Tel: 214.346.6200

FIT Case Number: 24013-1
Case: Z24-23

Site design and construction plans shall conform to all 
requirements of the Garland Development Code (GDC), 
Technical Standard Manual (TSM), and City codes unless 
an approved PD narrative condition expressly provides 
otherwise. The concept plan shall be used to represent the 
general idea of the proposed land use and site elements. 
The concept plan shall not supersede, and shall be 
subordinate to, the standards, requirements, and conditions 
of the GDC, TSM, City code, or the approved PD.

Project Information

1000  Civic Circle Lewisville, TX 75067
parkwayconstruction.com (972) 221-1979

CONSTRUCTION ARCHITECTURE

6/6/2024 3:21:34 PM

Outour Storage Investments

Concept Plan - South

A1-2

1602 Kings Road
Garland, Texas 75041

0 120 180 24060TRUE 
NORTH

PLAN
NORTH

1" = 60'-0"
1

Preliminary Site Plan

EXHIBIT C



   
 

 

Z 24-22 
 

  

Looking East toward the subject property Looking West across Kings Road 

 
 
 

 

Looking North up Kings Road Looking South down Kings Road toward Miller Road 
 







GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 3. e.            
Meeting Date: 06/10/2024  
Item Tit le:  Z 24-23 OSI 1602 Kings Rd., LLC (District 6)
Summary:
Consideration of the application of OSI 1602 Kings Rd, LLC. , requesting approval of  1) a Specific Use Provision
(SUP) for a Truck/Bus Repair Use & Truck/Bus Storage Use on a property zoned Industrial (IN) District and 2) a
Concept Plan for a Truck/Bus Repair Use & Truck/Bus Storage Use and 3) a Development Variance for a complete
waiver of a landscaping provision preventing fencing from being in the landscape buffer. This property is located at
1602 Kings Road. (District 6) (File Z 24-23)

Attachments
Z 24-23 OSI 1602 Kings Rd., LLC Report & Attachments
Z 24-23 OSI 1602 Kings Rd., LLC Responses



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 24-23/District 6 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: June 10, 2024  
 
REQUESTS 
Approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision for a Truck/Bus Repair Use & Truck/Bus Storage Use 
on a property zoned Industrial (IN) District and 2) a Concept Plan for a Truck/Bus Repair 
Use & Truck/Bus Storage Use and 3) a Development Variance for a complete waiver of a 
landscaping provision preventing fencing from being in the landscape buffer. 
 
APPLICANT 
OSI 1602 Kings Rd, LLC 
 
OWNER 
OSI 1602 Kings Rd, LLC 
 
LOCATION 
1602 Kings Road (Northern Parcel) 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property is a 6.644-acre site that is currently used for truck and trailer storage 
as an accessory use to the distribution center directly to the east. The site is half paved and 
half gravel. 
 
The applicant requests a Specific Use Provision (SUP) for Truck/Bus Storage use to make it 
the primary use for the site, in turn allowing other trucking companies to use it for a fee.  
 
The applicant is also requesting a Specific Use Provision (SUP) for Truck/Bus Repair Use to 
construct a truck repair center. 
 
The gravel will be replaced with pavement. An office will be incorporated with the repair 
use, per GDC standards. 
 
SITE DATA 
The overall subject property consists of approximately 6.644 acres. The site has 
approximately 550 linear feet of frontage along Kings. The site can be accessed from two 
(2) points along Kings Road. 
 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is currently zoned Industrial (IN) District. The Industrial (IN) district is 
intended to provide for a wide range of industrial uses that are generally not compatible 
adjacent to residential neighborhoods, and may or may not be compatible with some 
nonresidential uses. Such uses include manufacturing, processing, assembling, research and 
development, and warehousing and distribution. The Industrial district also accommodates 
support services for industrial development such as office, commercial, personal and 
professional services, and limited retail activities. The Industrial district regulations are 
designed to ensure compatibility among the various uses allowed in the district, and to 
protect adjacent non-industrial development from potentially incompatible uses and 
conditions. 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 
The current land use on the property is as an accessory use Truck Storage to the 
distribution center to the East. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
Development Variance 
 
1. The GDC does not allow fencing within the landscape buffer. However, the applicant 

proposes to keep the existing chain link fence in the landscape buffer. 
2. In exchange the applicant proposes increased landscaping that will exceed GDC 

standards, to increase perimeter landscape buffers for improved screening of parking 
areas and within the site to improve aesthetics, as conveyed through the Concept Plan. 

 
Specific Use Provision 
 
1. The applicant proposes to construct a truck storage site and truck repair building with an 

office in the Northern parcel, meeting the GDC requirements. 

2. Landscaping will exceed the applicable screening and landscaping standards per the GDC 
to increase perimeter landscape buffers for improved screening of parking areas and 
within the site to improve aesthetics, as conveyed through the Concept Plan. 
 

3. The Building Elevations will comply with the Building Design standards per the GDC. 

4. The repair bays will not be facing the street, thus complying with the GDC standards. 

5. The applicant requests the Specific Use Provision for a period of thirty-five (35) years, 
which aligns with the SUP Time Period Guide. 

6. The hours of operation will be all day each day of the week.  

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
Industry centers provide a cluster of trade and industry that cumulatively employ large 
numbers of people. Operations within this development type may require substantial 
infrastructure and may result in more significant negative impacts (sound, air, traffic, 
outdoor lighting, storage, etc.). Operations may include such elements as semi-truck traffic, 
loading docks, and visible outdoor storage. Overall, the architecture, character, scale, and 
intensity should be compatible with adjacent development types. Industry centers are 
generally located along major arterial streets, and highways and at significant transit areas 
(bus/ rail). Site design addresses function and visual aesthetics that provide appropriate 
buffering at gateway corridors, between adjacent developments, and for residential 
neighborhoods. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN 
The Economic Development Strategic Plan highlights Stand Alone Commercial as bringing in 
$5,380 revenue per acre. This development will contain two businesses, increasing the 
revenue per acre. The Plan notes the number of auto-related uses in Garland as well. 
However, this project provides upgrades to the existing site and leaves room for future 
expansion. 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The surrounding properties are entirely zoned Industrial (IN) District and contain uses such 
as warehousing, distribution centers, manufacturing, and other various industrial uses that 
are allowed by right within the district. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision for a Truck/Bus Repair Use & Truck/Bus Storage Use 
on a property zoned Industrial (IN) District and 2) a Concept Plan for a Truck/Bus Repair 
Use & Truck/Bus Storage Use  
 
and Denial of 3) a Development Variance for a complete waiver of a landscaping provision 
preventing fencing from being in the landscape buffer. 
 
The proposed development variance leaves a chain link fence with barbed wire in the middle 
of a landscape buffer with little room for proposed landscaping, especially on the street side. 
In addition, the trees will be at risk of growing into the barbed wire and chain link as well as 
being too close to maintain properly and safely. 
 
However, staff also recommends that a shorter SUP time period be given than the 
requested 35 years. A time period of twenty (20) to twenty-five (25) years is suggested, 
which follows the SUP Time Period Guide. In addition, it is recommended that the hours of 
operation be shortened to more standard business hours for each SUP. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Location Map 
Exhibit 
SUP Conditions 
Photos 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: July 2, 2024 
 
 
PREPARED BY:      REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton   Angela Self, FAICP 
Development Planner  Interim Director of Planning 
Planning & Development 
(972) 205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov 

mailto:mwolverton@garlandtx.gov


M
ER

R
IT

T 
D

R

W MILLER RD

S 
SH

IL
O

H
 R

D

ROBIN LN

WEST
WAY AVE

MOCKINGBIRD
LN

GOLDFINCH LN

PATTON DR

H
IG

H
TO

W
ER

 D
R

LO
N

N
EC

KE
R

 D
R

SH
ER

W
IN

 S
T

JA
C

O
BS

O
N

 R
D

N
IC

H
O

LS
O

N
 R

D

S 
IN

TE
R

N
AT

IO
N

AL
 R

D

MARQUIS DR

KI
N

G
S 

R
D

S F - 1 0S F - 1 0

P DP D
8 0 - 5 68 0 - 5 6

P D  9 4 - 1 9P D  9 4 - 1 9

P D  7 7 - 7 5P D  7 7 - 7 5
C RC R

M F - 1M F - 1

S  0 6 - 4 7S  0 6 - 4 7

P DP D
0 8 - 2 80 8 - 2 8

SS
1 6 - 2 91 6 - 2 9

P DP D
8 7 - 2 78 7 - 2 7

S  8 3 - 4S  8 3 - 4 C RC R

I NI N

S  2 0 - 1 8S  2 0 - 1 8

S  1 5 - 1 4S  1 5 - 1 4

S  1 9 - 0 1S  1 9 - 0 1

S  2 1 - 0 3S  2 1 - 0 3

I NI N I NI N

I NI N

I NI N

P D  2 3 - 2 0P D  2 3 - 2 0

I NI N

3101 2775

1501

1617

26602760

1602

2850

1619

ZONING MAP Z 24-22
¯

0 310 620 Feet
1 inch = 476 feet

1602 Kings Road (northern parcel)

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 

 
 

SPECIFIC USE PROVISION CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 24-23 
 

1602 Kings Road (Northern Parcel) 
 

 
 
I. Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Specific 

Use Provision is to allow a truck repair facility and 
truck storage use. 

 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision 

shall not affect any regulation found in the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior 
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically 
provided herein. 
 

III. General Regulations:  All regulations of the 
Industrial (IN) District and Site Development 
Standards as set forth in Chapter 2 and 4 of the 
Garland Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are included 
by reference and shall apply, except as otherwise 
specified by this ordinance. 
 

IV. Development Plans: 
 
Site Layout: The site shall be in general conformance 
with the approved Concept Plan, labeled Exhibit C. In 
the event of conflict between the conditions and the 
site plan, the written conditions listed below are to 
apply. 

 
V. Abandonment:   In the event the land use for which this 

Specific Use Provision was granted (“Land Use”) is 
abandoned, the SUP and all rights to the Land Use are 
automatically terminated, and the premises must be used 
in conformance with the PD, GDC, federal, and state 
law.  
 
For the purposes of this Specific Use Provision, 
Abandonment is any of the following acts: 
 

 
A. A failure to apply for a site or building permit on 

the premises, where applicable, within 180 days of 
the effective date of this SUP; 
 

B. A failure to obtain a certificate of occupancy for 
the Land use within 730 days of the effective date 
of this SUP; 
 



SUP Requirements 
Zoning File 24-23 
Page 2-3 

EXHIBIT B 

C. A failure to commence operating the Land Use on the 
premises within 90 days of receiving a final 
certificate of occupancy for the Land Use; 
 

D. Discontinuance of the Land Use for a period of 180 
days; 
 

E. Applying for, and receiving, a new Certificate of 
Occupancy for a use other than the Land Use; or 

 
F. Operating a use on the premises, whether as a 

primary or secondary use, that is not allowed within 
the PD District, by the GDC, or by state or federal 
law. 

 
The termination of utilities on the premises for a 
period of 180 calendar days is prima facie evidence of 
abandonment and the owner shall have the burden to 
prove that the Land Use has not been abandoned. 

 
 
VI. Specific Regulations:   
 

A.  Time Period:  The Specific Use Provision shall have a 
thirty-five (35) year time period. 
 

B. Concept Plan: Development shall be in general 
conformance with the concept plan labeled Exhibit C. 

 
C. Maintenance requirements:  

 
(1) Landscaping must be continuously maintained in a 
healthy, growing condition and in compliance with this 
ordinance, the Garland Development Code, the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Garland, and the landscaping 
plan attached hereto at all times. The property owner 
is responsible for regular weeding, mowing of grass, 
irrigation, fertilizing, pruning, or other maintenance 
of all landscaping as promptly as needed to comply 
with the requirements of this subsection. All exposed 
ground surfaces shall be properly improved, covered 
with screening or other approved solid material, or 
protected with a vegetative growth that prevents soil 
erosion and ameliorates objectionable dust conditions. 
 
(2) Any dead or dying plant or vegetation, whether or 
not a component of required landscaping, must be 
promptly replaced with another approved plant or 
vegetation variety that complies with the approved 
landscape plan and in no event later than sixty days 
after notification by the City. In the event the 
property owner fails to remedy a violation of any 
landscaping maintenance regulation within sixty days 
of the City sending notice, the City may, in addition 
to any other remedy available by law, suspend, 



SUP Requirements 
Zoning File 24-23 
Page 2-3 

EXHIBIT B 

withhold, or revoke city permits, approvals, consents 
and the certificate of occupancy for the retail fuel 
pumps and convenience store.  See Section 4 of the 
granting ordinance. 
 
(3) Screening and paving must be installed and 
continuously maintained in compliance with this 
ordinance, the Garland Development Code, and the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Garland at all times. The 
property owner is responsible for regular maintenance 
of all screening and paving as needed. In the event 
the property owner fails to remedy a violation of any 
screening or paving maintenance regulation within 
sixty days of the City sending notice, the City may, 
in addition to any other remedy available by law, 
suspend, withhold, or revoke city permits, approval, 
consents and the certificate of occupancy for the Car 
Truck/Bus Repair use. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 



K
IN

G
S

 R
D

KENMORE ST

North Site Plan Legend

Site Pavement

Existing Road / Adjacent Lot

Proposed Building

Landscape

Property Separation Line

Proposed Fence Line

Proposed Truck Parking

Proposed Car Parking

Proposed Sidewalk

Vicinity Plan

Land Use: Industrial (IN)
Site Area for the North Lot: 6.644 Acres

Owner / Client:
OSI Group LLC
800 Brickell Ave.
Suite 904
Miami, FL 33131
Contact: Andrew T. Smith
eMail: asmith@outourstorage.com
Tel: 618.713.3391

Architect:
Parkway C&A
1000 Civic Circle
Lewisville, TX 75067
Contact: Chris A. Rutledge, AIA
eMail: crutledge@pkwycon.com
Tel: 469.704.3459

Engineer:
Halff
1201 N Bowser Rd.
Richardson, TX 75081
Contact: Jose I. Garcia, Jr.
eMail: jgarcia@halff.com
Tel: 214.346.6200

FIT Case Number: 24013-1
Case: Z24-23

Site design and construction plans shall conform to all 
requirements of the Garland Development Code (GDC), 
Technical Standard Manual (TSM), and City codes unless 
an approved PD narrative condition expressly provides 
otherwise. The concept plan shall be used to represent the 
general idea of the proposed land use and site elements. 
The concept plan shall not supersede, and shall be 
subordinate to, the standards, requirements, and conditions 
of the GDC, TSM, City code, or the approved PD.

Project Information

0 120 180 24060TRUE 
NORTH

PLAN
NORTH

1" = 40'-0"
1

Preliminary Site Plan

1000  Civic Circle Lewisville, TX 75067
parkwayconstruction.com (972) 221-1979

CONSTRUCTION ARCHITECTURE

6/6/2024 3:21:30 PM

Outour Storage Investments

Concept Plan - North

A1-1 v1

1602 Kings Road
Garland, Texas 75041

EXH
IB

IT C



   
 

 

Z 24-23 
 
 

  

Looking East from Kings Road toward the subject 
site 

Looking West across Kings Road 

 
 
 

 

Looking South down Kings Road Looking North up Kings Road 
 







GARLAND  
 

  
Plan Commission 3. f.             
Meeting Date: 06/10/2024  
Item Tit le:  Z 24-24 Kimley-Horn (District 3)
Summary:
Consideration of the application of Kimley-Horn, requesting approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Community
Retail (CR) District to a Planned Development (PD) District for Community Retail Uses and 2) a Concept Plan for a
Hotel/Motel Full Service . This property is located at 3305 Zion Road. (District 3) (File Z 24-24)

Attachments
Z 24-24 Kimley-Horn Report & Attachments



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 24-24/District 3 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: June 10, 2024  
 
REQUESTS 
Approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Community Retail (CR) District to a Planned 
Development (PD) District for Community Retail Uses and 2) a Concept Plan for a 
Hotel/Motel Full Service. 
 
APPLICANT 
Kimley-Horn 
 
OWNER 
GTG Ventures, LLC 
 
LOCATION 
3305 Zion Road 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property is a 4.12-acre site that contains a Single-Family Detached home.  
 
The applicant requests to demolish the home and rezone the property to a Planned 
Development (PD) District for Community Retail (CR) District Uses in order to construct a 
Full-Service Boutique Hotel. The site will contain one (1) main structure, fourteen (14) 
villas, open amenity areas, trail connections, an underground parking garage, and angled 
parking along Zion Road. 
 
The main structure will be a 58-foot tall, 114,450 square foot building featuring 112 rooms, 
6 integrated villas, restaurant, office, and conference space. The fourteen (14) individual 
villa structures will be single or double villas and include a bedroom, bathroom, living area, 
and small kitchen. 
 
Walking paths will connect all structures and amenities on the site. The amenities will 
include several pools, lounge areas, and social gathering areas. 
 
Finally, Zion Road will be expanded with right of way dedication, as well as trails being built 
to connect into the Garland park system. 
 
SITE DATA 
The overall subject property consists of approximately 4.12 acres. The site has 
approximately 1,000 linear feet of frontage along Zion Road. The site can be accessed from 
two (2) points on Zion Road. One of these being directly from Bass Pro Drive. 
 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is currently zoned Community Retail (CR) District. The Community 
Retail (CR) district is intended to accommodate a variety of retail, service, and business 
establishments that may or may not be designed in a shopping center configuration. The 
district may be used as a transition district between lower intensity retail or office uses and 
more intense uses. A CR district is generally appropriate along major transportation 
corridors but is generally not appropriate in proximity to low-density residential districts 



Page 2 of 3 
 
without significant buffering and screening features. An example of allowed use in a CR 
district is a retail shopping area that may be large in scale with very limited or no outside 
storage. Traffic generated by uses in a CR district must be focused onto the major 
thoroughfare network. Development in a CR district may not be designed in a manner that 
increases traffic through residential areas. 
 
The current land use on the property is a Single-Family home, which is not allowed in the 
Community Retail (CR) District. The current structure is abandoned and legal non-
conforming. 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 
1. Parking 

The Hotel/Motel, Full Service requires a parking ratio of 1/room + 1/200sf restaurant, 
retail, conference and office area. The applicant proposes the subject property use a 
parking ratio of 0.66/room + 1/200sf of restaurant, retail, conference, and office area. 
This would reduce the required number of parking by 45 spaces. 

A parking study was provided in which twelve (12) full-service hotels in Dallas and Las 
Colinas were examined. The parking study concluded that an average of .67 spaces per 
room was needed on both weekdays and weekends. With the location of these hotels 
being more central to the metroplex, the parking study argued that these hotels would 
have more parking demand for their restaurants, office, and parking space than the 
proposed Full-Service Boutique Hotel. Also cited was the increasing use of ride hailing 
options (Uber, Lyft, etc.), especially from out-of-town guests, for hotels in the area. 

2. Building Height 
The GDC allows a thirty-five (35) foot maximum building height in the Community Retail 
(CR) District. The applicant proposes a variance to allow for a fifty-eight (58) foot 
maximum building height. 
 
It should be noted that in the Community Office (CO) District, a Full-Service Hotel is 
allowed by right and may be any legal height due to the lack of a maximum building 
height. 

 
3. Guest Room Access: 

The GDC only allows guest rooms to be accessed from interior hallways, which are 
accessible from a central lobby area within the building, except for first floor units, which 
are accessible from an interior courtyard or swimming pool area. The applicant requests 
guest rooms may be accessed from exterior hallways, to make the villa concept possible.  
 

4. Off-Site Improvements: 
The applicant is requesting to include off-site improvements to Zion Road and the Public 
Hike and Bike Trail system with this project. The request will see Zion Road rebuilt in 
order to allow angled and parallel parking spaces along the North frontage of Zion Road. 
The improvements will take place beyond the property line as well and reconstruct the 
whole width of the adjacent property. The design will mimic the design of the previous 
Zion Road Extension project with a 60 foot right of way with 12.5-foot-wide drive lanes. 
 
In addition to the roadway improvements, a 10-foot-wide hike and bike trail is proposed 
outside the property boundaries and shown on the concept plan. 
 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Envision Garland Plan designates the subject property as Regional Centers. Regional 
centers are areas with a higher concentration of activity that serve as a destination for 
residents and visitors. Uses within this development type provide a mix of retail, services, 
entertainment, and employment and may include residential uses. Regional centers may be 
found along major highways and turnpikes, and at significant bus or rail stations. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN 
The Economic Development Strategic Plan lists creating destinations as an important part of 
increasing Garland’s nonlocal sales tax revenue. Examples of this include all Lakefront 
areas, due to the unique location within the Metroplex. Destinations specifically mentioned 
under the expansion of lodging options are encouraging “more high-quality hotels along 
highway corridors” and boutique hotels.  
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The surrounding properties are zoned Community Retail (CR) District, Agricultural (AG) 
District, and Multi-Family-1 (MF-1) District. These sites include the lakefront park and boat 
dock, apartments, condos, and low-scale retail. All of these properties outside the lakefront 
park are included in the “Regional Centers” category for future land use as well. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Community Retail (CR) District to a Planned 
Development (PD) District for Community Retail Uses and 2) a Concept Plan for a 
Hotel/Motel Full Service. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Location Map 
Exhibit 
PD Conditions 
Photos 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: July 2, 2024 
 
 
PREPARED BY:      REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton   Angela Self, FAICP 
Development Planner  Interim Director of Planning 
Planning & Development 
(972) 205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov 

mailto:mwolverton@garlandtx.gov


1280

6006

E I3
0 C

HAHA O
N N

E I3
0 S

ERVIC
E R

D S

SP
IN

N
AK

ER
 C

O
VE

CHAHA SERVICE FEEDER RD S

BASS PRO SERVICE FEEDER RD N

CHAHA RD

POINT BLVD

E I30 CHAHA ON S

BAY IS
LA

ND D
R

MARVIN
 LO

VIN
G D

R
E I3

0 S
ERVIC

E R
D N

E I30 CHAHA OFF N

BASS PRO DR

E I30 FRWY

N
 G

EO
R

G
E 

BU
SH

 H
W

Y 
W

GEORGE B
USH I3

0 O
FF

N
 G

EO
R

G
E 

BU
SH

 H
W

Y 
E

ZIO
N R

D

GEORGE BUSH I30 ON

P DP D
0 5 - 2 70 5 - 2 7

S F 1 0S F 1 0

S F - 1 0S F - 1 0

M F - 1M F - 1

S F - 1 0S F - 1 0
C RC R

P D  8 2 - 3 3P D  8 2 - 3 3

P DP D
0 6 - 5 00 6 - 5 0

P DP D
0 7 - 2 90 7 - 2 9

M F - 1M F - 1

SS
0 7 - 1 50 7 - 1 5

P DP D
0 5 - 4 10 5 - 4 1

M F - 1M F - 1

C RC R

P D  0 1 - 4 1P D  0 1 - 4 1

P D  7 2 - 2 9P D  7 2 - 2 9

P DP D
8 2 - 1 0 58 2 - 1 0 5

M F - 1M F - 1

P DP D
8 0 - 1 38 0 - 1 3

C RC R P DP D
0 6 - 2 50 6 - 2 5S F - 1 0S F - 1 0

S F - 1 0S F - 1 0

P D  0 4 - 4 7P D  0 4 - 4 7

P DP D
1 4 - 0 71 4 - 0 7

M F - 1M F - 1

C RC R

M F - 1M F - 1

P DP D
1 5 - 0 41 5 - 0 4

A GA G

A GA G

A GA G

S F - 1 0S F - 1 0C RC R

P DP D
1 8 - 1 01 8 - 1 0

P D  1 8 - 3 6P D  1 8 - 3 6

P DP D
1 9 - 3 11 9 - 3 1

ZONING MAP Z 24-24
¯

0 350 700 Feet
1 inch = 700 feet

3305 Zion Road

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 
 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 24-24 
 

3305 Zion Road 
 

 
I. Statement of Purpose: The purpose of this Planned 

Development is to approve a Hotel/Motel Full Service 
Use. 

 
 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development shall not 

affect any regulation found in the Garland Development 
Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior to adoption 
of this ordinance, except as specifically provided 
herein. 

 
 
III. General Regulations: All regulations of the Community 

Retail (CR) District as set forth in Chapter 2 of the 
Garland Development Code are included by reference and 
shall apply, except as otherwise specified by this 
ordinance. 
 
 

IV. Development Plans: 
 

Concept Plan: Development shall be in general 
conformance with the Concept Plan labeled Exhibit C. In 
the event there is conflict between the approved Concept 
Plan and the Specific Regulations below, the Specific 
Regulations shall apply.  

 
 
V. Specific Conditions: 
  

A. Permitted Use: Only Hotel/Motel Full Service Use is 
allowed on the subject property. 
 

B. Concept Plan: The site layout, building placement, 
parking, walking paths, and other development proposed 
shall be in general conformance with the approved 
Concept Plan labeled Exhibit C. 
 

C. Building Height: The building height may not exceed 
fifty-eight (58) feet. 

 
 

 
 



PD Conditions 
File Z 24-24 
Page - 2 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

D. Parking: The parking ratio will be .66/room + 1/200sf 
of restaurant, retail, conference, and office area. 

E. Guest Room Access: Guest rooms may be accessed from 
exterior hallways in the fourteen (14) individual 
villa structures.  

 
F. Landscaping must be regularly maintained in a healthy, 

growing condition and in compliance with this PD 
Ordinance, the Garland Development Code, the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Garland, and the landscaping 
plan attached hereto at all times. The property owner 
is responsible for regular weeding, mowing of grass, 
irrigation, fertilizing, pruning, or other 
maintenance of all plantings as needed. All exposed 
ground surfaces  

on or within the premises shall be properly 
improved, covered with screening or other 
approved solid material, or protected with a 
vegetative growth that prevents soil erosion and 
ameliorates objectionable dust conditions. 
 

1. Any plant or vegetation that dies must be 
replaced with another approved plant variety that 
complies with the approved landscape plan within 
sixty (60) days after receipt of written 
notification from the City. In the event the 
property owner fails to remedy a violation of any 
landscaping maintenance regulation within sixty  
(60) days after receipt of written notification 
from the City, the City may, in addition to any 
other remedy available by law, withhold future 
city permits, licenses and/or certificates 
requested by the property owner for the premises 
to which such violation applies.  
 

2. Screening and paving must be regularly maintained 
in compliance with this PD Ordinance, the Garland  
Development Code, and the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Garland at all times. The property 
owner is responsible for regular maintenance of 
all screening and paving as needed.  In the event 
the property owner fails to remedy a violation 
of any screening or paving maintenance regulation 
within sixty (60) days after receipt of written 
notification from the City, the City may, in 
addition to any other remedy available by law, 



PD Conditions 
File Z 24-24 
Page - 3 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

withhold future city permits, licenses and/or 
certificates requested by the property owner for 
the premises to which such violation applies. 

 
 
 
 
 

 



BASS PRO DRIVE
ZIO

N R
OAD

N87°21'49"E 440.88'

S1
8°

07
'0

6"
W

82
.3

2'

S2
9°

58
'06

"W
29

1.
42

'

S45
°11

'25
"W

72
4.1

9'

N1
9°

29
'5

6"
E

29
2.

37
'

N3
0°

31
'07

"E
32

4.
73

'

N
1°

01
'4

8"
E

24
3.

00
'

EX. MULTIFAMILY
DEVELOPMENT
ZONING: MF-1

EX. BOAT DOCK &
PUBLIC PARK
ZONING: AG

LAKE RAY
HUBBARD

EX. VACANT LOT
ZONING: CR

EX. MULTIFAMILY
DEVELOPMENT
ZONING: MF-1

EX. MULTIFAMILY
DEVELOPMENT

ZONING: PD 18-10

N44°48'35"W
31.69'

VILLAS (TYP)

OPEN AMENITY AREA

SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
VOL. 82106, PG. 2660

D.R.D.C.T.

VARIABLE WIDTH
DEDICATED FOR
STREET WIDENING
VOL. 82073, PG. 366
D.R.D.C.T.

PROP. 10' PUBLIC
HIKE AND BIKE TRAIL

PROP. 10' PUBLIC
HIKE AND BIKE TRAIL

PROP. 10' PUBLIC
HIKE AND BIKE TRAIL

PROP. 10' PUBLIC
HIKE AND BIKE TRAIL

ZONE AE FLOODPLAIN
LIMITS PER FEMA

EX. TRAIL EX. R.O.W. DEDICATION

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

BY

D
AT

E

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

N
o.

D
AT

E

SHEET NUMBER

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T

26
00

 N
. C

EN
TR

AL
 E

XP
Y,

 S
U

IT
E 

40
0 

R
IC

H
AR

D
SO

N
, T

X 
75

08
0

PH
O

N
E:

 2
14

-6
17

-0
53

5
W

W
W

.K
IM

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

.C
O

M
  T

X 
F-

92
8

LA
ST

 S
AV

ED
5/

30
/2

02
4 

8:
31

 A
M

PL
O

TT
ED

 B
Y

TU
TT

, S
TE

PH
AN

IE
 5

/3
0/

20
24

 8
:3

1 
AM

D
W

G
 P

AT
H

K:
\R

C
H

_C
IV

IL
\0

64
61

42
01

-G
AR

LA
N

D
 Z

IO
N

 H
O

TE
L\

C
AD

\E
XH

IB
IT

S
D

W
G

 N
AM

E
C

O
N

C
EP

T 
PL

AN
.D

W
G

 , 
 [ 

24
 x

 3
6 

]

IM
AG

ES
   

   
   

   
   

  V
ic

in
ity

 M
ap

1 
 : 

 G
ar

la
nd

Lo
go

  :
  E

PS
G

26
91

4_
D

at
e2

02
31

00
9_

La
t3

2.
86

63
25

_L
on

-9
6.

54
55

77
_M

pp
0.

07
5 

 :
XR

EF
S 

   
   

   
   

   
 x

Su
rv

  :
  x

Br
dr

  :
  x

Si
te

  :
  x

H
ar

ds
ca

pe
  :

  x
Bl

dg
  :

  x
Ae

ria
l

ZI
O

N
 R

O
AD

 H
O

TE
L

C
AS

E 
#2

31
21

9-
1

G
AR

LA
N

D
, T

EX
AS

©
 2

02
4 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.

05
/2

1/
20

24

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Engineer

P.E. No. Date

Not for construction, bidding, or
permit purposes.

MAY 2024
STEPHANIE TUTT

145394

06
46

14
20

1

SGR
KST

ZO
N

IN
G

C
O

N
C

EP
T 

PL
AN

00 40' 80'

GRAPHIC SCALE 40'

LEGEND

PROPOSED HOTEL BUILDING
& VILLAS

PROPOSED ZION ROAD
IMPROVEMENTS

PROPOSED PUBLIC HIKE &
BIKE TRAIL

PROPOSED PAVEMENT

PROPOSED LANDSCAPE &
AMENITIES

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND
PARKING GARAGE

ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED PATIO &
SIDEWALK

PROJECT LOCATION

PROPERTY ID:
65084087010020000 ZIP CODE: 75043

LAKE RAY
HUBBARD

CP-1

PROJECT PROPERTY LINE

SITE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION PLANS SHALL
CONFORM TO ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE GARLAND
DEVELOPMENT CODE (GDC), TECHNICAL STANDARD
MANUAL (TSM), AND CITY CODES UNLESS AN
APPROVED PD NARRATIVE CONDITION EXPRESSLY
PROVIDES OTHERWISE. THE CONCEPT PLAN SHALL BE
USED TO REPRESENT THE GENERAL IDEA OF THE
PROPOSED LAND USE AND SITE ELEMENTS.  THE
CONCEPT PLAN SHALL NOT SUPERSEDE, AND SHALL
BE SUBORDINATE TO, THE STANDARDS,
REQUIREMENTS, AND CONDITIONS OF THE GDC, TSM,
CITY CODE, OR THE APPROVED PD.



GTG BOUTIQUE HOTEL
Garland, TX

Concept Design
May 6, 2024 

1327 Dragon St., Dallas, TX 75248

Moya Architecture Workshop

GTG

maworkshop.com



May 6, 2024

2

GTG BOUTIQUE HOTEL
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN

GTG Moya Architecture Workshop
maworkshop.com

NORTH-EAST AERIAL



May 6, 2024

3

GTG BOUTIQUE HOTEL
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN

GTG Moya Architecture Workshop
maworkshop.com

WEST AERIAL



May 6, 2024

4

GTG BOUTIQUE HOTEL
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN

GTG Moya Architecture Workshop
maworkshop.com

BOAT RAMP VIEW



May 6, 2024

5

GTG BOUTIQUE HOTEL
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN

GTG Moya Architecture Workshop
maworkshop.com

NORTH PERSPECTIVE



May 6, 2024

6

GTG BOUTIQUE HOTEL
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN

GTG Moya Architecture Workshop
maworkshop.com

PARK / TRAIL VIEW



   
 

 

Z 24-24 
 
 

  

Looking West toward the subject property from the 
intersection of Zion and Bass Pro 

Looking North down Zion toward the lake 

 
 
 

 

Looking East down Bass Pro Drive Looking South down Zion Road 
 


	Agenda
	AI_9595_Plan Commission Minutes for May 13, 2024
	       ATT_May 13, 2024 Plan Commission Minutes
	MINUTES

	AI_9596_P 24-15 Linda Ray Addition - Replat
	       ATT_P 24-15 Linda Ray Addition - Replat Report and Attachments
	AI_9597_P 24-16 Garland Shiloh Addition - Replat
	       ATT_P 24-16 Garland Shiloh Addition - Replat Report and Attachments
	AI_9598_Z 22-28 IBC Constructions, LLC
	       ATT_Z 22-28 IBC Constructions, LLC Report and Attachments
	PC Exhibits.pdf
	Site Plan Garland
	Sheets and Views
	A2.1


	Pages from SUP 1100 Pleasant Valley Rd GARLAND  16-April-2024


	       ATT_Z 22-28 IBC Constructions, LLC Responses
	AI_9599_Z 22-67 CCM Engineering (District 3)
	       ATT_Z 22-67 CCM Engineering Report and Attachments
	PC Exhibits.pdf
	Miller Estates Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	SITE PLAN


	240523 2 Bunkhouse Road TH - Garland - Zoning - LS Plan SET
	240423 2 Bunkhouse Road TH - Garland - Zoning - LS Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LS Plan


	240523 2 Bunkhouse Road TH - Garland - Zoning- LS Playground.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LS Plyground


	240523 2 Bunkhouse Road TH - Garland - Zoning - HOA lot.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	HOA lot


	240523 2 Bunkhouse Road TH - Garland - Zoning - fence diagram.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	fence diagram



	Miller Estates_Elevations_2024-05-22
	Sheets
	A-02.1 - ELEVATIONS
	A-02.2 - ELEVATIONS




	       ATT_Z 22-67 CCM Engineering Responses
	AI_9600_Z 24-15 2916 National, LP (District 5)
	       ATT_Z 24-15 2916 National, LP Report and Attachments
	PC Exhibits.pdf
	Alterra Garland - Site Plan (8.5x11) 4865-2394-0022 v.2 (3)
	Alterra - Code Landscape (8.5x11) 4871-2293-9830 v.2 (2)
	Sheets and Views
	L-01 LANDSCAPE PLANS
	L-02 LANDSCAPE DETAILS
	L-03 LANDSCAPE DETAILS
	L-04 LANDSCAPE NOTES & SPECIFICATIONS




	       ATT_Z 24-15 2916 National, LP Responses
	AI_9604_Z 24-22 OSI 1602 Kings Rd., LLC (District 6)
	       ATT_Z 24-22 OSI 1602 Kings Rd., LLC Report and Attachments
	Concept Plan.pdf
	Sheets
	A1-1 v1 - Concept Plan - North
	A1-1 v2 - Concept Plan - North v2
	A1-2 - Concept Plan - South



	       ATT_Z 24-22 OSI 1602 Kings Rd., LLC Responses
	AI_9605_Z 24-23 OSI 1602 Kings Rd., LLC (District 6)
	       ATT_Z 24-23 OSI 1602 Kings Rd., LLC Report and Attachments
	Concept Plan.pdf
	Sheets
	A1-1 v1 - Concept Plan - North
	A1-1 v2 - Concept Plan - North v2
	A1-2 - Concept Plan - South



	       ATT_Z 24-23 OSI 1602 Kings Rd., LLC Responses
	AI_9606_Z 24-24 Kimley-Horn (District 3)
	       ATT_Z 24-24 Kimley-Horn Report and Attachments
	PC Exhibits.pdf
	Concept Plan
	Sheets and Views
	24 x 36


	Renderings



